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VISION AND VALUES

VISION

At Mpact, our vision is to be a leading business with the highest ethical 
standards, delivering exceptional value for our customers, employees, 
communities and shareholders.

As one of southern Africa’s leading paper and plastics packaging 

producers, we are committed to:

 Meeting and exceeding customers’ requirements for product 

and service quality, innovation as well as cost competitiveness.

 Providing a safe and secure working environment in which 

employees can fulfil their ambitions and aspire to continually 

improve their circumstances.

 Acting as a responsible employer and citizen in the communities 

where we operate, and managing natural resources with care, 

sensitivity and expertise.

 Achieving sustainable, profitable growth through a focus on 

business excellence and strategic expansion in chosen markets.

VALUES

We are differentiated by our people who are resolute, trustworthy 
and responsible.

For the Group’s values in full, please visit www.mpact.co.za
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SCOPE OF THIS INTEGRATED REPORT

Any queries regarding this Integrated Report 
or its contents should be addressed to:

Deborah Chapman
Communications Manager
Mpact Limited
E-mail: DLChapman@mpact.co.za
Tel: +27 11 994 5547
Cell: +27 76 650 4155

Any queries regarding Mpact’s Investor 
Relations should be addressed to:

Marlize Keyter
Keyter Rech Investor Solutions CC
E-mail: mkeyter@kris.co.za
Tel: +27 11 447 5204
Cell: +27 83 701 2021 

Mpact’s Integrated Report for the financial year ended 31 December 2012 covers the 
activities and performance of the Group, which includes Mpact Limited, all its subsidiaries and 
associates. This Integrated Report aims to provide a balanced, understandable and complete 
view of the business by reporting on the financial and non-financial performance of the Group 
to enable stakeholders to make an informed assessment of Mpact. 

The Integrated Report also highlights the opportunities, risks and material issues faced by 
the Group in the normal course of business as well as the Group’s governance, social and 
environmental responsibilities. Reporting on the Group’s triple bottom-line performance 
demonstrates Mpact’s commitment to sustainable growth and development.

This Integrated Report is presented in accordance with IFRS, the Companies Act, the Listings 
Requirements of the JSE, King III and the guidance provided by the Integrated Reporting 
Committee in its guideline “South Africa’s Framework for Integrated Reporting”.

The content of this Integrated Report is in line with the GRI guidelines. Mpact has achieved 
a self-declared C Application Level and continues to incrementally improve on its reporting 
in this regard. There are no material changes to the content of this Integrated Report 
compared to 2011’s Integrated Report, other than a greater emphasis on providing additional 
supplementary information on the Group’s strategic direction, risk and sustainability initiatives.

DISCLAIMER
The Integrated Report may contain certain forward looking statements concerning the Group’s 
environment, financial performance and conditions, and strategy and growth expectations. 
Such views involve both known and unknown risks, assumptions, uncertainties and important 
factors that could materially influence the actual performance of the Group. No assurance 
can therefore be given that these will prove to be correct and no representation or warranty 
expressed or implied is given as to the accuracy or completeness of such views.

This Integrated Report for the year ended 31 December 2012 is published in various 
media. An abridged version of certain sections is contained in this Integrated Report. 
The comprehensive Annual Financial Statements and the Sustainability Review are 
available  on the company’s website  www.mpact.co.za. 

EXTERNAL ASSURANCE
This Integrated Report has not been independently assured as a whole this year. 

Mpact’s external auditor, Deloitte & Touche, has assured the Annual Financial Statements 
and their Independent Auditors’ Report is contained in this Integrated Report.

KPMG is responsible for the Internal Audit function of the Group and their report was made 
available to the Board. KPMG has assured that the internal controls of the Group are in place 
and has provided limited assurance on some of the information included in the Sustainability 
Review. The Sustainability Review as a whole has not been independently assured.

Empowerdex, an accredited empowerment rating agency, has provided assurance on the 
economic empowerment scorecard for the prior financial year end. The assurance on Mpact’s 
B-BBEE rating for the year ended 31 December 2012 will only be available in July 2013.

APPROVAL OF THIS INTEGRATED REPORT 
The Board confirms its responsibility for the integrity of this Integrated Report. The content 
of this Integrated Report has been collectively assessed by the Board and in its opinion this 
Integrated Report addresses the material issues that could potentially impact the  
performance of the Group.

The Board has accordingly authorised the release of the Integrated Report 2012.

AJ Phillips BW Strong
Chairman Chief Executive Officer

5 March 2013 5 March 2013
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OF 2012

KEY
FEATURES

1   Excludes Paperlink, the paper merchant  
business sold at the end of March 2011

HIGHLIGHTS

REVENUE

R6,8 billion1

10.9%

UNDERLYING OPERATING
PROFIT

R585 million1

11.6%

BASIC UNDERLYING 
EARNINGS PER SHARE

191.1 cents 
Dec 2011: 102.9 cents

RETURN ON CAPITAL 
EMPLOYED (ROCE)

16.0%
Dec 2011: 13.8%

TOTAL GROSS CASH DIVIDEND
FOR THE YEAR

75.0%
Dec 2011: 40 cents per share

70 cents per share

29.0%
Dec 2011: 35%

GEARING IMPROVED TO
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GROUP AT A GLANCE 

CORPORATE PROFILE

Mpact is one of the largest paper and plastics packaging businesses in southern Africa

Mpact listed as a separate entity on the JSE’s Main Board in the “Industrial – Paper & Packaging” sector after the company demerged 

from Mondi in July 2011. Mpact has the leading market position in southern Africa in corrugated packaging, recycled-based cartonboard 

and containerboard, recovered paper collection, PET preforms, styrene trays and plastic jumbo bins. These leading market positions, as 

well as its integrated business model, allows Mpact to meet the increasing requirements of its customers, achieve economies of scale 

and cost effectiveness at the various operations. 

Mpact has 31 operating sites, of which 24 are manufacturing operations, in South Africa, Namibia, Mozambique and Zimbabwe. 

Approximately 90% of Mpact’s sales were to locally-based customers (2011: 90%) for the current financial year. 

As at 31 December 2012, Mpact’s workforce amounted to approximately 3,790 employees.

Mpact is a Level 4 B-BBEE contributor, as determined by Empowerdex on the basis of the Group’s 2011 results and ownership structure. 

Mpact is committed to maintaining a competitive rating that is in line with Government regulations and requirements.

Centres of excellence and customer-
focused operating structure

GEOGRAPHIC FOOTPRINT

  

Corrugated

Recycling

Plastics 

Packaging and industrial paper

Harare

Walvis Bay
Windhoek

Brits
Pretoria

Johannesburg
Maputo

Richards Bay

Piet Retief

Nelspruit

Felixton

Durban

Bloemfontein

Paarl

Port Elizabeth

Atlantis

Cape Town

East London

Mpact has developed Centres of Excellence for its human 

resources, safety and health and environmental policy 

functions. In addition, the Group enjoys the benefits of shared 

services across the businesses for finance, human resources 

administration and information communication and technology 

(ICT), and has research and development (R&D) facilities. 

The R&D activity covers innovation centres for structural and 

graphic design, value-added services and a plastics design 

studio where new designs are created and prototype forms 

for the development of new plastic containers are made. 

The Stellenbosch-based R&D centre provides production 

and technical support for sales teams and collaborates with 

customers on product developments in the plastics and 

paper businesses.

Mpact prides itself on its customer-focused operating structure. 

The decentralised operating structure includes operations 

managers responsible for customer relationship management 

and financial performance. The Group maintains close 

relationships and adapts quickly to customer needs, developing 

products tailored to specific requirements. Mpact’s proximity to 

its customers contributes to faster response times and reduced 

transport costs.
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PAPER BUSINESS

The Paper business comprises three divisions, 

namely:

Recycling

Mpact is the largest paper recycler in South Africa. 

Recovered paper sources include pre- and post-

consumer material sourced from a multitude of 

paper pickup programmes. Mpact Recycling has 

seven operations across the country.

Paper Manufacturing

The Paper Manufacturing division manufactures 

high-performance, recycled-based packaging 

and industrial paper grades such as cartonboard 

and containerboard. It has three mills in 

Springs (Gauteng), Felixton (KwaZulu-Natal) 

and Piet Retief (Mpumalanga).

Corrugated 

The Corrugated division manufactures and sells a 

comprehensive range of premium quality printed 

and unprinted converted corrugated products, 

including board, which Mpact uses to manufacture 

corrugated packaging, corrugated boxes, die-cut 

cases, folded glued cases, trays and point-of-

sale displays. This division has 11 plants – eight 

in South Africa, one in Mozambique and two in 

Namibia. It also has a sales office in the Free State.

PLASTICS BUSINESS

The Plastics business manufactures a range of world-class 

plastic packaging products for the food, beverage, personal 

care, homecare, pharmaceutical, agricultural and retail markets, 

primarily in South Africa. 

Products include: 

 PET preforms, bottles and jars;

 plastic jumbo bins, wheelie bins and plastic crates;

 plastic FMCG containers other than PET, such as bottles, 

jars and closures, with in-mould labelling; and

 styrene and PET trays, fast food containers and clear 

plastic films. 

The Plastics business has 10 production centres located in 

the Western Cape, Gauteng, KwaZulu-Natal and Zimbabwe.

26%

74%

REVENUE - 31 December 2012

Plastics
Paper

17%

83%

UNDERLYING OPERATING PROFIT - 
31 December 2012*

*      Excludes Corporate and other businesses

Plastics
Paper
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FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE HISTORY: FIVE-YEAR REVIEW
for the year ended 31 December

2012 2011 2010 2009 2008

Profit performance
Revenue R’m  6,821 6,281 6,259 5,774 5,711

Underlying operating profit R’m  585 517 485 407 334

Underlying profit/(loss) before tax R’m 466 263 102 (61) (156)

Underlying earnings/(loss) R’m 313 169 40 (144) (143)

Financial position
Total assets R’m 5,837 5,605 5,257 5,432 5,512

Total equity R’m 2,642 2,412 181 136 174

Total liabilities R’m 3,194 3,193 5,076 5,296 5,338

Total operating assets R’m 5,224 5,005 4,773 4,931 5,128

Cash flow information
Net cash from operations before 
working capital R’m 914 765 812 811 608

Working capital movements R’m (48) 48 (133) 201 (298)

Capital expenditure R’m 363 337 269 193 436

Ratio and statistics
Underlying operating profit margin % 8.6 8.2 7.8 7.0 5.9

Basic EPS cents 188.5 54.9 –1 –1 –1

Underlying EPS cents 191.1 102.9 –1 –1 –1

Basic HEPS cents 187.5 54.3 –1 –1 –1

Total dividend per share cents 70.0 40.0 –1 –1 –1

Net asset value per share cents 1,615.4 1,470.3 –1 –1 –1

ROCE % 16.0 13.8 13.1 10.4 8.7

Current ratio times 1.5 1.3 1.6 1.4 1.5

Interest cover (underlying EBIT) times 4.6 1.6 1.2 1.0 0.7

Gearing % 28.6 35.3 95.7 96.6 95.9

Stock Exchange statistics2

Market value per share

– At year end cents 1,989 1,499 – – –

– Highest (year to 31 December) cents 2,010 1,542 – – –

– Lowest (year to 31 December) cents 1,400 1,216 – – –

Closing PE ratio times 10.6 27.6 – – –

Market capitalisation – close R’m 3,254 2,459 – – –

Volume traded (year to 31 December) ’000 107,254 102,462 – – –

Weighted number of shares ’000 163,825 164,046 – – –

Issued shares at 31 December ’000 163,576 164,046 – – –

Note 1: Not calculated; Mpact listed on the JSE on 11 July 2011
Note 2: The Stock Exchange statistics for the year ended 31 December 2011 contain the JSE information from 11 July 2011, the date of Mpact’s listing on the JSE

9%

90%

REVENUE PER GEOGRAPHY

Rest of Africa
Rest of the world
South Africa

1%

6%

94%

EMPLOYEES PER GEOGRAPHY

Rest of Africa
South Africa
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VALUE-ADDED STATEMENT

2012

R’m

2011

R’m

Value created

Value created by operating activities
 2,068.2 1,839.3

– Revenue  6,820,8 6,281.0

– Expenses  (4,752,6) (4,441.7)

Finance income  9.9 28.4

Share of associate profits  8.6 2.3

 2,086.7 1,870.0

Value distributed  (1,427.3) (1,392.1)

Employees salaries, wages and other benefits  (1,162.1)  (1,052.2)

Payments to providers of finance   

– Finance costs  (137.7)  (319.0)

– Dividends  (98.3)  –

Payments to Government

– Taxes  (29.1) (20.9)

Value re-invested  (436.2)  (370.2)

Depreciation, amortisation and impairments  (327.4)  (323.4)

Deferred tax  (108.8)  (46.8)

Value retained   

Retained profits  (223.2)  (107.7)

 (2,086.7)  (1,870.0)

6%

1%
17%

20%

56%

VALUE-ADDED STATEMENT 2011

Retained
Government
Financiers
Re-invested
Employees

11%

11%

21%

56%

VALUE-ADDED STATEMENT 2012

Retained
Government
Financiers
Re-invested
Employees

1%
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Mpact intends to:

 Develop and selectively grow its leading market positions in rigid plastic packaging, paper-based packaging and packaging paper in 

sub-Saharan Africa, where the Group is able to extract value through business, operational and management expertise as well as 

from product application, design and market knowledge.

 Further develop its manufacturing and service footprint to deliver superior solutions to the Group’s customers, underpinned by:

• a decentralised structure reflecting management depth and experience at all levels;

• an innovative customer-focused product offering; and

• leading market positions that enable the Group to achieve sustainable cost-effectiveness through economies of scale.

 Focus on performance through business excellence programmes and sound asset management enabling Mpact to:

• provide its customers with quality products and services;

• retain a motivated and skilled workforce; and

• deliver good returns to its shareholders. 

As part of Mpact’s overall optimisation strategy, the Group has established business excellence programmes aimed at reducing 

costs and improving profitability. These programmes specifically focus on operational performance and prudent asset management 

and target continuous improvements in productivity, efficiency and reliability of operations, cost reduction programmes and profit 

improvement initiatives. The Group is committed to sustainable development in each of its businesses by adopting leading industry 

health and safety standards, obtaining raw materials from various sources and ensuring the businesses constantly seek to reduce 

the environmental impact.

STRATEGY AND OBJECTIVES

  

Specific strategic goals have been developed for the Plastics 
and Paper businesses and these strategic goals are set out 
in the respective operational reviews

THE THREE KEY PILLARS 
OF MPACT’S BUSINESS 

STRATEGY ARE

Its leading
market

position

Customer-focused
operating
structure

A
focus on

performance
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Stakeholder engagement, which is encouraged by King III and the Companies Act, also requires a company to embrace engagement 

with its shareholders, employees, unions, suppliers, communities and consumers. Through a comprehensive stakeholder identification 

process undertaken by management and guided by the Group’s external advisors, Deloitte & Touche, Mpact’s primary stakeholders 

have been identified. Mpact regards the transparent and open communication with its stakeholders as important. The Group recently 

implemented a Stakeholder Engagement Policy to formalise its interaction with its stakeholders.

The main stakeholders identified by Mpact are:

STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT 

SUPPLIERS

EMPLOYEES

INDUSTRY 
ASSOCIATIONS

FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS
AND BANKS

COMMUNITY 
ORGANISATIONS

SHAREHOLDERS AND THE
INVESTMENT COMMUNITY

CUSTOMERS

GOVERNMENT INSTITUTIONS 
AND REGULATORY AUTHORITIES

TRADE UNIONS
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STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT (continued)

Stakeholder Type of engagement Reasons for engaging 

Shareholders and the investment 
community

• Annual and interim results 
• Annual General Meeting 
• Media releases (including SENS) 
• Website
• Integrated Report 
• Road shows 
• One-on-one meetings 
• Site visits

Communication of Group and segmental 
financial performance, growth prospects 
and other pertinent information

Customers • Customer calls
• Marketing materials 
• Website 
• Integrated Report 
• One-on-one meetings
• Trade shows  
• Access to the R&D/Innovation Centres 
• Customer satisfaction surveys

• Price negotiations 
• Quality and service reviews 
• Product development 
• Market trends
• General updates

Suppliers • Supplier review meetings 
• Supplier audits 
• Conferences 
• Site visits 
• Award  functions 
• Trade shows

• Pricing, product quality, service 
and product specifications 

• Product development 
• Stockholding and security of supply 
• Safe working practices 
• General updates

Employees • Newsletters and notices 
• Intranet 
• Staff conference 
• Website 
• Results presentations 
• Mpact Tip-offs*
• Engagement with relevant 

trade unions 
• Imbizos 
• Meetings
• Appraisals

• Skills development, 
• Safe working practices
• Transformation 
• Succession 
• Business developments and 

performance 
• General updates 
• The reporting of fraud and other 

related issues
• Remuneration and performance 

appraisals

Trade unions • Bargaining Council meetings 
• Other regular meetings as agreed 

in recognition and operational 
agreements 

• Consultations when required

• Transformation, 
• Wage negotiations 
• Health and safety practices 
• Skills development

Government institutions  
and regulatory authorities

• Meetings 
• Site inspections 
• Direct  responses to information 

requests 
• Integrated tax audits (SARS)
• Operating licence applications

• Water licence applications 
• Environmental matters such as air 

emissions, waste management, 
electricity usage, etc

• Additional  tax information 
and reconciliation requests

• Ensure understanding of 
industry issues

*  Mpact Tip-offs is a confidential reporting line available to employees. It is managed by Deloitte & Touche and is therefore independent of the company 

For more information, please see the 2012 Sustainability Review available on the company’s website
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Stakeholder Type of engagement Reasons for engaging 

Community organisations • Public forums 
• Meetings with specific community 

groups and associations

• Local community developmental 
projects 

• Education, training 
• Other matters of concern 

to communities

Industry associations • Committee meetings of various 
industry associations

• To promote industry-wide issues on a 
regional and national basis

Financial institutions
and banks

• Meetings and conferences on 
economic outlook and forecasts

• Annual and interim results
• Integrated Report

• Economic forecasts and funding 
of improvements

• To increase confidence and trust 
between Mpact and its key financial 
institutions 

• To reduce the cost of funding
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DIRECTORATE

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

 Anthony John Phillips (Tony) (66)

Chairman

BSc (Eng) (University of KwaZulu-Natal)

Tony is an Independent Non-executive Director and 

the Chairman of Mpact. He previously held the position 

of CEO of Barloworld, serves as Chairman on a number of 

companies’ boards of directors, and is involved in various 

Non-Governmental Organisations (NGOs) including the 

World Wildlife Fund and Nurturing Orphans of AIDS for 

Humanity (NOAH).

 Neo Phakama Dongwana (40)

BCom, Post-Graduate Diploma in Accounting, BCom (Hons) 

(University of Cape Town), CA (SA)

Neo is an Independent Non-executive Director of Mpact. 

She is a Chartered Accountant by profession and has previously 

served in the position of Audit Partner at Deloitte. She is also 

a Non-executive Director of Anglovaal Industries Limited, 

Barloworld Limited, Barloworld South African Proprietary 

Limited and the PPC Ntsika Fund Proprietary Limited. 

Neo is a member of the Education Committee of the IRBA 

and is a member of the FSB Appeal Board.

 Nomalizo Beryl Langa-Royds (Ntombi) (51)

BA (Law), LLB (National University of Lesotho)

Ntombi is an Independent Non-executive Director of Mpact. 

She also runs her own human resources consultancy business 

and has more than 25 years of experience in human resources. 

Ntombi is a Non-executive Director of companies such as 

African Bank Limited, African Bank Investments Limited (ABIL) 

and PPC Limited.

 Timothy Dacre Aird Ross (Tim) (68)

CTA (University of KwaZulu-Natal), CA (SA)

Tim is an Independent Non-executive Director and Chairman 

of the Audit and Risk Committee of Mpact. He previously (for a 

period of 37 years) held the position of Partner at Deloitte, and 

was the Head of Johannesburg Audit, Head of Client Services 

and a member of the Deloitte executive committee and Board. 

He is a Non-executive Director as well as Chairman of the audit 

committees of Liberty Life Holdings Limited, Liberty Group 

Limited, Eqstra Holdings Limited, Adcorp Holdings Limited 

and PPC Limited.

 Andrew Murray Thompson (55)

BSc (Eng) (University of the Witwatersrand), MBA (Finance) 

(Wharton School)

Andrew is an Independent Non-executive Director of Mpact. 

He is a current Non-executive Director of Adcock Ingram 

Holdings Limited and previously served as the CEO of Mondi 

Limited as well as an Executive Director of Anglo American 

South Africa Limited.

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

 Bruce William Strong (44)

CEO

BSc (Eng) (Summa cum laude) (University of KwaZulu-Natal), 

BCom (Hons) (University of South Africa)

Bruce has been the CEO of Mpact since March 2009. Prior to 

this, he was the General Manager of the Paper Manufacturing 

division of Mpact. He has 17 years of experience in the paper 

and packaging industry, both locally and in Europe.

 Brett David Vaughan Clark (48)

CFO

BCom, Post-Graduate Diploma in Accounting  

(University of Port Elizabeth), CA (SA), CIMA

Brett joined Mpact as CFO Designate and Executive Director 

with effect from 1 June 2012 and officially assumed the role 

of CFO on 1 July 2012. He is a Qualified Chartered Accountant 

and was previously a Principal at ABSA Capital Private Equity, 

an Executive Director of Brait Private Equity and CFO of Clover 

Industries Limited and Unihold Limited. Brett has also worked 

for Nampak Limited in various positions in South Africa  

and the United Kingdom.
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From left to right:
Brett Clark
Tony Phillips
Tim Ross
Neo Dongwana
Bruce Strong
Ntombi Langa-Royds 
Andrew Thompson
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 Raymond Crewe-Brown (Ray) (68)

BSc (Eng) (University of the Witwatersrand)

Ray has been the Executive Chairman of the Plastics business 

since October 2009. Prior to this, he was the founder and 

CEO of Astrapak until June 2008. He has more than 37 years 

of experience in the plastics industry.

 John William Hunt (49)

BSc (Eng), MSc (Eng) (University of KwaZulu-Natal)

John has held the position of Managing Director of the 

Recycling division since May 2011. He was also the Business 

Manager of Technology Optimisation until the end of February 

2012. He was previously the Executive Director of the Paper 

Manufacturers Association of South Africa and has 21 years 

of experience in the paper industry.

 Vuyokazi Menye (34)

BSc (Computer Science) (University of Western Cape)

Vuyokazi was appointed CIO with effect from 1 March 2012. 

Prior to being appointed to this position, Vuyokazi was CIO at 

Armscor and was previously Departmental Head of Information 

Resources Management at the National Energy Regulator of 

South Africa. Vuyokazi is currently completing her Masters 

in IT at the University of Pretoria.

 Mohlomi Mothobi (46)

BSc (Chemistry) (National University of Lesotho), BSc (Chem Eng) 

(University of Pretoria), MBA

Mohlomi joined Mpact as General Manager: Business 

Development in February 2012 from Tetra Pak where 

he worked for 11 years, most recently as the Projects 

and Engineering Manager for sub-Saharan Africa. Mohlomi’s 

main focus is on evaluating and developing business 

opportunities for Mpact beyond the regions in which the 

Group currently manufactures.

 Hugh Michael Thompson (47)

CTA (University of South Africa), CA (SA)

Hugh has been the Managing Director of the Paper 

Manufacturing division since October 2009. He fulfilled the 

role of CFO of Mpact until March 2007 and then the role of 

Managing Director of the Plastics division until September 

2009. He has 10 years of experience in the packaging sector. 

He was previously Senior Vice President (Corporate Finance) 

for Anglo American South Africa Limited.

 Ralph Peter von Veh (61)

Ralph is the Managing Director of the Corrugated division. 

He has been in this position since 1999, prior to which he 

was the Regional Director of Kohler Corrugated. He has 

36 years of experience in the paper and packaging industry. 

Ralph was elected as President of the Packaging Council 

of South Africa effective 29 November 2012.

COMPANY SECRETARY

 Noriah Sepuru (41)

FCIBM, ACIS

Noriah was appointed Group Company Secretary at Mpact from 

1 December 2011. Prior to this, Noriah was Company Secretary 

at Jasco Electronics Holdings Limited and spent four years at 

Barloworld in various company secretarial positions. Noriah is a 

member of the Institute of the Chartered Company Secretaries 

Association and a fellow member of the Chartered Institute 

of Business Management.

MANAGEMENT

Mpact has a well-balanced senior management 
team with many years of industry experience 
and the necessary strategic skills
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From left to right:
John Hunt
Ray Crewe-Brown
Noriah Sepuru
Vuyokazi Menye
Ralph von Veh
Mohlomi Mothobi 
Hugh Thompson



14
MPACT INTEGRATED REPORT 2012



15
MPACT INTEGRATED REPORT 2012

After the unbundling from Mondi Limited and listing of Mpact 
on 11 July 2011, we inherited a substantial number of small 
shareholders who held less than 500 Mpact ordinary shares 
each. As a consequence of the cost of servicing a shareholder 
base of more than 30,000, the Board took a decision to make 
an odd-lot offer to shareholders holding less than 100 ordinary 
shares and a specific offer to the shareholders holding between 
100 and 500 ordinary shares. On 9 July 2012, we announced 
the successful repurchase of a total of 470,820 ordinary shares, 
representing 0.29% of the issued share capital of the company 
for a total consideration of approximately R8.1 million. The 
number of shareholders was reduced by 27,240, representing 
approximately 86% of the total number of shareholders.

THE YEAR IN PERSPECTIVE

This year has been challenging with no signs of the global 
economic turmoil abating, increases in raw material inputs, 
energy and labour costs as well as a highly competitive South 
African market. We also faced competition from international 
companies. As one of the leading paper and plastics packaging 
companies in South Africa, with a secure source of fibre through 
Mpact Recycling, we are less sensitive to some of these factors. 
We are not, however, immune to macro-economic conditions 
and this was evidenced most particularly in the FMCG sector 
where consumer spending came under pressure.

Above-average inflation rates and significant increases in 
fuel, coal, energy and wages were exacerbated by high 
externally-sourced raw material costs. The price of international 
commodities, such as pulp and plastic polymers, are driven 
primarily by the Rand exchange rate and global inventory 
levels. These factors have had an adverse effect on the cost 
of raw materials used in Mpact’s production processes. Mpact 
experienced a lag in the recovery of some of these increases.

On the positive side, the weaker Rand deterred imports and 
enabled the Group to export more of its products, a trend 
mirrored by some of Mpact’s customers such as the export fruit 
producers. During 2012, many of the players in the paper and 
packaging industries also took the opportunity to streamline 
their operations as a result of the changing global and local 
market conditions of weak demand, overcapacity and rising 
input costs.

Taking these factors into consideration, over which Mpact 
has limited control, we are more than satisfied with the 
results achieved by the Group. Mpact continues to place great 
emphasis on consistently improving the quality of its product 
designs, enhancing production efficiencies by upgrading 
or replacing machinery in the manufacturing plants and 
increasing innovation.

CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT

DEAR STAKEHOLDER

I am pleased to report a credible set of results for the year ended 31 December 2012, 
the first full year of Mpact’s listing on the Main Board of the JSE. The Group has made 
great strides in improving its report ing by implementing King III, the JSE Listings 
Requirements, the Companies Act, as well as other guidelines on Corporate Governance. 
The Board is satisfied that Mpact is moving towards an enhanced Integrated Report.

YEAR IN REVIEW 

Tony Phillips

Chairman
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Mpact endeavours to pursue environmentally sustainable 
practices where possible. This includes an investigation into 
the recycling of plastics.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE AND SUSTAINABILITY

During the year we established an IT Steering Committee, 
appointed KPMG to fulfil the role of Internal Auditor and 
expanded the functions and responsibilities of the Audit 
and Risk Committee, the Remuneration and Nomination 
Committee and the Social and Ethics Committee. Mpact is 
cognisant of its responsibility to adhere to good corporate 
governance principles and we are satisfied that sufficient 
controls and measures are in place for Exco to manage 
the Group responsibly. 

We strive to uplift the communities in which we operate 
and participated in various social initiatives during the year. 
We are developing measures to further assess the impact 
of our operations on the environment.

The Corporate Governance report is on pages 25 to 31 and 
the 2012 Sustainability Review has been published on the 
Group’s website, www.mpact.co.za.

B-BBEE LEVEL

Mpact is committed to B-BBEE and currently has a Level 4 
B-BBEE Contributor Status. 

On 25 October 2012, Shanduka notified the company that 
it had disposed of its entire shareholding, being 17,150,154 
ordinary shares, representing 10.48% of the company’s shares 
in issue. Shanduka had acquired an interest in Mondi Packaging 
South Africa Proprietary Limited (as Mpact was then known) 
in 2005 as part of a B-BBEE transaction and received Mpact 
ordinary shares when Mpact was demerged from Mondi 
Limited in July 2011. According to Shanduka, the rationale for 
disposing of their interest was that their private equity fund, 
Shanduka Value Partners 1, reached maturity and they had to 
settle the debt attributable to the fund. The sale of their shares 
in no way reflected their view on the prospects of the company. 
We appreciate the supportive role that Shanduka has played as 
a B-BBEE shareholder in the company.

The exit of Shanduka as a shareholder may have an effect on 
Mpact’s B-BBEE ownership; however, we intend to continue 
working on all elements of the B-BBEE scorecard to ensure 
that a competitive rating is maintained. In the interim, the 
current accreditation and Level 4 B-BBEE Contributor Status 
remains valid until early July 2013. We do not believe this 
will have a material impact on existing business with the 
Group’s customers.

Mpact is aware of the revised B-BBEE Codes of Good Practice 
currently issued for public comment. The company will 
endeavour to align its B-BBEE initiatives, in consultation 
with the various interested stakeholders, once certainty 
and clarity on the parameters of the new B-BBEE Codes has 
been obtained.

BOARD CHANGES

Following the retirement of Les Leong on 30 June 2012, 
Brett Clark assumed the role of CFO on 1 July 2012. Other than 
this change, there have been no other changes to the Board at 
the date of this Integrated Report.

OUTLOOK

We expect macro-economic conditions to remain unchanged 
over the short term. The various business interventions 
undertaken by the Group during 2012 should start to bear fruit 
in the 2013 financial year.

We are constantly investigating potential acquisitions; however, 
we apply stringent criteria and we will only acquire businesses 
that have the potential to increase shareholder value.

APPRECIATION

I would like to thank my fellow Board members for their 
valuable input and guidance during the year; it is much 
appreciated.

To Bruce Strong, his management team and the employees of 
Mpact, I would like to express my appreciation on behalf of the 
Board for their efforts and commitment to the company. 

Tony Phillips
Chairman

CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT (continued)
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Whilst there were early indications of an economic recovery, 

albeit modest, the South African economy showed subdued 

real GDP growth, rising raw material input and administered 

prices, high levels of unemployment, strikes across many 

sectors, above-inflation wage increases and a weak Rand, all 

of which underpinned a very competitive trading environment.

Despite this, the weaker Rand helped us regain market share 

from imports in the Paper Manufacturing business and achieve 

good growth in sales to export fruit producers who also 

benefited from improved fruit yields.

2012 OVERVIEW

The Group reported an increase of 8.6% in revenue to 

R6.8 billion (December 2011: R6.3 billion), largely as a result 

of sales volumes which were up 5.7% compared to 2011. Sales 

volumes in the continuing businesses (i.e. the Group excluding 

Paperlink which was sold in March 2011) were up 7.8% and 

the associated revenue 10.9%. I am especially satisfied with 

the growth achieved by the business as market conditions 

remained competitive.

Underlying operating profit increased by 13.2% to R585 million 

and the Group’s operating margin to 8.6% (December 2011: 

8.2%) for the year under review. The operating profit, as well as 

margin, was positively influenced by improved productivity and 

stringent cost control and was achieved despite the challenging 

trading environment limiting our ability to realise price 

increases to cover inflation. 

Underlying profit before taxation was up by 77.3% to 

R466 million (December 2011: R263 million), reflecting the 

improved trading performance, as well as the effect of the 

lower finance costs, as a result of net debt having been 

substantially reduced as part of the capital restructuring prior 

to listing in July 2011.

The effective tax rate for the year to 31 December 2012 was 

30% (2011: 38.6%) mainly due to disallowed non-productive 

loan interest. Mpact has recognised tax losses amounting to 

R495 million.

Underlying earnings and headline earnings were R313 million 

and R307 million for the year ended 31 December 2012 

(December 2011: R169 million and R89 million), respectively. 

The Board declared a total gross dividend of 70 cents per share 

Bruce Strong

Chief Executive Officer

2012 marks the first full financial year for Mpact as a listed company. The Group has 
delivered a commendable set of results, despite being faced with numerous challenges 
during the year. 

CHIEF EXECUTIVE  
OFFICER’S REPORT
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(December 2011: 40 cents per share) during the year, which 

amounts to an increase of 75% and equates to a dividend cover 

ratio of 2.7 times.

Cash generated by operations, before working capital, 

remained strong at R914 million (December 2011: 

R765 million).

The Group reported a net asset value per share of 1,615.4 cents 

compared to the 1,470.3 cents achieved in the prior year. 

The Group’s Statement of Financial Position remained solid with 

a net debt position of R1.1 billion (December 2011: R1.3 billion) 

and an acceptable net gearing ratio of 29% (December 2011: 

35%). Mpact has funding facilities in place of R2 billion. The 

ROCE for the financial year was 16.0% (December 2011: 13.8%), 

which is above the target set by the company of 15% through 

the cycle.

Capital expenditure for the year of R363 million was 

higher than the depreciation charge of R310 million 

and was principally to maintain competitive capacity in 

existing businesses. 

REVIEW OF OPERATIONS

The Paper business performed well on the back of volume 

increases as a result of improved agricultural sector 

growth and market share gains against imported product. 

Revenue increased by 10.3% to R5,042 million (December 

2011: R4,573 million) with operating profit up 10.1% to 

R511 million (December 2011: R510 million). This business 

was able to maintain its operating profit margin at 11.2% 

through cost containment, particularly waste paper and 

improved productivity.

The Plastics business continued to make good progress over 

the year with revenue up 12.8% to R1,778 million and operating 

profit up 16.7% to R117 million. Approximately 3% revenue 

growth is attributable to the RA Plastics acquisition earlier 

in the year with the balance of 9.8% attributable to higher 

average selling prices and good volume growth. The integration 

of the PET tray business (RA Plastics) acquired early in 2012 

has progressed well. In 2013 we will look to further optimising 

the operations and product offering of this business which we 

believe offers good growth potential. 

Agreements have been concluded with Amalgamated Beverage 

Industries (ABI) for the supply of preforms and closures until 

2017. While operating margins in the initial period are slightly 

lower than 2011, the returns for Mpact over the full duration 

of the agreement are acceptable.

The operational review of the Paper and Plastics businesses is 

set out in detail on pages 21 to 23 of this Integrated Report.

SUSTAINABILITY

Mpact is committed to sound sustainability principles which 

underpin our business strategy and operations. We believe 

that our leading market position can only be maintained 

with business practices that are based on long-term 

sustainable development. 

In the Sustainability Review available on our website, we 

attempt to describe how we practice and implement the 

principles of sustainable development where we have 

direct influence and impact on economies, societies 

and environments.

STRATEGY

Our strategy going forward will continue to be based on three 

key pillars which are:

1.  Leading market positions

2.  A customer-focused operating structure

3.  A focus on performance across all aspects of the business

To sustain and grow our leading market positions we will 

continue to look for opportunities to generate new business 

and grow our market share in key products and geographical 

areas. Our focus at this point remains rigid plastics and paper 

based packaging in sub-Saharan Africa. We will also consider 

acquisitions where we are able to find value and strategic fit. 

Over the past 18 months we have spent considerable time 

and effort evaluating opportunities for growth in the rest 

of Africa beyond our existing operations and exports, which 

constituted approximately 10% of turnover in 2012. There is 

no doubting the good growth currently being realised in certain 

countries that also have scale and the potential of critical 

mass in terms of packaging. Our preferred approach will be 

to work alongside strategic partners in their home markets to 

exploit those opportunities where we can realise long-term 

value for our shareholders. We will continue to invest in our 

existing operations and our geographic footprint in order to 

meet the changing needs of our customers and also to remain 

cost competitive.

CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER’S REPORT (continued)
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While we are ambitious to grow we will remain focused on 

doing so while delivering good returns to our shareholders.

PROSPECTS

For the foreseeable future, we expect GDP and consumer 

demand growth to remain subdued in South Africa. We 

anticipate continued upward pressure on input costs such as 

labour, transport, electricity and municipal services.

Consequently, the Group expects trading conditions to remain 

highly competitive with the associated margin pressure.

Our focus for the year will be on maintaining our market 

positions, productivity improvement and finding new 

business opportunities.

The Group is confident that its strategy and resilience positions 

Mpact well in the sectors in which its operates.

APPRECIATION

I would like to extend a heartfelt thanks to the Board for their 

support and guidance during this year. To my fellow Exco 

members and Mpact employees, thank you for your hard 

work and dedication during a year where we have faced many 

economic and trading challenges; the results are testimony 

of your invaluable input.

In July 2012 we welcomed Brett Clark as CFO, replacing 

Les Leong who retired. Brett has settled well and is already 

making an invaluable contribution to the management of the 

Group. We thank Les for his contribution to the Group’s success 

and wish him well in his retirement.

I would also like to express my gratitude towards our 

customers, suppliers, advisers and shareholders for your 

support during the year. We are expecting 2013 to remain 

challenging, but we assure you of our commitment to meet 

the challenges and in the process unlock stakeholder value.

Bruce Strong

Chief Executive Officer
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REVIEW OF OPERATIONS

PAPER BUSINESS
FINANCIAL REVIEW

ACTIVITIES

Recycling
Mpact is the largest paper recycler in South Africa, recycling 

approximately 45% of all paper recovered annually in the 

country. Recovered paper sources include pre- and post-

consumer material sourced from a multitude of paper 

pickup programmes including commercial, kerbside, schools, 

communities, housing complexes, offices and an extensive 

network of agents and dealers.

The rebranding to Mpact Recycling was completed during the 

year under review. 

Of the 457,000 tonnes (2011: 450,000 tonnes) recovered paper 

collected by the Group in 2012, 73% (2011: 70%) was consumed 

internally in the production of packaging and industrial papers, 

while the remaining portion was sold to external customers, 

including Mondi Shanduka Newsprint, for its newsprint 

production. Mondi has a 25% interest in Mpact Recycling.

Paper Manufacturing
The Paper Manufacturing division manufactures recycled-based 

packaging and industrial paper grades such as containerboard 

and cartonboard. Between 20% and 40% of the containerboard 

manufactured by the Group is consumed internally in the 

production of corrugated board and the remaining portion is 

sold to other producers of corrugated packaging products. 

The actual proportion of internally or externally sourced 

containerboard consumed in any period by the Corrugated 

division depends upon the grade required for the final product. 

In addition, Mpact sells Baywhite™ ProVantage, a premium 

quality white top kraftliner produced by Mondi Limited, for 

which the Group has exclusive distribution rights in South Africa 

and the rest of sub-Saharan Africa. 

The combined sales of recycled containerboard and 

cartonboard for the year ended 31 December 2012 

amounted to 407,297 tonnes (2011: 379,249 tonnes). 

The containerboard produced comprises, on average, 

approximately 35% hardwood, softwood and bagasse pulp 

and 65% recycled fibre-based pulp. The main market for these 

products is the corrugated packaging industry. 

The Group’s customers for packaging and industrial paper 

include corrugated board and box producers which require 

containerboard, such as the Corrugated division and other 

containerboard converters. Cartonboard is sold to folding 

carton and other producers of industrial products, as well as 

for other uses such as cards and book covers. 

The top 10 external packaging and industrial paper customers 

represented approximately 66% of external sales in 2012 (2011: 

67%). Approximately 12% (2011: 12%) of the cartonboard and 

containerboard produced by the Group in 2012 was exported, 

predominantly to other African countries.

Corrugated
The Corrugated division manufactures and sells a 

comprehensive range of printed and unprinted converted 

corrugated products, including board, which are used to 

manufacture corrugated packaging, corrugated boxes, die-cut 

cases, folded glued cases, trays and point-of-sale displays. 

All packaging is custom-made to specific customer needs and 

can be printed as required on site. The aim of the Corrugated 

division is to manufacture top-end quality corrugated packaging 

products and provide high graphic printing capabilities. As a 

result, the Group has maintained its leading market position by 

focusing on investments in modern technology and training, 

customer relationship management and a decentralised 

operating structure to provide constant improvements to 

the products the Group supplies. 

In addition to the corrugated box plants, each with corrugator 

and converting facilities, and the corrugated sheet plants in 

Mozambique and Namibia, the Group has an interest in several 

corrugated sheet plants throughout South Africa.

REVENUE  (R’million)

Dec 2011 Dec 2012

4,572.6
5,042.4

OPERATING PROFIT (R’million)

Dec 2011 Dec 2012

510.7
562.4

1

OPERATING ASSETS  (R’million)

Dec 2011 Dec 2012

2,743.6 2,837.4

1  In the current year the internal cost re-allocation basis between the Paper business and Corporate Office was changed to provide a more meaningful 
representation of the segment’s performance. Had this change been effected in the prior year, the operating profit for the Paper business would have 
been R510.7 million. Corporate costs for the same period would have decreased as a result of the re-allocation
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The Corrugated division had sales of 413 million m2 

of corrugated packaging in 2012 (2011: 391 million m2).

Corrugated customers include producers of agricultural, FMCG 

and other durable and non-durable goods that use packaging 

primarily for the protection of products in transit and for point-

of-sale display. Converted packaging products generally have 

a localised customer base. Each of the corrugated packaging 

operations has a large number of customers located within 

approximately 160km. 

The top 10 corrugated packaging customers represented 

approximately 27% (2011: 26%) of the Group’s external 

corrugated packaging sales in 2012.

RESULTS FOR 2012

The Paper business achieved an increase in revenue of 10.3% to 

R5 042 million (December 2011: R4 573 million) and underlying 

operating profit was up 10.1% to R562 million (December 

2011: R511 million). The results were achieved on the back 

of improved sales of fruit packaging and market share gains 

against imported product. Sales volumes for the second half 

of the year also exceeded the first half, in line with the seasonal 

trends experienced by this business. The underlying operating 

profit margin was maintained at 11.2% due to stringent cost 

containment and increased productivity.

The Recycling division performed well and reported a slight 

increase in volumes, meeting the fibre requirements for 

Mpact’s paper mills.

The Paper Manufacturing division delivered a stable 

performance, but experienced margin pressure as a result 

of the competitive environment and not being able to fully 

recover the increases in input costs. Volumes increased 

primarily as a result of displaced imports as well as improved 

trade with the Group’s cross-border customers. 

The Corrugated division reported a good set of results. 

Improved sales volumes to the agricultural sector were partially 

offset by disappointing growth in the FMCG sector due to the 

strain on consumer spending.

During the year, Mpact won four awards at the 2012 

Flexographic Technical Association of South Africa’s 

Flexographic Print Excellence Awards. Mpact Corrugated 

Western Cape (Epping and Kuils River) also received a WorldStar 

Award for the Parmalat/KFC freezer transit pack.

STRATEGY AND OBJECTIVES

The strategy for the Recycling division is to increase the amount 

and proportion of directly sourced recovered paper for use in 

the manufacturing of paper products. This will allow further 

input cost management and improved quality throughout 

the paper packaging value chain, as well as securing the 

source of a key raw material into the Paper Manufacturing 

operations. Mpact is also investigating various plastic 

recycling opportunities.

Mpact strives to maintain its leading market position in the 

Corrugated and Paper Manufacturing divisions by continuously 

improving the quality and design of its products while 

increasing the efficiency of production. This will be achieved 

by sustained investment in plant and equipment to ensure that 

the business remains at the forefront of technological advances 

and cost competitiveness in the industry.

RISK AND SUSTAINABILITY

Specific risks

The major risks that could specifically influence the Paper 

business and which are managed on a continuous basis are 

disclosed in the Risk Management section on pages 32 to 35 

of this Integrated Report.

Sustainability

The social and environmental initiatives undertaken by the 

Paper business are set out in the Sustainability Review, which 

is available on the company’s website, www.mpact.co.za 

Included in the Sustainability Review are product initiatives 

and accreditations of all the manufacturing operations.

Industry associations

 Paper Recycling Association of South Africa (PRASA)

 Paper Manufacturing Association of South Africa (PAMSA)

 Packaging Council of South Africa (PACSA)

 Printing South Africa – Statutory Council

 Institute of Packaging

PAPER BUSINESS (continued)
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ACTIVITIES

The Plastics business manufactures a range of plastic packaging 
products for the food, beverage, personal care, homecare, 
pharmaceutical, agricultural and retail markets primarily in 
South Africa. Mpact is one of the leading producers of rigid 
plastic packaging in southern Africa. 

The products include: 
 PET preforms, bottles and jars;
 closures for carbonated soft drinks and water;
 plastic jumbo bins, wheelie bins and plastic crates;
  plastic FMCG containers, such as bottles, jars and closures, 

with in-mould labelling; and
  styrene and PET trays, fast food containers and clear 

plastic films. 

Mpact converted 82,886, tonnes (2011: 78,694 tonnes) 
of plastics in 2012, including the production of 1.2 billion 
(2011: over one billion) preforms for PET bottles. 

Styrene trays, fast food containers and clear plastic films are 
produced at two sites, in Paarl and Harare. Large injection 
moulded plastic jumbo bins for the agricultural market, 
“wheelie” bins and plastic crates are produced at the Group’s 
plants in Atlantis and Brits. The other four sites, situated in 
Robertville, Wadeville, Pinetown and Atlantis manufacture 
injection and blow-moulded preforms, bottles, containers 
and closures for the food, beverage, personal care, homecare 
and pharmaceutical industries. 

The Plastics business sources raw materials from a number of 
South African and international suppliers. This business serves 
a diverse customer base from multi-nationals to regional 
manufacturers in the FMCG sector (such as carbonated soft 
drink makers and producers of personal care, homecare, 
pharmaceuticals and food products), fast food producers, 
agricultural producers and retail chains. 

The top 10 plastics customers represented 39% (2011: 43%) 
of the Plastics business’ sales in 2012.

RESULTS FOR 2012

The Plastics business experienced a satisfactory year despite 
coming off a low base, with revenue increasing by 12.8% to 

R1,778 million. The growth in revenue was attributable to 
organic growth of 9.8% and 3.0% to the RA Plastics acquisition 
concluded  in February 2012. Underlying operating profit was 
up 16.7% to R117 million with the underlying operating profit 
margin increasing to 6.6% from 6.3% in the previous financial 
year. Improvement in the operating profit margin was mainly as 
a result of volume growth and higher average selling prices in 
the exisiting businesses. Agreements for the supply of preforms 
and closures to ABI until 2017 were concluded during 2012.

The relocation of the closures plant to Wadeville was 
successfully completed during the period and the integration of 
the PET tray business has progressed well.

STRATEGY AND OBJECTIVES

The Plastics business has strong potential for growth as 
producers continue to substitute packaging such as glass 
and metals with rigid plastics. Mpact intends to seek both 
strategic growth opportunities as well as organic growth 
through optimisation and new projects where management 
identifies convincing business opportunities. Additionally, 
the manufacturing facilities will be utilised to ensure that 
production is closer to customers in order to improve service 
levels and reduce transport costs.

RISK AND SUSTAINABILITY

Specific risks
The major risks that could specifically influence the Plastics 
business and which are managed on a continuous basis are 
disclosed in the Risk Management section on pages 32 to 35 
of this Integrated Report.

Sustainability
The social and environmental initiatives undertaken by the 
Plastics division are set out in the Sustainability Review, which 
is available on the company’s website, www.mpact.co.za 
Included in the Sustainability Review are product initiatives 
and accreditations of all the manufacturing operations.

Industry associations
 PETCO
 Plastics SA
 Polystyrene Packaging Council

PLASTICS BUSINESS
FINANCIAL REVIEW

REVENUE (R’million)

Dec 2011 Dec 2012

1,576.6

1,778.4

OPERATING PROFIT (R’million)

Dec 2011 Dec 2012

100.0
1

116.7

OPERATING ASSETS (R’million)

Dec 2011 Dec 2012

1,120.9

1,296.0

1  In the current year the internal cost re-allocation basis between the Plastics business and Corporate Office was changed to provide a more meaningful 
representation of the segment’s performance. Had this change been effected in the prior year, the operating profit for the Plastics business would have 
been R510.7 million. Corporate costs for the same period would have decreased as a result of the re-allocation
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

COMMITMENT AND APPROACH TO CORPORATE 
GOVERNANCE

The Board endorses and accepts full responsibility for the 

application of corporate governance principles. In discharging 

this responsibility, the Board ensures that effective corporate 

governance is practiced consistently throughout the Group by 

complying with the requirements of King III, the JSE Listings 

Requirements, the Companies Act and GRI Index in both letter 

and spirit.

The Audit and Risk Committee, the Remuneration and 

Nomination Committee as well as the Social and Ethics 

Committee fulfil key roles in ensuring good corporate 

governance is practiced throughout the Group.

Integrated reporting

Mpact has adopted integrated reporting in line with the 

recommendations of King III and guidance provided within the 

Framework for Integrated Reporting and the Integrated Report, 

a discussion paper published by the Integrated Reporting 

Committee of South Africa, the report of the International 

Integrated Reporting Committee and the JSE Listings 

Requirements’ Guidelines on Good Corporate Governance, 

Section 8.63(a)(i)(ii). In the sustainable development reporting 

and in determining the material issues, the Group has adopted 

the GRI’s G3 guidelines. A GRI content index is provided on 

pages 77 to 79 of the Integrated Report.

King III, Companies Act and JSE Listings Requirements

The Group continues to measure the effects of King III, the 

Companies Act and the JSE Listings Requirements on its 

governance structures and processes.

The Group has implemented a process to address the non-

compliance issues identified during the compilation of the 2011 

Integrated Report and has progressed well in addressing most 

of the non-compliance issues identified.

During the year under review, a self-assessment was 

undertaken by the Board to determine non-compliance in terms 

of King III guidelines on corporate governance. The Group has 

supplied an explanation and indicated the extent of the Group’s 

non-compliance as well as compliance with the 75 principles of 

King III which is set out in the various sections.

The benefits of the newly established IT Steering Committee 

were noted. Review and approval of various Group policies, 

procedures and work plans resulted in better integrated and 

refined internal processes of its operations.

Snapshot of King III application

The dashboard below has been compiled as a snapshot of 

the Group’s application of the King III Code of Governance 

Principles. The dashboard is meant to reflect the Group’s 

governance implementation and compliance status. 

The remainder of the report provides more detail regarding 

the Group’s application of good governance principles in 

accordance with the JSE Listings Requirements.

GOVERNANCE AND SUSTAINABILITY REVIEW

AAA 100%

SUMMARY REPORT (CURRENT REVIEW)

Registration number: 2004/025229/06
Run Time: 4/3/2013 10:22

 AAA – Highest application
 AA – High application
 BB – Noteable application
 B – Moderate application
 C – Application to be improved
 L – Low applicartion

OVERALL SCORE COMPLETENESS METER

APPLICATION METER WEIGHTING GRAPHIC
STATUS CATEGORY SCORE

Board composition AAA
Remuneration AAA
Governance office bearers AAA
Board role and duties AAA
Accountability AAA
Performance assessment AAA
Board committees AAA
Group Boards AAA

Board composition

Remuneration

Governance office bearers

Board role and duties

Accountability

Board committees

Performance assessment

Group Boards

Applied Explained and  compensated for Not applied

Source: Governance Assessment Instrument (GAI) – Institute of Directors
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ETHICAL LEADERSHIP AND CORPORATE 
CITIZENSHIP 

Application

Ethical leadership: Stakeholders

Mpact’s approach to corporate governance strives to 

include all stakeholders, is based on good communication 

and is integrated into every aspect of the business. Mpact is 

committed to communicating its strategy and activities to the 

Group’s shareholders and its stakeholders through a planned 

investor relations programme. Through a comprehensive 

stakeholder identification process undertaken by management 

and guided by the Group’s external auditor, Deloitte & Touche, 

Mpact’s primary stakeholders have been identified. The details 

are set out in the Stakeholder Engagement section on pages 7 

to 9 of the Integrated Report.

Code of Ethics

A Code of Ethics is in place which sets out the Group’s standards 

of integrity and ethics in dealings with suppliers, customers, 

business partners, stakeholders, Government and society at 

large. Every employee is expected to subscribe to the Code, 

which requires all to act with honesty and integrity in all 

dealings with stakeholders.

The Board, subsidiary directors and prescribed officers 

are required to disclose their personal financial interests 

and interests in contracts in terms of Section 75(4) of the 

Companies Act. The Group ensures that directors and 

prescribed officers are free of any conflicts between the 

obligations they have to the company and their private 

interests. Directors are required to disclose any potential 

conflict at regular meetings and as and when necessary to 

the Company Secretary.

Fraud and illegal acts

The Group takes a zero tolerance approach to fraudulent 

behaviour and illegal acts. A whistle-blowing facility is in place 

and incidents are reported to and monitored by the Audit 

and Risk Committee.

Ethical leadership: Environment

The Board is aware that it should provide effective leadership 

based on an ethical foundation that does not compromise the 

natural environment. Mpact takes into consideration the impact 

the Group has on the environment, its involvement in the 

communities in which it operates and in which its employees 

live. The Group has put controls in place to mitigate the impact 

of its operations on the environment.

Legal compliance

The Board does not deem it necessary to appoint a Chief 

Compliance Officer. The Company Secretary, together with 

the Internal Audit function, the Legal Advisor and the risk 

management function, assist the Board in ensuring that 

there is an appropriate process in place with respect to legal 

compliance. Compliance with laws and regulations is reported 

to the Audit and Risk Committee.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Application

Role and function

The Board is a unitary body that is effective in leading and 

controlling the Group. The Board comprises seven directors. 

There are two executive directors, the CEO and CFO. The 

remaining five directors, two of whom are women, as well 

as the Board Chairman, are all independent non-executive 

directors, whose independence has been assessed in line with 

the recommended King III guidelines.

Board practices

The Board is ultimately responsible for the Group’s business, 

approval of the strategy and key policies and is the focal point 

and custodian of corporate governance at Mpact. The Board 

is also responsible for approving the Group’s financial objectives 

and targets.

The roles of the Chairman and CEO are separate. The Board 

is led by the Chairman, who is elected by the Board 

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (continued)
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annually, while operational management of the Group is the 

responsibility of the CEO. No business of the Group is managed 

by a third party.

The Board recognises the necessity for directors to occasionally 

seek independent professional advice at the Group’s expense 

and there is an agreed procedure for this.

A minimum of four Board meetings are scheduled per financial 

year. Additional Board meetings may be convened when 

necessary. Well-structured agendas and comprehensive papers 

are circulated to Board members on a timely basis, ensuring 

that they are well informed and that debate and decisions are 

constructive and sound.

The Board charter is in line with King III and the Companies Act. 

The purpose of this charter is to set out the mission, duties and 

responsibilities of the Board, as well as the requirements for its 

composition and meeting procedures. A summary of the duties 

of the Board as outlined in the Board charter are:

  Provides leadership based on an ethical foundation 

and ensures that the Group’s ethics are effectively 

managed.

  Appreciates that strategy, risk, performance and 

sustainability are inseparable.

  Acts as the focal point for, and custodian,  

of corporate governance.

  Has a responsibility to all stakeholders, which include 

present and potential beneficiaries of the Group’s products 

and services, clients and employees, to achieve continuing 

prosperity for the Group.

  Reviews and approves financial objectives, plans and 

actions, including cost allocations and expenditures.

  Ensures that the Group is a responsible citizen by having 

regard not only to the financial aspects of the business, 

but also the impact that the business operations may have 

socially and environmentally.

  Ensures that the Group complies with applicable laws and 

considers adherence to non-binding rules and standards.

Appointments to the Board

The Remuneration and Nomination Committee recommends 

appropriate candidates to the Board; they in turn are approved 

by the shareholders.

Non-executive directors bring an independent view to the 

Board’s decision-making. As a group, they enjoy significant 

influence at meetings of the Board, ensuring an appropriate 

balance of power. This also ensures that no one director has 

unfettered decision-making powers. Generally, directors have 

been and will be nominated based on their calibre, knowledge, 

experience and the impact they are expected to have, as 

well as the time and attention they can devote to their roles. 

Appointment to the Board is via a formal and transparent 

process and is a matter for the Board as a whole. The 

Remuneration and Nomination Committee is responsible for 

vetting the individuals nominated for approval. New directors 

are taken through a formal induction programme and are 

provided with all the necessary background and information to 

familiarise them with issues affecting the Board.

Effective 1 June 2012, Brett Clark was appointed to the position 

of CFO following the retirement of Les Leong on 30 June 

2012. Brett was appointed as executive director with effect 

from 1 June 2012. He officially assumed the role of CFO at the 

beginning of July 2012.

Succession planning

Succession for the CEO, Chairman and senior management 

is reviewed annually by the Remuneration and Nomination 

Committee. Recommendations are made to the Board as 

required.

Rotation of directors

In terms of the MOI, one-third of the directors (other than 

the executive directors) retire by rotation and, if eligible, their 

names are submitted for re-election at the Annual General 

Meeting, accompanied by appropriate biographical details set 

out in the report to shareholders. Amongst other matters, the 

Board considers the independence and performance of each 

director due for re-election at the Annual General Meeting 

and makes an appropriate recommendation to shareholders in 

this regard.

Board and committee effectiveness evaluation

During the year, the Board conducted an evaluation of its 

effectiveness, reviewing its skills set, the effectiveness of the 

sub-committees and related corporate governance matters. 

This included one-on-one sessions involving the Board Chairman 

and each individual director to identify any areas of concern.

The Remuneration and Nomination Committee reviewed the 

efficiency of the Chairman of the Board and Chairpersons 

of the sub-committees and recommended to the Board the 

re-appointment of Tony Phillips as the Chairman of the Board 

for his leadership skills, experience and sound knowledge of 

the organisation’s strategy and governance expertise.

Strategic planning

The directors who are also members of Exco, namely Bruce 

Strong and Brett Clark, are involved in the day-to-day business 

activities of the Group. The Board defines the Group’s level 

of authority, reserving powers for the Board while delegating 

others to management.

The Exco formulates strategy, which is approved by the 

Board for implementation. The Board is responsible to the 

shareholders and other stakeholders for setting the strategic 

direction of the Group with the assistance of Exco. The Board 

meets with management at least annually to debate and 

agree on the proposed strategy and to consider long-term 

issues facing the Group as well as the environment in which 

it operates.
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Share dealings

The Group has adopted a share dealing policy requiring 

all directors, management and the Company Secretary to 

obtain prior written clearance from either the Chairman 

or the Company Secretary to deal in the company’s shares. 

The Chairman of the Board will in turn require prior written 

clearance from the Chairman of the Audit and Risk Committee. 

Closed periods (as defined in the JSE Listings Requirements) 

are observed as required. During these periods, the directors, 

management and employees are not permitted to deal 

in the company’s securities. Additional closed periods are 

enforced when the Group commences with a corporate activity 

and where a cautionary announcement (as defined in the 

JSE Listings Requirements) is published.

Company Secretary

Noriah Sepuru is the Company Secretary. The Company 

Secretary plays a vital role in the corporate governance of 

the Group. The Company Secretary is responsible to the 

Board for, inter alia, ensuring compliance with procedures 

and applicable statutes and regulations. To enable the Board 

to function effectively, all directors have full and timely 

access to information that may be relevant to the proper 

discharge of their duties. This includes information such as 

corporate announcements, investor communications and other 

developments which may affect the Group. This also includes 

access to management, where required.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (continued)

During the year under review, the Board conducted an 

evaluation of the Company Secretary’s effectiveness, 

qualification and experience. Noriah Sepuru has held a 

position of Company Secretary for eight years and has the 

requisite knowledge and experience to fulfil her duties and 

responsibilities. Details of her qualification are set out on 

page 12. Noriah is not a director of the company and maintains 

an arm’s length relationship with the Board as she acts 

independently from it. The appointment and removal of the 

Company Secretary is a matter for the Board as a whole.

The Company Secretary’s certification is set out on page 47 of 

the Integrated Report. 

Delegation of authority

The power and authority to lead, control, manage and 

conduct business, including the power and authority to 

delegate, is vested with the Board to ensure that Mpact 

remains a sustainable and viable business. This responsibility 

is facilitated by a well-developed governance structure. The 

committees assist the Board in discharging its responsibilities. 

This assistance is rendered in the form of recommendations 

and reports submitted to the Board meetings, ensuring 

transparency and full disclosure of committees’ activities. 

Each committee operates within the ambit of its defined 

terms of reference, which set out the composition, roles, 

responsibilities and delegated authority.
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BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established several committees in which non-executive directors play a pivotal role. The responsibilities delegated to 

the committees of the Board are formally documented in the terms of reference for each committee, which have been approved 

by the Board and are updated from time to time to keep abreast of developments in law and best practice in governance. There is 

transparency and full disclosure from Board committees to the Board. The committees’ Chairpersons provide the Board with a verbal 

report on recent committee activities and the minutes of committee meetings are available to the Board. The committees meet at least 

four times a year.

Director Board

Audit and Risk 

Committee

Remuneration 

and Nomination

Committee

Social and Ethics 

Committee

AJ Phillips* 4/4# 4/4 (invitee) 4/4# N/A

BW Strong 4/4 4/4 (invitee) 4/4 (invitee) 4/4 (invitee)

BDV Clark 2/2^ 2/2 (invitee) N/A N/A

L Leong 2/2^ 2/2 (invitee) N/A N/A

NP Dongwana* 4/4 4/4 N/A 4/4

NB Langa-Royds* 4/4 N/A 4/4 4/4#

TDA Ross* 4/4 4/4# 4/4 N/A

AM Thompson* 4/4 4/4 N/A 4/4

^ L Leong retired on 30 June 2012 and B Clark was appointed with effect from 1 June 2012
* Independent Non-executive Directors
# Chairperson
N/A Not a member of the committee

AUDIT AND RISK COMMITTEE

Application

Composition

The Audit and Risk Committee comprises three non-executive 

directors, all of whom are independent. Tim Ross is Chairman 

and Neo Dongwana and Andrew Thompson are the current 

members. The CEO, the CFO, a representative of KPMG, the 

independent internal auditor, and a representative of Deloitte 

& Touche, the independent external auditor, attend committee 

meetings by invitation.

Function

The Audit and Risk Committee provides the Board with 

additional assurance regarding the quality and reliability of 

financial information used by the Board and the financial 

statements for the Group on an annual basis. In addition, 

it considers and confirms to the shareholders of the 

appropriateness of the expertise and experience of the CFO. 

The committee also reviews the composition, experience and 

resources of the finance function. In addition, the Audit and 

Risk Committee reviews the internal control systems, the 

financial control systems, the accounting systems, reporting 

on the Internal Audit function and sets the Group’s policy 

on non-audit services provided by the internal and external 

auditors. It also liaises with the external auditors, monitors 

compliance with legal requirements, ensures management 

addresses any identified internal control weakness, assesses 

the performance of financial management, approves internal 

and external audit fees, budgets, plans and performance, 

and conducts an annual review and assessment of the business 

risks the Group faces.

The approval of the Integrated Report is also the responsibility 

of the Audit and Risk Committee. The committee members are 

appointed annually by the shareholders at the Annual General 

Meeting.

The major risks in terms of the economic factors that could 

potentially impact the financial performance of the Group have 

been identified and these risks are discussed in more detail on 

pages 32 to 35 of the Integrated Report.

Assurance

The Audit and Risk Committee Report can be found on 

pages 48 to 50 of the Integrated Report.

Risk appetite and tolerance

The Board will annually assess its approach to risk tolerance and 

appetite levels as well as set the levels of risk tolerance. The 

Board approved the Group’s Enterprise-wide Risk Management 

Policy on 4 December 2012 and reviewed the risk map and 

assessment of risk appetite and tolerance.

Internal Audit function

The Audit and Risk Committee ensures that the Internal Audit 

function is subject to an independent quality review every 

second year, commencing in 2014. During 2012, KPMG was 

appointed to manage the Internal Audit function.
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REMUNERATION AND NOMINATION COMMITTEE

Application

Composition

The Remuneration and Nomination Committee is chaired 

by Tony Phillips and its members are Tim Ross and Ntombi 

Langa-Royds, all independent non-executive directors.

Function

The Remuneration and Nomination Committee considers 

the remuneration policy of the Group with the assistance 

and guidance of independent experts, if required, and makes 

recommendations to the Board on all aspects of remuneration. 

The committee further ensures that the directors are fairly 

rewarded for their individual contributions to the Group’s 

overall performance. The committee also considers bonuses, 

which are discretionary and based upon general economic 

variables, the performance of the Group and the individual’s 

performance, share options and certain other employee 

benefits and schemes. No remuneration of any nature shall 

be paid, increased or varied to any director without the prior 

approval of the members of the committee.

The committee is also responsible for identifying and evaluating 

suitable potential candidates for appointment to the Board and 

recommending the same to the Board, which may then appoint 

such candidate in accordance with the MOI. Such appointment 

is valid until the following Annual General Meeting, where such 

director’s appointment shall be subject to confirmation.

Assurance

The Remuneration and Nomination Committee Report can be 

found on pages 37 to 44 of the Integrated Report.

Not applied 

During the year under review, the Chairman of the Board was 

the Chairman of the Remuneration and Nomination Committee. 

Subsequent to the review of the Board composition at the 

meeting of the Board held on 5 March 2013, the Board 

appointed Ntombi Langa-Royds as the Chairperson of the 

Remuneration Committee and Tony Phillips as the Chairman 

of the Nomination Committee in accordance with King III 

principles and JSE Listings Requirements.

SOCIAL AND ETHICS COMMITTEE

Application

Composition

The Social and Ethics Committee comprises Ntombi Langa-Royds 

(Chairperson), Neo Dongwana and Andrew Thompson as its 

members. All the members are independent non-executive 

directors.

Function

This committee is tasked with monitoring Mpact’s activities 

in respect of sustainability issues. It considers relevant 

legislation and best practices in terms of social and economic 

development (including B-BBEE), good corporate citizenship, 

the environment, safety and health, labour and employment.

The Social and Ethics Committee Report can be found on 

page 36 of the Integrated Report. The social involvement of the 

Group is set out in the Sustainability Review which is available 

on Mpact’s website.

Not applied

Sustainability reporting not independently assured

Sustainability reporting and disclosure should be independently 

assured. The Board has reviewed systems available in the 

market to assist in the process of collating environmental data. 

To date, no appropriate system could be acquired and the Social 

and Ethics Committee can therefore not express an opinion on 

the accuracy of the environmental data. No external assurance 

providers were engaged as Mpact was not in the position to 

have this data verified.

Assurance

The Social and Ethics Committee Report can be found on 

page 36 of the Integrated Report. The Social involvement 

of the Group is set out in the Sustainability Review which 

is available on Mpact’s website.

IT STEERING COMMITTEE

Application

Composition

The IT Steering Committee comprises of B Strong (Chairman), 

V Menye (Deputy Chairperson), K Jarvis (Independent 

Committee Member), B Clark, J Hunt, R Crewe-Brown, 

H Thompson, R von Veh, B le Roux, M Cubitt and Z Carrim 

as the members.

Function

This committee is tasked to increase the Group’s focus on the 

importance of IT on governance and sustainability. The CIO has 

direct responsibility for IT governance and submission of an IT 

report to the Board through the Audit and Risk Committee on a 

quarterly basis.

During the financial year, an IT governance policy was 

developed. The Board also approved and adopted an 

IT governance plan in 2012 to ensure adherence to the King III’s 

IT governance principles. IT risks have been incorporated 

into the risk and opportunities register and a full report was 

presented to the Audit and Risk Committee for approval.

Assurance

The Internal Audit function assessed the independent assurance 

requirement for the effectiveness of IT internal controls and 

recommended solutions to the Audit and Risk Committee.

Not applied

IT governance

During the financial year a complete review of the 

IT governance and IT internal controls was not performed 

by an independent service provider, identifying areas of 

improvement. The review of governance and controls will be 

undertaken on a phased basis during 2013.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (continued)
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continuously developing and enhancing the Group’s risk and 

control procedures to improve the mechanisms for identifying, 

assessing and monitoring risks. The Board approves strategies 

and budgets and monitors progress against the budget. It also 

considers the identified business risks.

Risk management is addressed in the areas of physical and 

operational risks, human resource risks, technology risks, 

business continuity and disaster recovery risks, credit and 

market risks and compliance risks.

The Group has implemented several policies and procedures to 

manage its governance, operations and information systems 

with regard to the: 

  reliability and integrity of financial and operational 

information;

 effectiveness and efficiency of operations;

 safeguarding of assets; and

 compliance with laws, regulations and contracts.

Risks are periodically reviewed and updated on a regular basis. 

The material risks are in the table on pages 34 to 35 of the 

Integrated Report.

Insurance

Insurance arrangements are reviewed annually by the Audit and 

Risk Committee and appropriate insurance cover is in place to 

cover all material risks.

Board statement of effectiveness of controls

Based on the formal review and Internal Audit reports covering 

the Group’s system of internal controls and risk management 

and considering the information responses and explanations 

given by management, together with discussions with the 

external auditor on the results of their audit, nothing has come 

to the attention of the Board that caused it to believe that 

the Group’s system of internal control and risk management 

is not effective, or that the internal financial controls do not 

form a sound basis for the preparation of reliable financial 

statements. The Board’s opinion is supported by the Audit and 

Risk Committee.

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

All the necessary information and facilities are made available 

to shareholders to enable them to attend the Annual General 

Meeting, submit forms of proxy and receive announcements 

and circulars in accordance with the JSE Listings Requirements. 

The Chairman of the Board, Chairpersons of the committees 

and the external auditors are available to answer questions at 

the Annual General Meeting.

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE (EXCO)

The CEO is responsible for the execution of the Board-approved 

strategy and the day-to-day running of the business, and is 

accountable to the Board in this regard. He is assisted in the 

task by the Exco, which comprises the CFO and certain senior 

executives of the Group. This committee, which meets six times 

a year, is responsible for the Group’s operational activities, 

developing strategy and policy proposals for consideration by 

the Board and implementing the Board’s directives. It has a 

properly constituted mandate and terms of reference. Other 

responsibilities include:

 leading the executive, management and staff of the Group;

 developing the annual budget and business plans for 

approval by the Board; and

  developing, implementing and monitoring policies 

and procedures, internal controls, governance, 

risk management, ethics and authority levels.

The Exco has specific key performance areas and targets which 

are set and monitored by the Board with the assistance of the 

Remuneration and Nomination Committee.

INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS AND RISK 
MANAGEMENT

Application

Internal control systems

To meet Mpact’s responsibility to provide reliable financial 

information, the Group maintains financial and operational 

systems of internal control. These controls are designed to 

provide reasonable assurance that transactions are concluded 

in accordance with management’s authority, that the assets 

are adequately protected against material losses, unauthorised 

acquisitions, use or disposals, and that all transactions are 

properly recorded.

The systems include a documented organisational structure and 

division of responsibilities, established policies and procedures 

which are communicated throughout the Group, and the 

careful selection, training and development of people.

The Internal Audit function is set out in the Audit and Risk 

Committee Report on page 48 of the Integrated Report.

There are inherent limitations on the effectiveness of any 

system of internal control, including the possibility of human 

error and the circumvention or overriding of controls.

Risk management

Effective risk management is integral to the Group’s objective 

of consistently adding value to the business. Management is 
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RISK MANAGEMENT

Risk management review
Mpact completed a comprehensive review of its risk management function, policy and framework during 2012. This review covered 

the Group’s risk strategy, governance, risk management process, risk management function, and its risk culture and capability.

RISK MANAGEMENT FRAMEWORK
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ENTERPRISE-WIDE RISK MANAGEMENT POLICY AND FRAMEWORK

The Board has committed the Group to a process of risk management that is aligned with the principles of King III, as well as generally 

accepted good risk management practices.

The Board retains responsibility and accountability for the overall risk management process, setting risk appetite and tolerance limits. 

The Audit and Risk Committee assists the Board in the execution of its fiduciary duties regarding risk management. Exco reviews the 

output of the risk management process to ensure that the appropriate management of major risks is undertaken. Management is 

accountable to the Audit and Risk Committee and ensures the implementation of the risk management process, working with the 

relevant staff within the business.

In addition, a Group Enterprise-wide Risk Management Policy was approved on 4 December 2012 by the Board. The policy contains 

guidance on implementing a structured and systematic risk management process.

An Enterprise-wide Risk Management Framework has also been developed that sets out the approach to be taken to address and 

improve risk management to achieve Mpact’s objectives.

The Enterprise-wide Risk Management Cycle to identify, assess, rank and report risks is illustrated below:

Bi-annual review This process is scheduled to be conducted on a bi-annual basis, but could be initiated at 

the occurrence of any significant development either internal or external to the business.

Preparation Consideration is given to:  

• the environment in which the business operates,  

• stakeholder interests in the organisation, as well as  

• alignment with the business strategy and objectives.

Identification of risks The risks determined by all business units and service departments are recorded in a risk register.

Assessment of risks These inherent risks are rated in terms of their potential impact on the business and likelihood 

of occurrence.

Mitigation of risks •  Each risk is reviewed in the context of the mitigating controls that are in place  

as a preventative measure.

•  Appropriate action is then determined based on the level of residual risk.

•  These responses could be risk avoidance, risk sharing (with insurers or other parties), risk 

acceptance or risk mitigation (actions to reduce the impact or likelihood of occurrence).

Ranking of risks The material risks to the business are highlighted for prioritisation by management.

Reporting and monitoring 

of risks

The management and monitoring of material risks is reported to the Audit and Risk Committee 

as well as the Board.

Combined assurance A combined assurance plan will be put in place to confirm mitigating controls.

RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
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MATERIAL RISKS

Mpact identified the following material risks to the business, which were presented at the Audit and Risk Committee meeting held on 

27 November 2012 and confirmed.

Description of underlying risk and related impact Mitigation actions taken to limit impacts

INPUTS

Prolonged shortages of key raw materials could lead to loss 
of production, forced change of product offerings and/or higher 
costs to secure constrained supply. Key raw materials include 
containerboard, polymers and fibre for papermaking.

Where feasible, long-term supply agreements with multiple 
suppliers with several production facilities are sought. In addition 
certain production processes are able utilise alternative raw 
materials. Mpact also collects recovered paper from a variety 
of sources.

Unreliable supply and higher cost of energy and water 
supplied from external sources could lead to loss of production 
and higher costs.

Energy efficiency projects have been prioritised across the Group 
and demand planning has been implemented where feasible.

Water consumption remains a key performance indicator in the 
paper mills and several capital investments have been made to 
reduce consumption.

Major failure/breakdown of critical equipment could cause 
prolonged loss of production and increased costs.

Operations have formal planned maintenance programmes which 
include regular equipment inspections, condition monitoring, 
statutory inspections and proactive replacement/repair. Capital 
is allocated annually for the proactive replacement/upgrade of 
plant and equipment. The Group also has machinery breakdown 
insurance cover.

Labour related matters such as strikes, unrest, loss of key 
skills and cost increases above inflation could lead to loss of 
production and the inability to produce quality products on a 
competitive basis.

The business upholds fair labour practices which go beyond 
minimum requirements.

All businesses participate in industry collective bargaining 
forums. Operations have regular interactions with employees 
through formal channels such as transformation committees to 
resolve labour-related matters.

Trainees and graduates are regularly recruited and trained in the 
business to provide a sustainable supply of skilled personnel. 
Bursaries and other study opportunities are also offered to 
employees and school leavers.

The Group has arrangements in place to retain scarce skills and 
has an established succession planning process.

Productivity improvement is a key consideration in the annual 
budgeting process and when making capital investments.

Several programmes have been implemented across the business 
to ensure vigilance and adherence to established standards 
relating to health and safety.

RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
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Description of underlying risk and related impact Mitigation actions taken to limit impacts

OUTPUTS

Mpact operates in an uncertain and competitive trading 
environment in which reduced sales volumes and/or selling 
prices could result in loss of profits. Volume and price risks arise 
from the dependence on major customers, excess capacity, 
competitively priced imports, substitution and subdued growth 
across the sector.

Annual supply agreements are sought with volume incentives 
and competitive pricing.

Development of alternative domestic and export markets to 
maintain economies of scale.

Continue to develop a diversified product offering of both paper 
and plastic packaging to various market sectors.

Investment in R&D and other innovation such as design centres 
and the Stellenbosch University Research Facility.

Benchmarking of product performance, cost and quality across 
sectors. 

Continuous improvement in own manufacturing facilities to 
optimise costs and improve product performance.

COMPLIANCE

Ever more stringent and changing legislation has the 
potential to increase costs of compliance and risk of fines and 
penalties. Relevant legislation includes, but is not limited to, 
environmental, tax, competition, labour, occupational health 
and safety, employment equity, black economic empowerment, 
land claims and industry-specific requirements.

Full time legal and tax specialists are employed within the Group 
and relevant experts are engaged where required.

An entrenched safety and health programme has been 
implemented throughout the business to ensure vigilance and 
adherence to laws and company standards relating to health 
and safety. 

The Group has compiled a regulatory universe to prioritise and 
monitor legal compliance. Training of employees is also provided 
where required.

Internal and external audits are conducted periodically, as well as 
statutory inspections by competent authorities where applicable. 

The Group engages with the authorities through the relevant 
industry bodies and other forums to provide meaningful inputs 
into discussions around relevant legislation.

CATASTROPHE AND OTHER RISKS

Catastrophic systems failure, fires, floods and breaches 
of ICT security could lead to prolonged production and 
distribution interruptions as well as increased costs of working 
and capital replacement costs.

Fire risk management practices are deployed at all operations 
to prevent fires and ensure quick reaction in event of a fire. 
The Group has also developed fire risk management standards 
against which operations are audited. 

The Group has a comprehensive insurance programme which 
covers catastrophic loss.

The ICT system is designed with redundancy to mitigate the 
risk of complete system failure. System back-ups are made on a 
scheduled basis and a disaster recovery plan forms part of ICT’s 
business continuity planning.
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Members: Ntombi Langa-Royds (Chairperson),  

Neo Dongwana and Andrew Thompson

The Social and Ethics Committee was constituted by the Board 

on 6 May 2011. 

The Social and Ethics Committee regularly reviews and 

updates the terms of reference, where necessary. The terms of 

reference are set out in the committee charter and ensure that 

the committee performs its duties in terms of the Companies 

Act and King III. The Social and Ethics Committee commenced 

executing its duties during the past financial year in accordance 

with these terms of reference. The committee gave a report 

update on its mandate and duties to the shareholders at the 

company’s First Annual General Meeting held on 5 June 2012.

COMPOSITION

The Social and Ethics Committee comprises three independent 

non-executive directors. The executive directors and managers 

of the Group attend by invitation. The Company Secretary acts 

as the committee secretary.

MEETINGS

The Social and Ethics Committee held four meetings during the 

year. Members attended all meetings of the committee during 

the year.

POLICY REVIEW

The committee is responsible for developing and reviewing the 

Group’s policies with regard to the commitment, governance 

and reporting of the Group’s sustainable development 

performance. These policies are recommended to the Board 

for approval. For the year under review, the Board approved 

the Group’s Code of Business Conduct and Ethics, Group 

Stakeholder and Communication Policy and the Group’s Social 

Investment Policy upon recommendation of the committee.

MATERIAL SUSTAINABILITY ISSUES

The committee is responsible for annually revising or 

determining, in conjunction with senior management, the 

Group’s material sustainability issues. The material issues 

have been reported on and are set out in the Sustainability 

Review. These material issues were reported to the Audit and 

Risk Committee for independent assurance approvals. Both 

committees have agreed on a phased process to continue to 

improve independent assurance on material sustainability 

issues in 2013. 

STATUTORY DUTIES

This committee has a broad mandate in terms of the Companies 

Act and King III. It is tasked with monitoring the Group’s 

activities in respect of sustainability issues. It considers relevant 

legislation and best practices in terms of social and economic 

development (including B-BBEE), good corporate citizenship, 

the environment, safety and health, labour and employment.

In execution of its statutory duties, the Social and Ethics 

Committee endeavours to:

  execute its statutory duties in terms of the requirements 

of the Companies Act and King III;

  consult advisors and attend presentations on the various 

aspects of the duties and responsibilities relating to social 

and ethics issues;

  create a reporting structure for the Group’s businesses in 

respect of the committee’s requirements;

  monitor the Group’s compliance with the International 

Labour Organisation’s definition of “Decent Work”;

 monitor the Group’s CSI; and

 monitor the Group’s achievements against its Employment 

Equity plan. 

The committee is satisfied with the Group’s progress in the 

different areas and with the social and ethics plans for the 

2013 financial year. The committee is aware its function will 

continue to evolve as it addresses all the responsibilities within 

its mandate. 

Economic and social sustainability of Mpact is important to the 

Group and a detailed Sustainability Review has been created, 

which reports in more detail on its staff, environmental and 

CSI. These issues are of significant importance to the Group in 

terms of its obligations to all its stakeholders. The Sustainability 

Review can be found on the Group’s website: www.mpact.co.za

On behalf of the Social and Ethics Committee:

Ntombi Langa-Royds 

Social and Ethics Committee Chairperson 

5 March 2013

SOCIAL AND ETHICS COMMITTEE REPORT



37
MPACT INTEGRATED REPORT 2012

REMUNERATION AND NOMINATION COMMITTEE REPORT

Members: Tony Phillips (Chairman), Ntombi Langa-Royds 

and Tim Ross

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE REMUNERATION 
AND NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The responsibility for the remuneration policy rests with the 

Remuneration and Nomination Committee, which is appointed 

annually by the Board. The committee comprises of three 

independent non-executive directors, and is governed by 

formal terms of reference.

With respect to remuneration matters, the committee is 

charged with:

  Assisting the Board by setting and administering 

remuneration policies in the Group’s long-term 

interests, and ensuring, through an on-going review of 

the remuneration policy for both appropriateness and 

relevance, the Group remunerates fairly and responsibly.

  Being especially concerned with and providing 

recommendations regarding the remuneration of both 

executive and non-executive directors, and giving due 

regard to any relevant legal requirements.

  Determining, within the terms of the agreed policy, the 

total individual remuneration package of the CEO and, in 

consultation with the CEO, the other members of Exco 

and any other executive whose total remuneration is 

comparable to, or higher than, that of an Exco member.

  Ensuring that individuals are provided with appropriate 

incentives to encourage enhanced performance and 

are, in a fair and responsible manner, rewarded for their 

individual contributions to Mpact’s success.

  Approving the design of and determining targets for 

any performance-related pay schemes in which the 

executive management and other members of the senior 

management population participate.

  Determining the design of and targets for such schemes by 

taking into account all factors it deems necessary including 

performance-related pay schemes, and regularly reviewing 

incentive schemes to ensure the continued contribution 

to shareholder value.

  Reviewing the design of all executive and all employee 

share plans for approval by the Board and shareholders.

  Being responsible for establishing the selection criteria, 

selecting, appointing and setting the terms of reference 

for any remuneration consultants who advise the 

committee.

  Ensuring, in determining remuneration policy, specifically 

that contractual terms on termination of the CEO and 

Exco, and any payments made, are fair to the individual 

and Mpact.

REMUNERATION POLICY

Objective

Responsibility for the remuneration policy rests with the 

Remuneration and Nomination Committee, appointed annually 

by Board.

The objective of the remuneration policy is to enable the 

business to:

  retain competent employees who enhance business 

performance; 

  reward, recognise and confer appreciation for superior 

performance;

  direct employees’ energies and activities towards key 

business goals;

  recruit high-performing, skilled individuals from a shrinking 

pool of talent; and

  achieve the most effective returns (employee productivity) 

for total employee spend.

To achieve this, Mpact rewards its executives and managers in a 

way that reflects the dynamics of the market and the context in 

which it operates. All components of this remuneration policy, 

including the fixed pay and variable pay for performance, are 

aligned to the strategic direction of the business and business-

specific value drivers.

Key principles

The remuneration policy has been set with the objective 

of attracting, motivating and retaining experienced 

directors, managers and employees in a manner that is 

consistent with best practice and aligned with the interests 

of Mpact’s shareholders.

The remuneration policy for executive directors and other 

senior managers is framed around the following key principles:

  Remuneration packages should be set at levels that are 

competitive in the relevant market.

  The structure of remuneration packages and, in particular, 

the design of performance-based remuneration schemes, 

should be aligned with shareholders’ interests and should 

support the achievement of business strategy and the 

management of risk.

  A significant proportion of the remuneration of executive 

directors and other senior executives should be 

performance based.

  The performance-based element of remuneration should 

be appropriately balanced between the achievement of 

short-term objectives and longer-term objectives.

  The remuneration of executive directors and other senior 

executives should be set taking appropriate account of 

remuneration and employment conditions elsewhere in 

the Group.
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REMUNERATION AND NOMINATION COMMITTEE REPORT (continued)

PAY MIX

Pay mix is defined as the balance targeted between the major 

components of remuneration, namely:

  guaranteed pay based on total guaranteed cost 

of employment (TGCOE); and

 variable pay for performance comprising:

 • short-term incentives; and

 • long-term incentives.

The targeted pay mix aims to align the incentives of employees 

with the interests of shareholders. 

Guaranteed pay

Mpact aims to establish and maintain a logical pay scale with 

pay levels that ensure that the company is able to remain 

competitive, while managing costs.

Salaries are reviewed annually, normally with effect from 

1 January. Mpact undertakes annual market pricing exercises 

against top management reward surveys conducted by 

reputable consultancies. The benchmark used is the median 

TGCOE for similar positions in South African-listed companies 

which are of a similar size, complexity and scope to the Group.

The committee also takes into account business performance, 

salary practices prevailing for other employees in the 

Group and, when setting individual salaries, the individual’s 

performance and experience in their role.

Variable pay

Short-term incentives

Annual incentives are aimed at rewarding a combination 

of both business and individual performance:

  business performance is assessed in terms of one or more 

performance indicators, covering both financial and non-

financial elements (such as safety); and

  individual performance is assessed from a weighted 

(balanced) scorecard of key performance areas or 

value drivers. The selection of these is informed by 

the performance management framework.

Long-term incentives

Mpact share plan

In order to attract, retain, motivate and reward executives 

and managers who are able to influence the performance 

of the Group on a basis which aligns their interests with those 

of shareholders, the company has the Mpact share plan.

The plan provides for the inclusion of a number of performance 

conditions, designed to align the interests of participants 

with those of shareholders, and to reward organisational and 

individual performance, more so than merely the performance 

of the economy or the sector in which the Group operates.

In terms of this plan, executives and selected managers as well 

as those of subsidiaries may be offered annually a weighted 

combination of:

 awards of performance shares;

 grants of bonus shares; and

 allocations of share appreciation rights.

The combined, weighted implementation of the above share 

plan elements allows Mpact to be competitive in annual and 

share-based incentives and reward long-term sustainable 

company performance. This also acts as a retention tool, and 

ensures that executives share a significant level of personal risk 

with shareholders.

Performance share method

Annual conditional awards of performance shares may be 

made to executives. Performance shares will vest on the third 

anniversary of their award, to the extent that Mpact has met 

specified performance criteria over the intervening period. 

The committee will dictate the performance criteria for 

each award. 

Any performance shares which do not vest at the end of the 

three-year period will lapse.

The Performance Share method closely aligns the interests of 

shareholders and executives by rewarding superior shareholder 

and financial performance in the future.

Bonus share method

On an annual basis, executives and selected senior managers 

may receive a grant of bonus shares, the value of which 

matches, according to a specific ratio, the annual cash incentive 

accruing to the executive.

The 2012 grant of bonus shares will vest after three years 

conditional only on continued employment.

The Bonus Share Method provides for share-based retention 

to those executives who through their previous loyalty and/or 

their performance on an annual basis have demonstrated their 

value to the organisation.

Share appreciation rights method

Annual allocations of share appreciation rights may be made 

to executives and selected employees. They will be available 

to be settled in equal thirds on the third, fourth and fifth 

anniversaries (alternatively all on the third anniversary), but 

need not be exercised until the sixth anniversary, at which time 

they must be exercised or they will lapse.

Notwithstanding the above time frame(s), vesting will only 

occur, and exercise and settlement will only be permissible, as 

and when the performance targets that may have been set are 

met. On settlement, the value accruing to participants will be 

the appreciation of the share price from date of allocation to 

date of exercise.

The Board will dictate the performance targets for 

each allocation.
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Mpact cash plan (deferred cash bonus)

In order to retain, motivate and reward other key personnel, 

such as those with scarce skills who are vital to success, the 

company operates the Mpact Cash Plan.

On an annual basis, identified employees may be granted a 

deferred cash bonus, the value of which matches, according 

to a specified ratio, the annual cash incentive accruing to the 

employee. The deferred cash bonus vests after three years 

conditional only on continued employment. Interest accrues 

monthly at the Johannesburg Interbank Agreed Rate (JIBAR) 

rate and is paid out with the cash bonus at the time of vesting.

POLICY ON EMPLOYMENT CONTRACTS

Executive directors
Executive directors’ service contracts should provide for a 

maximum of six months’ notice by either party, except where a 

longer notice period is appropriate as a transitional measure, in 

which case the notice period would reduce automatically to six 

months within a reasonable period of time.

Employment contracts for senior management provide for 

three months’ notice by either party.

In the event of early termination of service contracts, the policy 

is to act fairly in all circumstances.

The service contracts for senior executives should contain 

pay in lieu of notice provisions which may be invoked at the 

discretion of the committee if the company terminates the 

service contract. The payment in lieu of notice would comprise 

the TGCOE for the notice period and an amount in respect of 

the bonus for that part of the financial year worked, at the 

discretion of the committee.

All employees within the Group should have employment 

contracts. Given that existing contracts may have been entered 

into in prior years, current notice periods and termination 

clauses for executive directors and senior managers may differ.

Non-executive directors 

Non-executive directors’ fees are benchmarked against similar 

sized companies listed on the JSE. The level of complexity of 

the underlying business is also taken into consideration when 

benchmarking. 

The appointment of a non-executive director may be 

terminated without compensation if that director is not 

re-elected by shareholders or otherwise in accordance with 

the MOI.

INCENTIVE BONUS PARAMETERS 
AND ACHIEVEMENT FOR THE YEAR UNDER REVIEW

For the year under review, the maximum potential incentive 

bonus for executive directors and prescribed officers was 117% 

(2011: 117%) of TGCOE as reflected in the table below.

The annual incentive bonus is paid against the achievement of 

financial, safety and individual performance targets.

For the year under review, financial performance had a 

weighting of 60%, safety 10% and individual performance 30% 

for all executive directors and prescribed officers. The financial 

targets were based on EBITDA and ROCE.

For the year under review, the executive directors and 

prescribed officers achieved 100% (2011: 89.7%) for 

financial performance, between 50% and 100% (2011: 

between 50% and 100%) for safety and differing levels for 

individual performance.

Maximum potential annual incentive bonus for the year under review:

CEO CFO1 CFO1

Other 

prescribed

BW Strong BV Clark EL Leong officers2

Annual cash bonus – maximum potential  

as % of TGCOE (A) 72 72 117 72

Conditional bonus shares – as % of annual cash bonus 

earned (B) 62.5 62.5 0 62.5

Maximum potential incentive bonus  

as % of TGCOE (C) where C = A + (A x B) 117 117 117 117

1 EL Leong was on a fixed term employment contract with the Group, which expired on 30 June 2012. BV Clark was appointed as CFO on 1 July 2012
2  Excludes prescribed officer 4 (PO 4) who is employed under a fixed term consultancy agreement which, for the year under review, excludes conditional bonus 

shares but includes an annual cash bonus with a maximum potential of 40% of TGCOE
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS’ AND PRESCRIBED OFFICERS’ REMUNERATION

Prescribed officers are defined as having general executive control over and management of a significant portion of the company 

or regularly participate therein to a material degree, and are not directors of the company. Prescribed officers include the three highest 

paid non-directors.

The remuneration of the executive directors and prescribed officers, paid by Mpact, who served during the year under review, was 

as follows:

Rand Salary
Incentive 

bonus

Value of
deferred 

bonus shares
awarded

Retirement
funding

contribution
Other cash

benefits Total

Executive directors

BW Strong5 2012 2,832,820 2,164,679 1,318,643 732,510 150,921 7,199,573

2011 2,592,087 1,183,141 1,150,810 671,482 147,744 5,745,264

BDV Clark8, 10 2012 1,396,323 – – 111,066 125,944 1,633,333

2011 – – – – – –

EL Leong6, 11 2012 998,681 3,360,494 – 47,882 55,937 4,462,994

2011 1,283,404 – – 72,631 76,383 1,432,418

RP von Veh7, 10 2012 – – – – – –

2011 753,554 1,547,921 – 71,314 166,470 2,539,259

Total 2012 5,227,824 5,525,173 1,318,643 891,458 332,802 13,295,900

2011 4,629,045 2,731,062 1,150,810 815,427 390,597 9,716,941

Prescribed officers 

PO 110 2012 2,334,444 1,753,785 1,096,116 223,433 512,331 5,920,109

2011 1,431,485 – 939,225 136,265 323,409 2,830,384

PO 210 2012 2,698,430 1,786,201 1,116,376 224,386 142,184 5,967,577

2011 2,534,435 1,789,181 1,084,267 211,431 142,184 5,761,497

PO 35 2012 1,315,697 1,152,144 702,318 392,159 204,379 3,766,697

2011 1,198,140 857,466 527,226 355,843 201,593 3,140,268

PO 49 2012 2,774,517 1,405,239 – – – 4,179,756

2011 2,638,309 906,341 – – – 3,544,650

 PO 5 2012 – – – – – –

2011 572,911 1,308,888 – 37,063 34,358 1,953,220

1 Paid in March each year based on prior year performance
2 Cash value of conditional awards based on prior year performance vesting in three years
3 Employer contribution towards retirement funding
4 Other cash benefits include car allowances, employer contribution to medical aid schemes and other benefits
5 Participates in defined contribution fund. In the prior year, participated in defined benefit pension fund
6 To date of resignation from the Board on 30 June 2012
7 Resigned from the Board on 4 May 2011, thereafter prescribed officer
8 From date of appointment to the Board on 1 June 2012
9  Employed under a fixed term consultancy agreement which includes an annual salary and cash bonus incentive linked to performance. As such he does not 

participate in any of the company’s share plan
10 Participates in defined contribution fund
11 Includes incentive bonus paid in March 2012 based on prior year performance as well  as a bonus paid in June 2012 based on 1st half performance
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS’ FEES

The fees paid to the non-executive directors for the years ended 31 December 2012 and 2011, were as follows:

Fees

Rand 2012 20111

AJ Phillips 675,000 449,658

NP Dongwana 330,500 199,178

NB Langa-Royds 372,000 219,178

TDA Ross 413,000 239,178

AM Thompson 330,500 254,247

Total 2,121,000 1,361,439

 Fees were paid from date of appointment being 21 April 2011 to 31 December 2011

SHARE AWARDS GRANTED TO EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS AND PRESCRIBED OFFICERS

The following tables set out the share awards granted to the executive directors and prescribed officers:

Mpact Limited

2012

Type of

award1, 2, 3, 4

Awards

held at

beginning

of year 

Awards

granted

during year

Awards 

exercised

during year

Awards 

held as at

31 Dec

2012

Award price

basis

(ZAR cents)

Date of

award

Release

date

Executive directors

BW Strong BSP5 85,817 – – 85,817 1,341 Sep 11 Mar 14

PSP 234,899 – – 234,899 1,341 Sep 11 Mar 14

TSP6 76,286 – – 76,286 1,341 Sep 11 Mar 13

{ Mar 14

SARP 352,349 – – 352,349 1,341 Sep 11 Mar 15

Mar 16

BSP5 – 83,527 – 83,527 1,579 Apr 12 Mar 15

PSP – 127,073 – 127,073 1,579 Apr 12 Mar 15

BDV Clark PSP – 37,246 – 37,246 1,579 Apr 12 Mar 15

Prescribed officers 

PO 1 BSP5 70,039 – – 70,039 1,341 Sep 11 Mar 14

PSP 105,583 – – 105,583 1,341 Sep 11 Mar 14

{ Mar 14

SARP 263,957 – – 263,957 1,341 Sep 11 Mar 15

Mar 16

BSP5 – 69,432 – 69,432 1,579 Apr 12 Mar 15

PSP – 95,262 – 95,262 1,579 Apr 12 Mar 15
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Mpact Limited – (continued)

2012

Type of

award1, 2, 3, 4

Awards

held at

beginning

of year 

Awards

granted

during year

Awards 

exercised

during year

Awards 

held as at

31 Dec

2012

Award price

basis

(ZAR cents)

Date of

award

Release

date

PO 2 BSP5 80,855 – – 80,855 1,341 Sep 11 Mar 14

PSP 77,532 – – 77,532 1,341 Sep 11 Mar 14

TSP6 55,499 – – 55,499 1,341 Sep 11 Mar 13

{ Mar 14

SARP 193,829 – – 193,829 1,341 Sep 11 Mar 15

Mar 16

BSP5 – 70,715 – 70,715 1,579 Apr 12 Mar 15

PSP – 69,893 – 69,893 1,579 Apr 12 Mar 15

PO 3 BSP5 39,316 – – 39,316 1,341 Sep 11 Mar 14

PSP 48,322 – – 48,322 1,341 Sep 11 Mar 14

{ Mar 14

SARP 120,805 – – 120,805 1,341 Sep 11 Mar 15

Mar 16

BSP5 – 44,487 – 44,487 1,579 Apr 12 Mar 15

PSP – 43,555 – 43,555 1,579 Apr 12 Mar 15

1  Bonus share plan (BSP)
2  Performance share plan (PSP)
3  Transitional share plan (TSP)
4 S hare appreciation right plan (SARP)
5  The value on award of the BSP awards granted during the year as set out in this table are included in the executive directors’ and prescribed officers’ 

remuneration
6  In addition to the PSP, BSP and SARP, BW Strong and PO 2 has been granted a once-off transitional award of conditional performance shares in compensation 

for value lost under the 2010 Mondi Limited LTIP as a result of the time-based pro rating of awards
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Mpact Limited

2011

Type of

award1, 2, 3, 4

Awards

held at

beginning

of year 

Awards

granted

during year

Awards 

exercised

during year

Awards 

held as at

31 Dec

2012

Award price

basis

(ZAR cents)

Date of

award

Release

date

Executive director

BW Strong BSP5 – 85,817 – 85,817 1,341 Sep 11 Mar 14

PSP – 234,899 – 234,899 1,341 Sep 11 Mar 14

TSP6 – 76,286 – 76,286 1,341 Sep 11 Mar 13

{ Mar 14

SARP – 352,349 – 352,349 1,341 Sep 11 Mar 15

Mar 16

Prescribed officers 

PO 1 BSP5 – 70,039 – 70,039 1,341 Sep 11 Mar 14

PSP – 105,584 – 105,584 1,341 Sep 11 Mar 14

{ Mar 14

SARP – 263,957 – 263,957 1,341 Sep 11 Mar 15

Mar 16

PO 2 BSP5 – 80,855 – 80,855 1,341 Sep 11 Mar 14

PSP – 77,532 – 77,532 1,341 Sep 11 Mar 14

TSP6 – 55,499 – 55,499 1,341 Sep 11 Mar 13

{ Mar 14

SARP – 193,829 – 193,829 1,341 Sep 11 Mar 15

Mar 16

PO 3 BSP5 – 39,316 – 39,316 1,341 Sep 11 Mar 14

PSP – 48,322 – 48,322 1,341 Sep 11 Mar 14

{ Mar 14

SARP – 120,805 – 120,805 1,341 Sep 11 Mar 15

Mar 16

1 Bonus share plan (BSP)
2 Performance share plan (PSP)
3 Transitional share plan (TSP)
4 Share appreciation right plan (SARP)
5  The value on award of the BSP awards granted during the year as set out in this table are included in the executive directors’ and prescribed officers’ 

remuneration
6  In addition to the PSP, BSP and SARP, BW Strong and PO 2 has been granted a once-off transitional award of conditional performance shares in compensation 

for value lost under the 2010 Mondi Limited LTIP as a result of the time-based pro rating of awards
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Mondi Limited

2012

Type of 
award1, 2, 3

Awards
held at

beginning
of year 

Awards
granted

during year

Awards
exercised

during year

Awards
forfeited
or lapsed

Awards
held as at

31 Dec
2012

Award
price basis
(ZAR cents)

Date of
award

Release
date

BW Strong LTIP 54,200 – (54,200) – – 2,301 Mar 09 –
LTIP 14,842 – – – 14,842 4,596 Mar 10 Mar 13

PO 2 LTIP 40,311 – (40,311) – – 2,301 Mar 09 –
LTIP 10,798 – – – 10,798 4,596 Mar 10 Mar 13

Mondi Limited
2011

BW Strong BSP4 6,957 – (6,957) – – 6,547 Mar 08 –
BSP4 17,978 – (17,978) – – 2,301 Mar 09 –
BSP4 19,861 – (19,861) – – 4,596 Mar 10 –
LTIP 54,200 – – – 54,200 2,301 Mar 09 Mar 12
LTIP 29,683 – – (14,841) 14,842 4,596 Mar 10 Mar 13

PO 1 BSP4 9,718 – (9,718) – – 6,547 Mar 08 –
BSP4 21,611 – (21,611) – – 2,301 Mar 09 –
BSP4 18,847 – (18,847) – – 4,596 Mar 10 –

PO 2 BSP4 11,696 – (11,696) – – 6,547 Mar 08 –
BSP4 26,377 – (26,377) – – 2,301 Mar 09 –
BSP4 21,400 – (21,400) – – 4,596 Mar 10 –
LTIP 12,650 – (4,217) (8,433) – 6,547 Mar 08 –
LTIP 40,311 – – – 40,311 2,301 Mar 09 Mar 12
LTIP 21,595 – – (10,797) 10,798 4,596 Mar 10 Mar 13

PO 3 BSP4 2,992 – (2,992) – – 6,547 Mar 08 –
BSP4 12,200 – (12,200) – – 2,301 Mar 09 –
BSP4 10,578 – (10,578) – – 4,596 Mar 10 –

1 Bonus share plan (BSP)
2 Long-term incentive plan (LTIP)
3  The value on award of the BSP awards granted during the year as set out in this table are included in the executive directors’ and prescribed officers’ 

remuneration
4 All Mondi BSP awards held at the time of listing were subject to advanced vesting during the year

INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS AND PRESCRIBED OFFICERS IN MPACT’S SHARE CAPITAL

The aggregate beneficial holdings as at 31 December 2012 and 2011 of the directors and prescribed officers of the company and their 

immediate families in the issued ordinary shares of the company are detailed below. There have been no material changes in these 

shareholdings between 31 December 2012 and 5 March 2013, the date of approval.

2012 2011

Direct Indirect Direct Indirect

Number of shares Number of shares Number of shares Number of shares

Executive director
BW Strong 4,313 – 4,313 –
Non-executive director
AM Thompson 4,208 – 4,208 –
Prescribed officers
PO 1 14,819 – 14,819 –
PO 2 527 – 527 –
PO 3 4,387 – 4,387 –

Total 28,254 – 28,254 –

There are no associate interests for the above directors and prescribed officers.



45
MPACT INTEGRATED REPORT 2012



46
MPACT INTEGRATED REPORT 2012

Directors’ Responsibility Statement and Basis of Preparation 47
Company Secretary’s Certificate 47
Audit and Risk Committee report 48
Directors’ Report 51
Independent Auditors’ Report 54
Consolidated Statement of Financial Position 55
Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income 56
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows 57
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity 58
Abridged Notes to the Annual Financial Statements 60

Please refer to the Glossary of Terms for all abbreviations 
and definitions

CONTENTS

ABRIDGED ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS



47
MPACT INTEGRATED REPORT 2012

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT AND BASIS OF PREPARATION
for the year ended 31 December 2012

The directors are responsible for preparing the Annual Financial Statements in accordance with applicable law and regulations.

These Condensed Consolidated Annual Financial Statements have been prepared in accordance with the framework concepts and 

measurement and recognition requirements of IFRS as issued by the Accounting Standards Board (in particular IAS 34: Interim Financial 

Reporting), the SAICA Financial Reporting Guides as issued by the Accounting Practices Committee and the Financial Reporting the 

Pronouncements as issued by the Financial Reporting Standards Council, the JSE Listings Requirements and with the Companies Act 

of South Africa.

The preparation of these Condensed Consolidated Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2012 was supervised 

by the CFO, Mr BDV Clark CA (SA).

The Group’s Annual Financial Statements, from which these Condensed Annual Financial Statements have been derived, have been audited 

by the company’s auditors, Deloitte & Touche, whose unmodified report is available for inspection at the registered company office.

These Condensed Consolidated Annual Financial Statements should be read in conjunction with the Group’s Annual Financial 

Statements, from which they have been derived.

Included in this report is a summary of the Annual Financial Statements while the full Annual Financial Statements are available on the 

Group’s website, www.mpact.co.za

APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors confirm that to the best of their knowledge the financial statements, prepared in accordance with IFRS, the SAICA 

Financial Reporting Guides as issued by the Accounting Practices Committee and Financial Reporting Pronouncements as issued by the 

Financial Reporting Standards Council, and the requirements of the Companies Act fairly present the assets, liabilities, financial position 

and profit of the Group and company and the undertakings included in the consolidation taken as a whole.

The directors believe that the Group has adequate resources to continue in operation for the foreseeable future and the financial 

statements have therefore been prepared on a going concern basis.

The summarised Annual Financial Statements and related notes, which appear on pages 55 to 72, as well as the full Annual Financial 

Statements available on Mpact’s website, were approved by the Board of Directors and authorised for issue on 5 March 2013 and were 

signed on its behalf by:

AJ Phillips BW Strong

Chairman Chief Executive Officer

Johannesburg Johannesburg

5 March 2013 5 March 2013

COMPANY SECRETARY’S CERTIFICATE

In terms of Section 88(2)(e) of the Companies Act, I certify that Mpact has lodged with the Companies and Intellectual Property 

Commission (CIPC) all such returns, as are required of a company in terms of the Companies Act and that such returns are true, correct 

and up to date.

Noriah Sepuru

Company Secretary

5 March 2013

ABRIDGED ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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Members: Tim Ross (Chairman), Neo Dongwana and Andrew Thompson

The Audit and Risk Committee has pleasure in submitting its report for the year ended 31 December 2012 in compliance with 

Section 4(7) of the Companies Act.

INTRODUCTION

The Audit and Risk Committee acts for the company and all its subsidiaries. The committee is an independent entity and accountable 

to the Board. It operates within a documented charter and complies with all relevant legislation, regulation and governance codes 

and executes its duties in terms of the requirements of King III.

The committee’s terms of reference were approved by the Board and are reviewed annually.

RESPONSIBILITIES

The committee’s role and responsibilities include its statutory duties and further responsibilities assigned to it by the Board. 

The responsibilities of the Audit and Risk Committee are:

  To assist the Board with discharging its duties relating to the safeguarding of assets, the operation of adequate systems and 

controls, overseeing integrated reporting, reviewing of financial information and the preparation of interim and Annual Financial 

Statements in compliance with all applicable legal requirements and accounting standards.

  To facilitate and promote communication and liaison between the Board and the Group’s management in respect of the matters 

referred to above.

  To recommend the introduction of measures which the committee believes may enhance the credibility and objectivity of financial 

statements and reports concerning the affairs of the Group.

 To perform its statutory functions under Section 4(7) of the Companies Act.

 To advise on any matter referred to the committee by the Board.

MEMBERSHIP

The committee comprises three independent non-executive directors and is in compliance with King III.

Biographical details of the committee members are provided on page 10 and the fees paid to the committee members are outlined 

on page 41.

The Chairman of the Board, CEO, CFO, and certain other non-executive directors and representatives of the internal and external 

auditors together with other key financial staff are invited to attend the meetings.

COMMITTEE MEETINGS

The committee met four times during the year under review. Attendance has been set out on page 29 of the Corporate Governance report.

COMMITTEE ACTIVITIES

The Audit and Risk Committee attended to the following:

External auditors

  Reviewed the independence of Deloitte & Touche as the Group’s external auditor and that Mark Holme be appointed as the 

independent individual registered auditor who will undertake the Group’s audit for the ensuing year. Michael Jarvis was the 

independent individual registered auditor for the past year, but in terms of the five-year rotation rule, a new audit partner has 

to be appointed. Before recommending to the Board the re-election of Deloitte & Touche and being proposed to shareholders, 

the committee is satisfied that Deloitte & Touche is independent.

 Independence of external auditors

  The committee is satisfied that Deloitte & Touche is independent of the Group. This assessment was made after considering 

the following: 

 •  Confirmation from the external auditors that they, or their immediate family, do not hold any significant direct or indirect 

financial interests or have any material business relationships with Mpact. The external auditors also confirmed that they have 

internal monitoring procedures to ensure their independence.

 •  The auditors do not, other than in their capacity as external auditors or rendering permitted non-audit services, receive any 

remuneration or other benefits from Mpact.

 •  The auditors’ independence was not impaired by the non-audit work performed having regard to the quantum of audit fees 

relative to the total fee based and the nature of the non-audit work undertaken.

AUDIT AND RISK COMMITTEE REPORT
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 •  The auditors’ independence was not prejudiced as a result of any previous appointment as auditor. In addition, an audit partner 

rotation process is in place in accordance with the relevant legal and regulatory requirements.

 • The criteria specified for independence by the Independent Regulatory Board for Auditors.

 • The audit firm and the designated auditor are accredited with the JSE.

  The committee confirms that the external auditor has functioned in accordance with its terms of reference for the 2012 

financial year.

 External auditors’ fees

 The committee:

 •  Approved, in consultation with management, the audit fee and engagement terms for the external auditors for the 2012 

financial year. The fees paid to the auditors are disclosed below:

Description of fees R’m

Audit fees

– current year 7,0

– prior year 0,5

Non-audit fees 0,6

Total audit fees 8,1

 • Approved the non-audit services policy including the pre-approval of non-audit services.

 •  Determined the nature and extent of allowable non-audit services and approved the contract terms for the provision of 

non-audit services. It is the Group’s policy that the auditors are restricted from rendering accounting, IT consulting services, 

company secretarial, internal audit and human resource services.

 •  Reviewed and approved the external audit plan, ensuring that material risk areas were included and that coverage of the 

significant business processes was acceptable.

 •  Reviewed the external audit reports and management’s response, considered their effect on the financial statements 

and internal financial control.

Financial statements
Reviewed the interim results and year end financial statements, including the public announcements of the Group’s financial results, 

and made recommendations to the Board for their approval. In the course of its review, the committee:

 took appropriate steps to ensure that the financial statements were prepared in accordance with IFRS; 

 considered the appropriateness of accounting policies and disclosures made; and

  completed a detailed review of the going concern assumption, confirming that it was appropriate in the preparation of the 

financial statement.

The committee was not required to deal with any complaints relating to accounting practices or internal audit, nor to the content 

or audit of the financial statements, nor internal financial controls and related matters.

Internal Audit
  Reviewed and approved the existing Internal Audit charter which ensures that the Group’s Internal Audit function has the 

necessary resources, standing and authority within the organisation to enable it to discharge its duties. 

 Satisfied itself of the credibility, independence and objectivity of the Internal Audit function. 

 Ensured that Internal Audit had direct access to the committee, primarily through the committee’s Chairman. 

  Reviewed and approved the annual Internal Audit plan, ensuring that material risk areas were included and that the coverage 

of significant business processes was acceptable. 

  Reviewed the quarterly Internal Audit reports, covering the effectiveness of internal control, material fraud incidents and material 

non-compliance with Mpact’s policies and procedures. The committee is advised of all internal control developments and advised 

of any material losses, with none being reported during the year. 

  Considered and reviewed with management and internal auditors, any significant findings and management responses thereto in 

relation to reliable financial reporting, corporate governance and effective internal control to ensure appropriate action is taken. 

  Oversaw the co-operation between Internal Audit and external auditors. The committee reported that the assurance coverage 

obtained from management, internal and external assurance providers in accordance with an appropriate combined assurance 

model has not yet been completed. 

  Assessed the performance of the outsourced Internal Audit function and found it to be satisfactory.
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Internal financial control and compliance
  Reviewed and approved the existing treasury policy and reviewed the quarterly treasury reports prepared by management. 

  Reviewed the quarterly legal and regulatory reports setting out the latest legislative and regulatory developments impacting 

the Group. 

 Reviewed the quarterly report on taxation. 

 Reviewed IT reports. 

 Considered and, where appropriate, made recommendations on internal financial control. 

 Monitored the outsourced Internal Audit service provided by KPMG Internal Audit, Risk and Compliance Services. 

Patrick Moll of KPMG also acts as the Chief Audit Executive.

KPMG performed the internal audit for the year ended 31 December 2012. KPMG provided a written assessment of the effectiveness 

of Mpact’s system of internal control and risk management. The Audit and Risk Committee considered the comments in the audit reports 

issued by KPMG on the audits conducted, and together with other information available from management and the year end external 

audit reports, and determined that there were no material weaknesses in internal control and risk management. On this basis, the Audit 

and Risk Committee has made a recommendation to the Board on the effectiveness of the system of internal controls for inclusion in the 

directors’ responsibility statement.

Integrated Report
The committee fulfils an oversight role regarding the report and the reporting process. Accordingly, it has:

  Considered the Integrated Report and has assessed the consistency with operational, financial and other information known to 

the Audit and Risk Committee members, and for consistency with the Annual Financial Statements. The committee is satisfied that 

the Integrated Report is materially accurate, complete and reliable and consistent with the Annual Financial Statements.

  The committee has at its meeting held on 5 March 2013, recommended the Integrated Report for the year ended 

31 December 2012 for approval by the Board.

Governance
The Board has assigned oversight of the risk management function to the committee, which has an oversight role with respect to 

financial reporting risks arising from internal financial controls, fraud and IT risks.

In line with the terms of the Listings Requirements, the committee is satisfied that Brett Clark has the appropriate expertise and 

experience to meet the responsibilities of his appointed position as CFO as required by the JSE.

The committee is satisfied:

 with the expertise and experience of the Group Financial Manager; and

 that the resources within the finance function are adequate to provide the necessary support to the CFO.

In making these assessments, the committee has obtained feedback from the external auditors.

Based on the processes and assurances obtained, the committee believes that the accounting practices are effective.

On behalf of the Audit and Risk Committee:

Tim Ross
Audit and Risk Committee Chairman

5 March 2013

AUDIT AND RISK COMMITTEE REPORT (continued)
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
for the year ended 31 December 2012

The directors have pleasure in presenting their report on the Annual Financial Statements of Mpact for the year ended 

31 December 2012.

NATURE OF BUSINESS

Mpact, its subsidiaries and associates, operate in southern Africa as manufacturers of paper and plastic packaging.

The principal activities of the company and its subsidiaries and associates remain unchanged from the previous year.

REVIEW OF OPERATIONS

A review of operations by each operating segment can be found on pages 21 to 23.

STATED CAPITAL

On 13 July 2012 Mpact completed the repurchase of 470,820 shares, at an offer price of R17.17 per share, from its shareholders as a 

result of an odd-lot and specific offer.

The authorised share capital is 217,500,000 ordinary shares of no par value.

On 31 December 2012 the issued share capital of the company was 163,575,656 ordinary shares of no par value. (2011: 164,046,476 

ordinary shares of no par value).

REGISTER OF SHAREHOLDERS

The register of shareholders of the company is open for inspection to members and the public, during normal office hours, at the office 

of the company’s transfer secretaries, Link Market Services South Africa Proprietary Limited.

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the beneficial holdings of directors of the company and their families in ordinary shares are given on page 44.

DIVIDENDS

Details of dividends declared and paid are shown in the table below:

Dividend  

number Type

Cents per share 

(gross) Declaration date Last day to trade Payment date

1 Final 2011 40.0 8 March 2012 19 April 2012 30 April 2012

2 Interim 2012 20.0 4 September 2012 28 September 2012 8 October 2012

3 Final 2012 50.0 5 March 2013 19 April 2013 29 April 2013

The salient dates for Dividend No. 3 are as follows:

Last day to trade to receive a dividend Friday, 19 April 2013

Shares commence trading ‘ex’ dividend Monday, 22 April 2013

Record date Friday, 26 April 2013

Payment date Monday, 29 April 2013

Share certificates may not be dematerialised or rematerialised between Monday, 22 April 2013 and Friday, 26 April 2013, both 

days inclusive.

In terms of the new Dividend Tax, effective 1 April 2012, the dividends have been declared from income reserves; the dividend 

withholding tax is 15%. Mpact has no STC credits. Net dividend amount is 42.50 cents per share for shareholders liable to pay dividend 

tax and 50 cents per share for shareholders exempt from paying dividend tax. The number of shares in issue at the date of declaration 

is 163,575,656. Mpact Limited’s tax number is 9003862175.

MAJOR BENEFICIAL SHAREHOLDERS

Details relating to the beneficial shareholders owning more than 5% of the issued share capital of the company appear in the analysis 

of shareholders on page 75 of this Integrated Report.
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Certain of the Group’s properties are the subject of land claims. Mpact are in the process of discussion with the Land Claims 

Commissioner and await the outcome of claims referred to the Land Claims Court. The claims are not expected to have a material 

impact on the Group’s operations.

At 31 December 2012 the net investment in property, plant and equipment amounted to R1,999.2 million (2011: R1,935.1 million). 

Capital commitments at year end for the Group amounted to R105.7 million (2011: R72.4 million). There has been no change in the 

nature of the property, plant and equipment or to the policy relating to the use thereof during the year.

BORROWINGS

In terms of the MOI, the directors are permitted to borrow or raise for the purposes of the Group such sums as they deem fit for the 

operation of the business. At the close of business on 31 December 2012, the total borrowings less cash resources was R1,055.6 million 

(2011: R1,307.0 million). At 31 December 2012, the Group had approved general banking facilities of R2.0 billion (2011: R2.0 billion).

EVENTS OCCURRING AFTER THE REPORTING DATE

On 6 February 2013, a Group subsidiary acquired a PET tray business for R15.0 million, as a going concern.

DIRECTORS, PRESCRIBED OFFICERS AND COMPANY SECRETARY

The names of the directors who currently hold office are as follows:

 AJ Phillips – Independent Non-executive Director and Chairman of the Group

 NP Dongwana – Independent Non-executive Director

 NB Langa-Royds – Independent Non-executive Director and Chairperson of the Social and Ethics Committee

 TDA Ross – Independent Non-executive Director and Chairman of the Audit and Risk Committee

 AM Thompson – Independent Non-executive Director

 BW Strong – CEO

 BDV Clark – CFO

The details of the directors and Company Secretary can be found on pages 10 and 12, respectively.

Effective 1 June 2012, Brett Clark was appointed to the position of CFO and Executive Director following the retirement of Les Leong 

on 30 June 2012. Brett officially assumed the role of CFO at the beginning of July 2012. Other than this change, there were no further 

changes to the Board to the date of the Integrated Report.

The prescribed officers of the Group are not disclosed by name.

Noriah Sepuru is the Company Secretary.

Details of directors’ and prescribed officers’ remuneration, share appreciation rights and options appear on pages 40 to 44.

In terms of the MOI of the company, AJ Phillips and NB Langa-Royds are required to retire by rotation at the next Annual General 

Meeting. Both directors have offered themselves for re-election and the Remuneration and Nomination Committee has recommended 

their re-election to the Board.

AUDITORS

Deloitte & Touche are the appointed auditors to the Group.

BOARD STATEMENT OF EFFECTIVENESS CONTROL

Based on the recommendation of the Audit and Risk Committee on page 49, nothing has come to the attention of the Board that 

caused it to believe that the Group’s system of internal control and risk management is not effective, or that the internal controls do 

not form a sound basis for the preparation of reliable financial statements.

LITIGATION STATEMENT

Mpact is not involved in any material legal or arbitration proceedings or legal actions, nor are the directors aware of any proceedings 

that are pending or threatened, that may have, or have had, in the 12-month period preceding the date of this Integrated Report, 

a material effect on the Group’s financial position.

DIRECTORS’ REPORT (continued)
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MATERIAL CHANGES

There have been no material changes in the financial or trading position of the company and its subsidiaries between the year ended 

31 December 2012 and the date of the Integrated Report. 

GOING CONCERN

The directors consider that the Group and company have adequate resources to continue operating for the foreseeable future and that 

it is therefore appropriate to adopt the going concern basis in preparing the Group and company’s financial statements. The directors 

have satisfied themselves that the Group and company are in a sound financial position and that it has access to sufficient borrowing 

facilities to meet its foreseeable cash requirements .



54
MPACT INTEGRATED REPORT 2012

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF MPACT LIMITED

We have audited the consolidated and separate Annual Financial Statements of Mpact Limited set out in the full Annual Financial 
Statements, extracts available on pages 55 to 72, which comprise the Statement of Financial Position as at 31 December 2012, and 
the Statement of Comprehensive Income, the Statement of Changes in Equity and Statement of Cash Flows for the year then ended 
and the notes comprising a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Directors’ responsibility for the consolidated financial statements
The company’s directors are responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated and separate financial 
statements in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards, and the requirements of the Companies Act of South 
Africa, and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of the consolidated and separate 
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated and separate financial statements based on our audit. We conducted 
our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing. Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements 
and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the consolidated and separate financial statements are free 
from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. 
The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the 
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant 
to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in 
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also 
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting principles used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the 
directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion
In our opinion, these consolidated and separate financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the consolidated and 
separate financial position of Mpact Limited as at 31 December 2012, and its consolidated and separate financial performance 
and consolidated and separate cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards, 
and the requirements of the Companies Act of South Africa.

Other reports required by the Companies Act
As part of our audit of the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2012, we have read the Directors’ Report, the Audit 
and Risk Committee Report and the Certificate of the Company Secretary for the purpose of identifying whether there are material 
inconsistencies between those reports and the audited financial statements.

These reports are the responsibility of the respective preparers. Based on reading these reports we have not identified material 
inconsistencies between these reports and the audited financial statements. However, we have not audited these reports and 
accordingly do not express an opinion on these reports.

Deloitte & Touche
Registered Auditors

MJ Jarvis
Partner

5 March 2013

Buildings 1 and 2, Deloitte Place, The Woodlands Office Park, Woodlands Drive, Sandton

National Executive: LL Bam (Chief Executive), AE Swiegers (Chief Operating Officer), GM Pinnock (Audit), DL Kennedy (Risk 
Advisory), NB Kader (Tax), T Pillay (Consulting & Clients & Industries), JK Mazzocco (Talent & Transformation), CR Beukman (Finance), 
M Jordan (Strategy), S Gwala (Special Projects), TJ Brown (Chairman of the Board), MJ Comber (Deputy Chairman of the Board)

A full list of partners and directors is available on request.

B-BBEE rating: Level 2 contributor in terms of the Chartered Accountancy Profession Sector Code

Member of Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu Limited
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
at 31 December 2012

Group

2012 2011

Notes R’m R’m

Goodwill and other intangible assets 8 1,057.1 1,064.8

Property, plant and equipment 9 1,999.2 1,935.1

Investments in associates 70.2 69.1

Financial asset investments 10.6 10.6

Deferred tax assets 6.0 15.3

Retirement benefits surplus – 26.6

Non-current assets 3,143.1 3,121.5

Inventories 826.7 729.3

Trade and other receivables 1,462.9 1,329.2

Cash and cash equivalents 399.5 422.1

Derivative financial instruments 2.7 3.1

Current tax receivable 1.6 –

Current assets 2,693.4 2,483.7

Total assets 5,836.5 5,605.2

Short-term borrowings 332.8 577.9

Trade and other payables 1,478.6 1,293.6

Current tax liabilities 1.5 9.1

Other current liabilities 25.6 –

Provisions 1.8 2.5

Derivative financial instruments 0.8 1.9

Current liabilities 1,841.1 1,885.0

Non-current borrowings 1,122.3 1,151.2

Retirement benefits obligation 63.1 58.9

Deferred taxation liabilities 161.4 61.1

Other non-current liabilities – 37.0

Derivative financial instruments 6.2 –

Non-current liabilities 1,353.0 1,308.2

Total liabilities 3,194.1 3,193.2

Stated capital 10 2,326.0 2,334.1

Retained earnings/(accumulated loss) 215.6 (10.5)

Other reserves 11.2 (22.5)

Total attributable to equity holders of Mpact 2,552.8 2,301.1

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries 89.6 110.9

Total equity 2,642.4 2,412.0

Total equity and liabilities 5,836.5 5,605.2
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
for the year ended 31 December 2012

2012 2011

Before

special

items

Special

items

(note 4)

After

special

items

Before

special

items

Special

items

(note 4)

After

special

items

Notes R’m R’m R’m R’m R’m R’m

GROUP
Revenue 2 6,820.8 – 6,820.8 6,281.0 – 6,281.0
Cost of sales (4,079.7) – (4,079.7) (3,775.5) – (3,775.5)

Gross margin 2,741.1 – 2,741.1 2,505.5 – 2,505.5
Administration and other operating expenses (1,829.6) (5.4) (1,835.0) (1,665.6) (53.1) (1,718.7)
Depreciation, amortisation and impairments (326.8) (0.6) (327.4) (323.4) – (323.4)

Operating profit 2/3 584.7 (6.0) 578.7 516.5 (53.1) 463.4
Profit on disposal of investments – – – – 0.3 0.3
Share of associates profit 8.6 – 8.6 2.3 – 2.3

Total profit from operations and 

associates 593.3 (6.0) 587.3 518.8 (52.8) 466.0

Net finance costs 5 (127.8) – (127.8) (256.3) (34.3) (290.6)

 Investment income 9.9 – 9.9 28.4 – 28.4
 Finance costs (137.7) – (137.7) (284.7) (34.3) (319.0)

Profit before taxation 465.5 (6.0) 459.5 262.5 (87.1) 175.4
Tax (charge)/credit 6 (139.7) 1.7 (138.0) (76.1) 8.4 (67.7)

Profit from operations 325.8 (4.3) 321.5 186.4 (78.7) 107.7

Other comprehensive income:
Effects of cash flow hedges (4.7) 4.1
Actuarial (losses)/gains and surplus restriction 

on post-retirement benefit schemes (1.1) 28.4
Exchange differences on translation 

of foreign operations (0.1) 1.6
Cash flow hedge reserve recycled through 

profit and loss – 23.1
Tax relating to components of other 

comprehensive income 1.6 (15.6)

Other comprehensive (loss)/ income  

for the financial year net of tax (4.3) 41.6

Total comprehensive income  

for the financial year 317.2 149.3

Attributable to:
Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries 12.7 17.9
Equity holders of Mpact 304.5 131.4

317.2 149.3

Profit for the financial year 321.5 107.7
Attributable to:
Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries 12.7 17.6

Equity holders of Mpact 308.8 90.1

Earnings per share (EPS) for profit 

attributable to equity holders of Mpact
Basic EPS (cents) 7 188.5 54.9
Diluted EPS (cents) 7 187.9 54.9



57
MPACT INTEGRATED REPORT 2012

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
for the year ended 31 December 2012

Group

2012 2011

Notes R’m R’m

Operating cash flows before movements in working capital 913.7 765.0

Net (increase)/decrease in working capital (48.4) 48.1

Cash generated from operations 865.3 813.1

Dividends from associates 7.5 –

Taxation paid (38.3) (23.6)

Net cash inflows from operating activities 834.5 789.5

Cash flows from investing activities

Acquisition of subsidiaries, net of cash (7.1) (16.8)

Proceeds from disposal of a business – 90.0

Proceeds from disposal of associate – 0.3

Replacement of property, plant and equipment 9 (362.5) (337.4)

Proceeds from the disposal of property, plant and equipment 4.6 7.8

Acquisition of intangible assets 8 (8.9) –

Investment in associates – (13.9)

Loan repayments from related parties 1.6 2.4

Loan (advances to)/repayments from external parties (1.6) 2.4

Interest received 9.9 10.0

Net cash outflows from investing activities (364.0) (255.2)

Cash flows from financing activities

Repayment of borrowings (261.5) (2,021.8)

Finance costs paid (102.0) (269.8)

Dividends paid to non-controlling interests (4.3) (1.5)

Dividends paid to equity holders of Mpact Limited (98.3) –

Acquisition of non-controlling interest in a subsidiary (1.8) (3.6)

Proceeds from non-controlling shareholder on corporatisation of a business – 23.7

Issue of ordinary (share buy back)/share capital (8.1) 2,089.8

Repayment of other non-current liabilities (20.3) (40.0)

Net cash outflows from financing activities (496.3) (223.2)

Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents (25.8) 311.1

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year1 406.9 95.8

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year1 381.1 406.9

1 Cash and cash equivalents net of overdrafts



58
MPACT INTEGRATED REPORT 2012

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
for the year ended 31 December 2012

Stated

capital

Share-based

payment

reserves2

Cash flow

hedge reserves

Post-retirement

benefit reserves

Other

reserves1

Retained earnings/

(accumulated loss)

Total attributable

to equity holders

of Mpact Limited

Non-controlling

interests

Total

equity

R’m R’m R’m R’m R’m R’m R’m R’m R’m

GROUP

Balance at 31 December 2010 244.3 12.1 (19.6) (3.3) (67.3) (58.3) 107.9 73.2 181.1

Total comprehensive income for the year – – 19.6 20.4 1.3 90.1 131.4 17.9 149.3

Issue of shares 2,089.8 – – – – – 2,089.8 – 2,089.8

Demerger arrangements – (22.5) – – – (15.3) (37.8) – (37.8)

Share plan charges for the year – 12.3 – – – – 12.3 – 12.3

Dividends paid to non-controlling interests – – – – – – – (1.5) (1.5)

Reclassification – (0.1) – – – 0.1 – – –

Change in foreign subsidiary functional currency – – – – 24.6 (25.9) (1.3) – (1.3)

Increase in shareholding of subsidiary – – – – – (1.2) (1.2) (2.4) (3.6)

Increase in non-controlling interest in a subsidiary – – – – – – – 23.7 23.7

Balance at 31 December 2011 2,334.1 1.8 – 17.1 (41.4) (10.5) 2,301.1 110.9 2,412.0

Total comprehensive income for the year – – (3.4) (0.8) (0.1) 308.8 304.5 12.7 317.2

Dividends paid – – – – – (98.3) (98.3) – (98.3)

Share buy back3 (8.1) – – – – – (8.1) – (8.1)

Share plan charges for the year – 8.5 – – – – 8.5 – 8.5

Dividends paid to non-controlling interests – – – – – – – (4.3) (4.3)

Reclassification of pension fund reserve – – – (16.6) – 16.6 – – –

Decrease in non-controlling interest and put option exercised4 – – – – 46.1 (1.0) 45.1 (29.7) 15.4

Balance at 31 December 2012 2,326.0 10.3 (3.4) (0.3) 4.6 215.6 2,552.8 89.6 2,642.4

1  Other reserves consist of the option to equity holder reserve of R16.0 million debit, (2011: R61.8 million debit) revaluation reserve of R0.8 million 
(2011: R0.8 million) and currency translation adjustment reserve of R19.8 million (2011: R19.6 million)

2  As a result of the demerger from Mondi, Mpact employees no longer participate in the Mondi bonus share plans. This resulted in an advanced vesting of the 
share based payment reserve relating to the Mondi share plans. The Mondi share plan charge for the prior year including the advanced vesting of the shares 
amounted to R10.5 million

  Subsequent to the advanced vesting of the Mondi share plan, Mpact has set up its own share plans. The closing balance of the share based payment reserve 
as at 31 December 2012 represents the reserve relating to the Mpact share plans

3  On 13 July 2012 the Company repurchased 470,820 shares as a result of an odd-lot and specific offer
4  Minority shareholders of a Group subsidiary exercised their put option which resulted in a decrease in their shareholding
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Stated

capital

Share-based

payment

reserves2

Cash flow

hedge reserves

Post-retirement

benefit reserves

Other

reserves1

Retained earnings/

(accumulated loss)

Total attributable

to equity holders

of Mpact Limited

Non-controlling

interests

Total

equity

R’m R’m R’m R’m R’m R’m R’m R’m R’m

GROUP

Balance at 31 December 2010 244.3 12.1 (19.6) (3.3) (67.3) (58.3) 107.9 73.2 181.1

Total comprehensive income for the year – – 19.6 20.4 1.3 90.1 131.4 17.9 149.3

Issue of shares 2,089.8 – – – – – 2,089.8 – 2,089.8

Demerger arrangements – (22.5) – – – (15.3) (37.8) – (37.8)

Share plan charges for the year – 12.3 – – – – 12.3 – 12.3

Dividends paid to non-controlling interests – – – – – – – (1.5) (1.5)

Reclassification – (0.1) – – – 0.1 – – –

Change in foreign subsidiary functional currency – – – – 24.6 (25.9) (1.3) – (1.3)

Increase in shareholding of subsidiary – – – – – (1.2) (1.2) (2.4) (3.6)

Increase in non-controlling interest in a subsidiary – – – – – – – 23.7 23.7

Balance at 31 December 2011 2,334.1 1.8 – 17.1 (41.4) (10.5) 2,301.1 110.9 2,412.0

Total comprehensive income for the year – – (3.4) (0.8) (0.1) 308.8 304.5 12.7 317.2

Dividends paid – – – – – (98.3) (98.3) – (98.3)

Share buy back3 (8.1) – – – – – (8.1) – (8.1)

Share plan charges for the year – 8.5 – – – – 8.5 – 8.5

Dividends paid to non-controlling interests – – – – – – – (4.3) (4.3)

Reclassification of pension fund reserve – – – (16.6) – 16.6 – – –

Decrease in non-controlling interest and put option exercised4 – – – – 46.1 (1.0) 45.1 (29.7) 15.4

Balance at 31 December 2012 2,326.0 10.3 (3.4) (0.3) 4.6 215.6 2,552.8 89.6 2,642.4

1  Other reserves consist of the option to equity holder reserve of R16.0 million debit, (2011: R61.8 million debit) revaluation reserve of R0.8 million 
(2011: R0.8 million) and currency translation adjustment reserve of R19.8 million (2011: R19.6 million)

2  As a result of the demerger from Mondi, Mpact employees no longer participate in the Mondi bonus share plans. This resulted in an advanced vesting of the 
share based payment reserve relating to the Mondi share plans. The Mondi share plan charge for the prior year including the advanced vesting of the shares 
amounted to R10.5 million

  Subsequent to the advanced vesting of the Mondi share plan, Mpact has set up its own share plans. The closing balance of the share based payment reserve 
as at 31 December 2012 represents the reserve relating to the Mpact share plans

3  On 13 July 2012 the Company repurchased 470,820 shares as a result of an odd-lot and specific offer
4  Minority shareholders of a Group subsidiary exercised their put option which resulted in a decrease in their shareholding
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ABRIDGED NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

IMPORTANT NOTICE

For the comprehensive notes to the Annual Financial Statements as well as the accounting policies, please refer to www.mpact.co.za 

1. ACCOUNTING POLICIES

 Basis of preparation
  These Condensed Consolidated Annual Financial Statements have been prepared in accordance with the framework concepts 

and measurement and recognition requirements of International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) as issued by the 
International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) (in particular IAS 34: Interim Financial Reporting), the SAICA Financial Reporting 
Guides as issued by the Accounting Practices Committee and Financial Reporting Pronouncements as issued by Financial 
Reporting Standards Council, the JSE Listings Requirements and the Companies Act.

  The Group’s Annual Financial Statements, from which these Condensed Annual Financial Statements have been derived, have 
been audited by the company’s auditors, Deloitte & Touche, whose unmodified report is available for inspection at the registered 
company office.

  The preparation of these Condensed Consolidated Annual Financial Statements was supervised by the CFO, BDV Clark CA (SA).

  These Condensed Consolidated Annual Financial Statements should be read in conjunction with the Group’s Annual Financial 
Statements, from which they have been derived. Included in this report is a summary of the Annual Financial Statements while 
the full Annual Financial Statements are available on the Group’s website, www.mpact.co.za.

 Accounting policies
  The accounting policies and methods of computation used are consistent with those applied in the preparation of the Group 

Annual Financial Statements.

  The Group has adopted the following Standards, amendments to published Standards and Interpretations during the current 
year, all of which had no significant impact on the Group’s results:

 • IAS 1 –  Presentation of Financial Statements
 • IAS 12 – Income Taxes

2. OPERATING SEGMENTS
Operating segment revenue

2012 2011

Segment

revenue

Internal

revenue1

External

revenue

Segment

revenue1

Internal

revenue

External

revenue
R’m R’m R’m R’m R’m R’m

Paper 5,058.6 (16.2) 5,042.4 4,591.2 (18.6) 4,572.6
Plastics 1,778.6 (0.2) 1,778.4 1,577.0 (0.4) 1,576.6
Corporate and other businesses2 – – – 131.8 – 131.8

Segments total 6,837.2 (16.4) 6,820.8 6,300.0 (19.0) 6,281.0
Inter-segment elimination (16.4) 16.4 – (19.0) 19.0 –

Group total 6,820.8 – 6,820.8 6,281.0 – 6,281.0

1 Inter-segment transactions are conducted on an arm’s length basis
2 Corporate and other businesses relate to the Merchant business which was sold at the end of March 2011

Group

2012 2011

R’m R’m

External revenue by product type
Products
Corrugated and paper board products 5,042.4 4,572.6
Plastic packaging products 1,778.4 1,576.6
Other1 – 131.8

Group total 6,820.8 6,281.0

1 Revenues derived from product types that are not material are classed as other
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2. OPERATING SEGMENTS (continued) Group

2012 2011

R’m R’m

External revenue by location of customer

Revenue

South Africa (country of domicile) 6,123.1 5,686.9

Rest of Africa 637.9 558.7

Rest of world 59.8 35.4

Group total 6,820.8 6,281.0

There are no external customers which accounts form more than 10% of the Group’s 

total external revenue.

Operating segment operating profit/(loss)1

Paper 562.4 560.3

Plastics 116.7 113.9

Corporate and other businesses (94.4) (157.7)

Segments total 584.7 516.5

Special items (see note 4) (6.0) (87.1)

Share of associates profit 8.6 2.3

Net finance costs (see note 5 excluding special financing) (127.8) (256.3)

Group profit before tax 459.5 175.4

Significant components of operating profit before special items

Depreciation and amortisation

Paper 183.6 167.6

Plastics 109.5 111.6

Corporate and other businesses 33.7 44.2

Segments total 326.8 323.4

Operating segment assets

Segment assets2

Paper 2,837.4 2,743.6

Plastics 1,296.0 1,120.9

Corporate and other businesses 1,093.4 1,142.5

Inter-segment elimination (2.6) (1.9)

Segment total 5,224.2 5,005.1

Unallocated:

Investments in associates 70.2 69.1

Deferred tax assets 6.0 15.3

Other non-operating assets3 126.0 83.0

Group trading assets 5,426.4 5,172.5

Financial asset investments 10.6 10.6

Cash and cash equivalents 399.5 422.1

Group assets 5,836.5 5,605.2

1  In the current year the internal cost re-allocation basis between the Paper and Plastics businesses and Corporate Office was changed to provide a 
more meaningful representation of each segment’s performance. Had this change been effected in the prior year, the operating profit for the Paper 
business would have been R510.7 million and the operating profit for the Plastics business would have been R100.0 million. Corporate costs for 
the same period would have decreased as a result of the re-allocation

2  Segment assets are operating assets and as at 31 December 2012 consist of property, plant and equipment of R1,999.2 million 
(2011: R1,935.1 million), goodwill and other intangible assets of R1,057.1 million (2011: R1,064.8 million), retirement benefits surplus of Rnil 
(2011: R26.6 million), inventories of R826.7 million (2011: R729.3 million) and operating receivables of R1,341.2 million (2011: R1,249.3 million)

3  Other non-operating assets consist of derivative assets of R2.7 million (2011: R3.1 million), other non-operating receivables of R121.7 million 
(2011: R79.9 million) and current tax receivable R1.6 million (2011: Rnil million)
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2. OPERATING SEGMENTS (continued) Group

2012 2011

R’m R’m

Non-current non-financial assets3

South Africa (country of domicile) 3,019.9 2,963.4

Rest of Africa 36.4 36.5

Group total 3,056.3 2,999.9

3  Non-current non-financial assets consist of property, plant and equipment and goodwill and other intangible assets, but excludes retirement benefits 
surplus, deferred tax assets and non-current financial assets

Group

2012 2011

R’m R’m

Additions to non-current non-financial assets4

Paper 223.8 162.6

Plastics 151.3 176.3

Corporate and other businesses 7.0 10.9

Group and segments total 382.1 349.8

4  Additions to non-current non-financial assets reflect cash payments and accruals in respect of additions to property, plant and equipment and 
intangible assets and include interest capitalised as well as additions resulting from acquisitions through business combinations. Additions to non-
current non-financial assets, however, exclude additions to deferred tax assets, retirement benefits surplus and non-current financial assets

3. OPERATING PROFIT Group

2012 2011

R’m R’m

Operating profit for the year has been arrived at after charging/(crediting):

Impairment charge of property, plant and equipment (see note 9) 0.6 –

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment (see note 9) 310.2 299.3

Amortisation of intangibles (see note 8) 16.6 24.1

Rentals under operating leases 98.3 90.4

Net foreign currency gains (2.9) (10.0)

Profit on disposal of tangible assets (2.9) (1.1)

Auditors’ remuneration 8.1 9.7

Audit fees

– current 7.0 6.7

– prior 0.5 0.7

Non-audit fees 0.6 2.3

Staff costs (excluding directors emoluments) 1,150.1 1,043.7

Directors emoluments (excluding value of deferred bonus shares awarded)1 12.0 8.6

Total revenue, as defined under IAS 18, ‘Revenue’, consisting of revenue, interest income and dividend income was 

R6,830.7 million (2011: R6,291.0 million).

1 The details of the directors’ emoluments are disclosed in the Remuneration Report, see page 40

ABRIDGED NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
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4. SPECIAL ITEMS
Group

2012 2011

R’m R’m

Listing transaction costs1 – 46.3

Special financing costs2 – 34.3

Demerger arrangements3 – 6.8

Profit on disposal of part investment in associate – (0.3)

Defined benefit pension plan settlement charge4 5.4 –

Impairment of property, plant and equipment 0.6 –

Total special items before tax and non-controlling interests 6.0 87.1

Tax (1.7) (8.4)

4.3 78.7

Non-controlling interests – –

Total special items attributable to equity holders of Mpact 4.3 78.7

1  Listing transaction costs associated with the listing of the company on the Johannesburg Stock Exchange in July 2011
2  As a result of the demerger from Mondi, and separate listing, the Group restructured, and settled its long term debt including its floating rate debt. 

As a result of the settlement of the floating rate debt, the corresponding interest rate swap on this debt was terminated. The costs of R23.1 million 
of early termination of the interest rate swap, have been included in finance costs for the prior year. In addition, finance costs of R11.2 million were 
incurred on the debt financing arrangements

3  Equity-settled demerger arrangements for senior management have resulted in a fair value charge for the Group in 2011
4  A settlement charge recognised in the current year relating to the winding-up of the defined benefit pension plan

Group

2012 2011

R’m R’m

Special items before tax and non-controlling interests by operating segment:

Paper – (0.3)

Plastics 0.6 –

Corporate and other businesses 5.4 87.4

Segments total 6.0 87.1
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5. NET FINANCE COSTS
Group

2012 2011

R’m R’m

Investment income

Bank deposits and loan receivables 7.2 8.3

Other 2.7 1.7

Total interest income 9.9 10.0

Expected return on defined benefit arrangements – 14.4

Fair value gains – 4.0

Total investment income 9.9 28.4

Finance costs

Interest on bank overdrafts and loans (130.7) (266.0)

Interest on defined benefit arrangements (5.0) (18.7)

Total interest expense (135.7) (284.7)

Special financing costs (see note 4) – (34.3)

Fair value losses (2.0) –

Total finance costs (137.7) (319.0)

Net finance costs (127.8) (290.6)

6. TAX CHARGE
Group

2012 2011

R’m R’m

Analysis of tax charge for the year from continuing operations

South African corporation tax 23.9 18.6

Other country tax 0.9 2.3

Secondary Tax on Companies 4.3 –

Current tax (excluding tax on special items) 29.1 20.9

Deferred tax in respect of the current period (excluding special items) 110.8 57.4

Deferred tax in respect of prior period (0.2) (2.2)

Total tax charge before special items 139.7 76.1

Deferred tax on special items (1.7) (8.4)

Total tax charge 138.0 67.7

ABRIDGED NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
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6. TAX CHARGE (continued)

 Factors affecting tax charge for the year

  The Group’s effective rate of tax for the year ended 31 December 2012, calculated on profit before tax after special items 

and including net income from associates is 30.0% (2011: 38.6%).

  The Group has estimated tax losses of R495.2 million (2011: R929.2 million) on which a deferred tax asset of R138.2 million 

(2011: R260.2 million) has been raised.

  The Group’s total tax charge for the year can be reconciled to the tax on the Group’s profit before tax at the South African 

corporation tax rate of 28% as follows:

Group

2012 2011

R’m R’m

Profit before tax 459.5 175.4

Less share of profit of associates (8.6) (2.3)

Profit before tax, adjusted for associates 450.9 173.1

Tax on profit before tax calculated at the South African corporation tax rate of 28% 126.3 48.5

Tax effects of:

Expenses not deductible for tax purposes

Non-deductible interest 5.6 6.5

Non-deductible special items – 12.9

Other non-deductible expenses 0.9 0.4

Non-taxable income

Other non-taxable income (1.9) (2.0)

Non-taxable foreign exchange differences (0.8) –

Temporary difference adjustments

Prior period tax losses and other temporary differences not previously recognised 3.1 0.5

Effect of difference between South African corporate tax rate and other country tax rate (0.5) 0.3

Secondary Tax on Companies 4.3 –

Other adjustments 1.0 0.6

Tax charge for the year 138.0 67.7

IAS 1 requires income from associates to be presented net of tax on the face of the statement of comprehensive income. 

The Group’s share of its associates’ tax is therefore not presented within the Group’s total tax charge. The associates’ tax charge 

included within ‘Share of associates’ profit for the year ended 31 December 2012 is Rnil (2011: Rnil).

7. EARNINGS PER SHARE
Cents per share

2012 2011

Earnings per share (EPS)

Basic EPS 188.5 54.9

Diluted EPS 187.9 54.9

Underlying earnings per share for the financial year1

Basic underlying EPS 191.1 102.9

Diluted underlying EPS 190.5 102.8

Headline earnings per share for the financial year2

Basic headline EPS 187.5 54.3

Diluted headline EPS 186.9 54.2

1  Underlying EPS excludes the impact of special items
2  The presentation of headline EPS is mandated under the Listings Requirements. Headline earnings has been calculated in accordance with 

Circular 3/2012, ‘Headline Earnings’, as issued by the South African Institute of Chartered Accountants
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7. EARNINGS PER SHARE (continued)
The calculation of basic and diluted EPS, basic and diluted underlying EPS, and basic and diluted headline EPS is based on 

the following data:
Earnings

2012 2011
R’m R’m

Profit for the financial year attributable to equity holders of Mpact 308.8 90.1
Special items (see note 4) 6.0 87.1
Related tax (1.7) (8.4)

Underlying earnings for the financial year 313.1 168.8

Special items to be included in headline earnings (5.4) (87.4)
Profit on disposal of tangible and intangible assets (see note 3) (2.9) (1.1)
Related tax 2.3 8.7

Headline earnings for the financial year 307.1 89.0

Weighted number of shares

2012 2011

Basic number of ordinary shares outstanding 163,825,216 164,046,476
Effect of dilutive potential ordinary shares1 533,954 173,484

Diluted number of ordinary shares outstanding 164,359,170 164,219,960

1  Diluted EPS is calculated by adjusting the weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue, on the assumption of conversion of all potentially 
dilutive ordinary shares

8. GOODWILL AND OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS Group

Goodwill
Other

intangibles2 Total

Group R’m R’m R’m

2012
Cost
At 1 January 1,021.4 211.0 1,232.4
Additions – 8.9 8.9
Transfer from property, plant and equipment (see note 9) – 0.1 0.1

At 31 December 2012 1,021.4 220.0 1,241.4

Accumulated amortisation and impairment
At 1 January 0.3 167.3 167.6
Charge for the year – 16.6 16.6
Transfer from property, plant and equipment (see note 9) – 0.1 0.1

At 31 December 2012 0.3 184.0 184.3

Net book value at 31 December 2012 1,021.1 36.0 1,057.1

2011
Cost
At 1 January 1,020.1 211.0 1,231.1
Acquisition of business 1.3 – 1.3

At 31 December 2011 1,021.4 211.0 1,232.4

Accumulated amortisation and impairment
At 1 January 0.3 143.2 143.5
Charge for the year – 24.1 24.1

At 31 December 2011 0.3 167.3 167.6

Net book value at 31 December 2011 1,021.1 43.7 1,064.8

2   Other intangibles mainly relate to software development costs; and customer relationships and contractual arrangements capitalised as a result of 
business combinations

ABRIDGED NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
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9. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT Group

Land and

buildings

Plant and

equipment

Assets in the

course of

construction Other Total

R’m R’m R’m R’m R’m

2012

Cost

At 1 January 259.1 2,807.2 116.4 126.8 3,309.5

Acquisition of business – 10.3 – 0.4 10.7

Additions 19.4 288.4 28.3 26.4 362.5

Disposals (0.3) (12.4) – (14.5) (27.2)

Transfer to intangible assets – – – (0.1) (0.1)

Transfer from inventory – 3.4 – – 3.4

At 31 December 2012 278.2 3,096.9 144.7 139.0 3,658.8

Accumulated depreciation 

and impairments

At 1 January 53.7 1,233.6 – 87.1 1,374.4

Depreciation 9.9 279.4 – 20.9 310.2

Disposals (0.2) (10.8) – (14.5) (25.5)

Impairment – 0.6 – – 0.6

Reclassification – (0.6) – 0.6 –

Transfer to intangible assets – – – (0.1) (0.1)

At 31 December 2012 63.4 1,502.2 – 94.0 1,659.6

Net book value at 31 December 2012 214.8 1,594.7 144.7 45.0 1,999.2

2011

Cost

At 1 January 205.7 2,569.4 115.6 103.1 2,993.8

Acquisition of business 8.5 2.6 – – 11.1

Additions 45.0 261.4 1.2 29.8 337.4

Disposals (0.1) (19.1) – (6.2) (25.4)

Reclassification – 0.2 (0.3) 0.1 –

Change in foreign subsidiary functional 

currency1 – (7.3) (0.1) – (7.4)

At 31 December 2011 259.1 2,807.2 116.4 126.8 3,309.5

Accumulated depreciation 

and impairments

At 1 January 43.4 980.4 – 72.1 1,095.9

Depreciation 10.4 268.3 – 20.6 299.3

Disposals (0.1) (13.3) – (5.3) (18.7)

Reclassification – 0.2 – (0.2) –

Change in foreign subsidiary functional 

currency1 – (2.0) – (0.1) (2.1)

At 31 December 2011 53.7 1,233.6 – 87.1 1,374.4

Net book value at 31 December 2011 205.4 1,573.6 116.4 39.7 1,935.1

1  A subsidiary in Zimbabwe changed its functional currency to US Dollars
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9. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)

  The Group has pledged all property, plant and equipment, other than assets under finance leases and those of certain Group 

entities, as security in respect of the bank loans.

  The net book value and depreciation charges relating to assets under finance leases amounts to R23.7 million (2011: 

R53.9 million) and R8,5 million (2011: R16,9 million), respectively, and has been pledged as security for these long-term 

borrowings.

 The net book value of land and buildings comprises:

Group

2012 2011

R’m R’m

Freehold 195.4 189.6

Leasehold – long 7.7 13.4

Leasehold – short 11.7 2.4

Total land and buildings 214.8 205.4

10. STATED CAPITAL
Group

2012 2011

R’m R’m

Authorised share capital

217,500,000 shares of no par value – –

Issued share capital

Conversion of share premium to stated capital – 244.3

Issue of 163,575,656 (2011: 164,046,476) shares of no par value 2,334.1 2,089.8

Repurchase of shares (8.1) –

2,326.0 2,334.1

  On 28 April 2011 the number of ordinary shares in issue was increased from 159,950 ordinary shares to 23,192,750 ordinary 

shares following a share split. On 5 July 2011 an additional 140,853,726 ordinary shares were issued to the then shareholders as 

part of Mpact’s capital restructuring prior to listing. Consequently the company listed on 11 July 2011 with 164,046,476 issued 

ordinary shares. All issued and authorised ordinary shares in the company with a par value have been converted into ordinary 

shares of no par value. On 13 July 2012 the listing of 470,820 ordinary shares of no par value was withdrawn in terms of the 

company’s specific repurchase of shares.

ABRIDGED NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
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11. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS

  The Group has a share-based payment arrangement for executives and senior employees of the company and its subsidiaries. 

The Group intends to operate three plans on a continuing basis, namely Bonus Share Plan (BSP), Performance Share Plan (PSP) 

and Share Appreciation Right Plan (SARP). In addition to the three plans, two executives were granted once-off share awards 

under a Transitional Share Plan (TSP).

  Prior to the demerger from Mondi Limited on 11 July 2012, the Group and company participated in a number of share-based 

payment arrangements operated by Mondi Limited. During the prior period, share awards made under the Mondi Limited plans 

vested.

  The total fair value charge in respect of all the Mpact and Mondi share awards granted during the year ended 31 December is 

made up as follows:

Group

2012 2011

R’m R’m

Bonus Share Plan (BSP) 4.8 1.0

Performance Share Plan (PSP) 2.9 0.6

Transitional Share Plan (TSP) 0.8 0.2

Mondi Limited share arrangements1 – 10.5

Total share-based payment expense 8.5 12.3

1  Consists of Bonus Share Plan (BSP) and Long-term Intentive Plant (LTIP). Of this charge R6.8 million relates to the accelerated vesting of the Mondi 
share awards on demerger

The fair values of the share awards granted under the Mpact share plans are calculated with reference to the facts and 

assumptions presented below:

2012 2011

Bonus Share Plan (BSP)

Date of grant 1 April 2012 1 September 2011

Vesting period (months) 36 31

Expected leavers per annum (%) 5 5

Grant date fair value per instrument (R) 15.45 13.28

Performance Share Plan (PSP)

Date of grant 1 April 2012 1 September 2011

Vesting period (months) 36 31

Expected leavers per annum (%) 5 5

Expected outcome of meeting performance criteria (%)

– Return on capital employed (ROCE) component 100 100

–  Total shareholder return (TSR) component determined inside the valuation model 

and incorporated in the fair value per option

Grant date fair value per instrument (R)

– ROCE component 15.45 12.95

– TSR component 9.69 7.51

Share Appreciation Right Plan (SARP)1

Date of grant 1 September 2011

Vesting period

Equal third on

31 March

2014/2015/2016

Expected leavers per annum (%) 5

Expected outcome of meeting performance criteria (%)

– EBITDA component –

Strike price (R) 13.41

1  No share appreciation right plan was granted during the current year
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ABRIDGED NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

11. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (continued) 2011

Transitional Share Plan (TSP)

Date of grant 1 September 2011

Vesting period (months) 19

Expected leavers per annum (%) –

Expected outcome of meeting performance criteria (%)

– ROCE compoment1 79.4

– TSR determined inside the valuation model and incorporated in the fair value per option

Grant date fair value per instrument (R)

– ROCE component 13.07

– TSR component 7.07

1  The expected outcome of meeting the performance criteria changed to 100% in 2012

A reconciliation of share award movements for the Group is shown below:

1 January

2012

Shares

conditionally

awarded in year

Shares vested

in year

Shares forfeited

in year

31 December

2012

BSP 641,662 535,722 – (51,427) 1,125,957

PSP 466,338 373,029 – – 839,367

TSP 131,786 – – – 131,786

SARP 2,599,608 – – (143,671) 2,455,937

12. BUSINESS COMBINATIONS

 (a)  On 1 February 2012 the Group acquired a PET tray business for R8,0 million as a going concern. Profit for the year arising on 

this acquisition was not material for the Group.

 (b)  In the prior year, the Group acquired a 100% interest in Plastic Omnium Urban Systems Pty Ltd, through its shareholding 

in Mpact Plastic Containers South Africa Pty Ltd for a purchase consideration of R19,7 million effective as of the 

31 January 2011. Profit for the year arising on this acquisition was not material for the Group.

 Details of the net assets acquired and the attributable goodwill are presented as follows:

Group

2012 2011

R’m R’m

Non-current assets 10.7 11.9

Current assets 12.5 12.6

Non-current liabilities (3.5) (1.3)

Current liabilities (11.7) (4.8)

Net assets acquired 8.0 18.4

Goodwill acquired (see note 8) – 1.3

Total cost of acquisition 8.0 19.7

Cash acquired (0.9) (2.9)

Net cash paid 7.1 16.8
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13. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS
Group

2012 2011

R’m R’m

Contracted for, but not provided 62.5 51.5

Approved, not yet contracted for 43.2 20.9

105.7 72.4

The capital commitments will be financed from existing cash resources and borrowing facilities.

14. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND CONTINGENT ASSETS
 (a)  Contingent liabilities for the Group comprise aggregate amounts at 31 December 2012 of R7.7 million (2011: R8,6 million) in 

respect of loans and guarantees given to banks and other third parties.

 (b)  A Group mill is the subject of a land claim, which should not have a material impact on the financial position of the Group.

 (c)  There are a number of legal and tax claims against the Group. Provision is made for all liabilities that are expected to 

materialise.

 (d)  In the current year a settlement was reached in respect of a dispute relating to the valuation of put options in a Group 

subsidiary. The settlement agreement provides for a deferred payment contingent upon the achievement of certain EBITDA 

and ROCE levels for the years 2013 to 2018, subject to a maximum amount of R18,4 million.

 (e)  There were no significant contingent assets for the Group as at 31 December 2012 and 31 December 2011.

15. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

  The Group has a related party relationship with its associates and directors.

  The Group and its subsidiaries, in the ordinary course of business, enter into various sales, purchase and services transactions with 

joint ventures and associates and others in which the Group has a material interest. These transactions are under terms that are 

no less favourable than those arranged with third parties. These transactions in total are not significant.

  Transactions disclosed elsewhere in the notes have not been repeated here. Details of transactions between the Group and other 

related parties are disclosed below:

Group

2012 2011

R’m R’m

Sales to related parties 52.5 57.1

Loans from related parties 11.3 34.3

Loans to related parties 0.8 2.4

Receivables due from related parties 20.7 20.4

Payables due to related parties 0.8 0.6

Management fees paid 0.3 0.4

Management salaries paid to non-controlling shareholders of a subsidiary 10.9 9.8
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Share capital Share holding Cost of investment Loans

2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011

% % R’m R’m R’m R’m

Subsidiary – Direct holding

Mpact Namibia (Proprietary) Limited N$100 N$100 69 69 21.2 21.2 6.5 –

Embalagens Mpact Limitada M1,213,000 M1,213,000 85 85 0.9 0.9 – –

Rebel Packaging Proprietary Limited R4,000 R4,000 100 100 – – 26.7 37.2

Mpact Plastic Containers 

Proprietary Limited R100 R100 54 54 3.8 3.8 – –

Lenco Holdings Proprietary Limited R100 R100 100 100 646.7 646.7 – –

Mpact Recycling Proprietary Limited R100 R100 75 75 70.6 70.6 – –

743.2 743.2 33.2 37.2

Subsidiaries – Indirect holding

Linpac Mouldings South Africa 

Proprietary Limited R100 R100 – –

Lenco Corporate Finance 

Proprietary Limited R100 R100 – –

Lenco Packaging Proprietary Limited R100 R100 538.51.2 531.51,2

Lenco Investment Holdings Limited R100 R100 – –

Versapak Holdings (Pvt) Limited R100 R100 – –

Versapak Zimbabwe (Proprietary) Limited US$50 US$50 – –

Sunko Mauritius (Proprietary) Limited Rs100 Rs100 – –

Versapak Proprietary Limited R55 R55 – –

Xactics-PET (Cape) Proprietary Limited R55 R55 – –

Xactics-PET Proprietary Limited R100 R100 – –

Xactics Packaging Proprietary Limited R100 R100 – –

Elvinco Plastics Proprietary Limited R100 R100 – –

Lion Packaging Trading 57 

Proprietary Limited R72 R72 – –

Magic Attitude Proprietary Limited R72 R72 – –

Mpact Versapak Proprietary Limited R72 R72 87.8 87.8

Mpact Brits Plastic Containers 

Proprietary Limited R100 R100 – –

659.5 656.5

1 Excludes interest receivable
2 Subordinated

SCHEDULE OF INVESTMENTS
as at 31 December 2012
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Through analysis of the STRATE registered holdings and Combined Share Register, and pursuant to the provisions of Section 56 

of the Companies Act, the following shareholder statistics have been prepared as at 31 December 2012:

Number of

 shareholdings

Percentage

 of total

shareholdings Shares held

Percentage

held

Shareholder spread

1 – 1 000 Shares 3,394 70.12 779,464 0.48

1 001 – 10 000 Shares 848 17.52 2,701,932 1.65

10 001 – 100 000 Shares 356 7.36 14,300,145 8.74

100 001 – 1 000 000 Shares 214 4.42 69,488,344 42.48

1 000 001 Shares and over 28 0.58 76,305,771 46.65

Total 4,840 100.00 163,575,656 100.00

Distribution of shareholders

Retirement Benefit Funds 251 5.19 62,971,481 38.50

Collective Investment Schemes 190 3.93 48,391,366 29.58

Hedge Funds 38 0.79 16,761,239 10.25

Assurance and Insurance Companies 39 0.81 13,776,608 8.42

Stockbrokers and Nominees 26 0.54 5,503,608 3.36

Custodians 98 2.02 3,747,255 2.29

Retail Shareholders 3,359 69.40 2,982,236 1.82

Private Companies 152 3.14 2,582,058 1.58

Trusts 498 10.29 1,994,200 1.22

Foundations and Charitable Funds 40 0.83 1,291,284 0.79

Sovereign Funds 3 0.06 935,053 0.57

Close Corporations 48 0.99 877,486 0.54

Investment Partnerships 32 0.66 843,023 0.52

Medical Aid Funds 10 0.21 441,684 0.27

Public Companies 22 0.45 257,776 0.16

Scrip Lending 8 0.16 202,339 0.12

Unclaimed Scrip 26 0.53 16,960 0.01

Total 4,840 100.00 163,575,656 100.00

Shareholder type

Non-public shareholders  5 0.10 28,254 0.02

 Directors and associates of the company  5 0.10 28,254 0.02

Public shareholders  4,835 99.90 163,547,402 99.98

Total 4,840 100.00 163,575,656 100.00

SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION

ADMINISTRATION



75
MPACT INTEGRATED REPORT 2012

Total

 shareholding

Percentage

 held

Investment manager shareholdings (>5%)

Mazi Visio Capital Management 30,391,175 18.58

Allan Gray 25,841,690 15.80

Public Investment Corporation 18,453,532 11.28

Kagiso Asset Management 12,257,248 7.49

Investec Asset Management 9,794,497 5.99

Total 96,738,142 59.14

Beneficial shareholdings (>5%)

Government Employee Pension Funds 28,228,132 17.26

Allan Gray 13,424,811 8.21

Investment Solutions 11,439,819 6.99

Total 53,092,762 32.46

Beneficial holding by region

South Africa 141,656,590 86.60

United States 9,853,907 6.02

United Kingdom 3,959,716 2.42

Cayman Islands 1,585,277 0.97

Luxembourg 1,369,564 0.84

Namibia 1,250,578 0.76

Balance (other countries not listed above) 3,900,024 2.39

Total 163,575,656 100.00

Total number of shareholdings 4,840

Total number of shares in issue 163,575,656

JSE share price performance

Closing price 30 December 2011 (R) 14.99

Opening price 3 January 2012 (R) 14.93

Closing price 31 December 2012 (R) 19.89

Closing high for the period (R) 20.10

Closing low for the period (R) 14.00

Number of shares in issue 163,575,656

Total volume traded during period 107,253,728

Value of shares traded (R) 1,871,657,254
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SHAREHOLDERS’ DIARY

Financial year-end 31 December

Annual General Meeting 11 June 2013

Reports 

– Interim results for the six months to 30 June 2012 Published September 2012

– Preliminary report for the year ended 31 December 2012 Published 7 March 2013

– Integrated Report posting date 28 March 2013

Dividends

– Interim dividend 20 cents

– Final dividend 50 cents

Details of Dividend No 3 declared

– Last day to trade to receive a dividend Friday, 19 April 2013

– Shares commence trading ex-dividend Monday, 22 April 2013

– Record date Friday, 26 April 2013

– Payment date Monday, 29 April 2013

Share certificates may not be dematerialised or rematerialised between Monday, 22 April 2013 and Friday, 26 April 2013, 

both days inclusive.
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GRI CONTENT INDEX

The following table presents a content index to the GRI G3 indicators.

 Profile Page

1. Strategy and analysis Integrated Report

1.1 Statement from senior decision maker 15 to 19

1.2 Description of key impacts, risks and opportunities 32 to 35

2. Organisational profile Integrated Report

2.1 Organisation’s name Front cover and 89

2.2 Major products 3

2.3 Operational structure and major divisions 2 and 3

2.4 Location of headquarters 89

2.5 Countries of operation 2

2.6 Nature of ownership 2

2.7 Markets served including geographic breakdown/sectors served/customers 2 and 3

2.8 Scale of organisation including number of employees, net sales/revenues, total capitalisation 2, 3 and 4

2.9 Significant changes during reporting period None

2.10 Awards received 22

3. Report parameters Integrated Report

3.1 Reporting period 76

3.2 Date of previous report 28 March 2012

3.3 Reporting cycle 76

3.4 Contact point Inside front cover and 89

Report scope and boundary Integrated Report

3.5 Process for defining report content Inside front cover

3.6 Boundary of the report Inside front cover

3.7 Limitations on the scope of boundary of the report Inside front cover

3.8 Basis for reporting on joint ventures, etc 47

3.10 Restatements of information Not applicable

3.11 Significant changes from previous reporting periods Inside front cover

GRI content index Integrated Report

3.12 Table identifying the location of disclosures in the report 77 to 79

Assurance Integrated Report

3.13 Policy and practice for seeking independent assurance for report Inside front cover
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GRI CONTENT INDEX (continued)

 Profile Page

4. Governance, commitments and engagement Integrated Report

4.1 Governance structure including committees 28

4.2 Status of chair of highest governance body 26

4.3 Percent of independent directors 26

4.4 Mechanisms for shareholders and employees to interact with Board 7 to 9

4.5 Linkage between compensation and organisation’s performance 38 and 39

4.6 Process for the Board to ensure conflicts of interest are avoided 26 and 27

4.7 Processes for determining qualifications and expertise of the Board 27

4.8 Mission and values statements, codes of conduct, and principles relevant to economic, 

environmental and social performance

Outside flap

4.9 Procedures for Board oversight on economic, environmental and social performance 30 and 36

4.10 Processes for evaluating Board performance 27

Commitments to external initiatives Integrated Report

4.11 How precautionary approach/principle is addressed by organisation 33

4.12 Externally, voluntary economic, environmental, and social principles or initiatives endorsed 36

4.13 Significant memberships in associations and/or advocacy organisations 22 and 23

Stakeholder engagement Integrated Report

4.14 List of stakeholder groups 7 and 74

4.15 Basis for identification and selection of stakeholders with whom to engage 7

4.16 Approaches to stakeholder engagement, including frequency and type 8 and 9

4.17 Key issues raised through stakeholder engagement and response 6

Economic performance indicators Integrated Report

EC1 Economic value generated and distributed, including revenues, operating costs, employee 

compensation, donations and other community investments, retained earnings, and payments to 

capital providers and governments

5

EC2 Financial implications, risks and opportunities due to climate change 35

EC3 Coverage of the organisation’s defined benefit plan obligations 38 and 39

Market presence Sustainability Review

EC6 Policy, practices and spending on locally-based suppliers 2

Indirect economic impacts Sustainability Review

EC8 Development and impact of infrastructure investments and services for public benefit 10 to 14

EC9 Significant indirect economic impacts, including the extent of impacts 10 to 14

Note: The Sustainability Review is available on the company’s website, www.mpact.co.za
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 Profile Page

Environmental performance indicators Sustainability Review

Materials

EN2 Percentage of materials used that are recycled input materials 10 and 11

Energy

EN3 Direct energy consumption by primary energy source 14

EN4 Indirect energy consumption by primary source 14

Emissions, effluents and waste

EN16 Total direct and indirect greenhouse gas emissions by weight 13 and 14

Social performance: Labour practices and decent work performance indicators Sustainability Review

Employment

LA1 Total workforce by employment type, employment contract and region 4

LA3 Benefits provided to full-time employees that are not provided to temporary/part-time employees 5

Labour/management relations

LA4 Percentage of employees covered by collective bargaining agreements 6

Occupational health and safety

LA7 Rates of injury, occupational diseases, lost days and absenteeism, and number of work-related 

fatalities

9

LA8 Education, training, counselling, prevention and risk-control programmes in place to assist 

workforce members, their families or community members regarding serious diseases

10

Training and education

LA11 Programmes for skills management and lifelong learning that support continued employability of 

employees

6

Freedom of association and collective bargaining

HR5 Operations where the right to freedom of association and collective bargaining may be at 

significant risk, actions taken to support rights

6

Society performance indicators Sustainability Review

Community

SO1 Nature, scope and effectiveness of any programmes and practices that assess and manage the 

impacts of operations on communities, including entering, operating and exiting

15 to 19

Product responsibility performance indicators Sustainability Review

Customer health and safety

PR1 Life cycle stages in which health and safety impacts of products and services are assessed 

for improvement, percentage of significant products and services categories subject to such 

procedures

11 and 12

Products and services

PR3 Type of product and service information required by procedures, percentage of significant 

products and services concerned.

11 and 12
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NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

Mpact Limited

(Incorporated in the Republic of South Africa)

Registration number 2004/025229/06

Share code: MPT

ISIN: ZAE000156501

(“Mpact” or “the company” or “the Group”)

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN to the shareholders of Mpact as at 22 March 2013, being the record date to receive notice of the Annual 

General Meeting in terms of Section 59(1)(a) of the Companies Act 71 of 2008, as amended (Companies Act), that the Second Annual 

General Meeting of the company, in respect of the year ended 31 December 2012, will be held at The Venue, 17 The High Street, 

Melrose Arch, Johannesburg, on Tuesday, 11 June 2013 at 13:00.

ELECTRONIC PARTICIPATION

Shareholders or their proxies may participate in the meeting by way of a teleconference call and, if they wish to do so:

•  must contact the Company Secretary by e-mail at the address NSepuru@mpact.co.za by no later than 13:00 on Friday, 31 May 2013 

in order to obtain a pin number and dial-in details for that conference call;

•  will be required to provide reasonably satisfactory identification, which will include a valid identity document, driver’s licence 

or passport;

•  will be billed separately by their own telephone service providers for their telephone call to participate in the meeting; and

•  shareholders participating by teleconference are required to submit their forms of proxy as set out on page 87 of this notice.

This Notice of Annual General Meeting includes the attached form of proxy.

RECORD DATE

The record date for the purpose of determining which shareholders of the company are entitled to receive Notice of the Annual 

General Meeting was Friday, 22 March 2013.

The record date for the purpose of determining which shareholders of the company are entitled to participate in and vote at the Annual 

General Meeting is Friday, 31 May 2013, in accordance with Section 62(3)(a), read with Section 59(1)(b), of the Companies Act.

Accordingly, the last day to trade for shareholders to be entitled to attend, speak and vote at the Annual General Meeting is 

Friday, 24 May 2013.

ATTENDANCE AND VOTING

If you are a registered shareholder (i.e. a shareholder who has not dematerialised his shares or has dematerialised his shares with 

‘own name’ registration) as at the record date to attend, speak and vote at the Annual General Meeting of the company (i.e. Friday, 

31 May 2013), you may attend the meeting in person. Alternatively, you may appoint a proxy (who need not be a shareholder of the 

company) to represent you at the meeting. Any appointment of a proxy may be effected by using the attached form of proxy and, 

in order for the proxy to be effective and valid, must be completed and delivered in accordance with the instructions contained in 

the attached form of proxy.

If you are a beneficial shareholder and not a registered shareholder (i.e. a shareholder who has demateriliased his shares without 

‘own name’ registration) as at the record date to attend, speak and vote at the Annual General Meeting of the company (i.e. Friday, 

31 May 2013):

•  and wish to attend the meeting, you must obtain the necessary letter of representation to represent the registered holder in respect 

of your shares from your CSDP or broker;

•  and do not wish to attend the meeting but would like your vote to be recorded at the meeting, you should contact the registered 

holder in respect of your shares through your CSDP or broker and furnish them with your voting instructions;

• you must not complete the attached form of proxy.

All attendees and participants at the meeting will be required to provide identification reasonably satisfactory to the chairman 

of the meeting, which shall include a valid identity document, driver’s licence or passport, in accordance with Section 63(1) 

of the Companies Act.

Shares held by a share trust or other share incentive scheme of the company will not have their votes at the meeting taken into account 

for the purposes of the resolutions proposed in terms of the JSE Listings Requirements.

All voting at the Annual General Meeting will be conducted on a poll.
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PURPOSE OF THE MEETING

The purpose of this meeting is to:

•  present the directors’ report and the Audited Annual Financial Statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2012;

• elect the directors of the company and the members of the Audit and Risk Committee of the company;

• present the Audit and Risk Committee report;

• present the Social and Ethics Committee report;

• consider any matters raised by shareholders;

•  consider and if deemed fit, to pass, with or without modification, the ordinary and special resolutions set out below in the manner 

required by the Companies Act, the JSE Listings Requirements and the MOI of the company; and

•  deal with such other business as may lawfully be dealt with at the meeting, which meeting is to be participated in and voted at by 

shareholders registered as such on 31 May 2013, being the record date to participate in and vote at the Annual General Meeting in 

terms of Section 62(3)(a), read with Section 59(1)(b), of the Companies Act.

In order for the special resolutions to be adopted, the support of at least 75% (seventy-five percent) of the total number of votes, which 

the shareholders present or represented by proxy at this meeting are entitled to cast, is required.

ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The detailed Annual Financial Statements (as approved by the Board), including the directors’ report, and the external auditor’s report 

for the year ended 31 December 2012, are published on the website (www.mpact.co.za). A summary of the Annual Financial Statements 

are set out pages 55 to 72 of the Integrated Report of which this notice forms part.

ORDINARY RESOLUTIONS

Ordinary resolution number 1 – Adoption of the Annual Financial Statements
“RESOLVED THAT the Consolidated Annual Financial Statements for the company (and its subsidiaries) for the year ended 

31 December 2012, including the directors’ report and the Independent Auditors’ report therein, be and are hereby received 

and adopted.”

Percentage of voting rights required to pass this resolution: 50% plus one vote.

Ordinary resolution number 2 – Re-election of director – AJ Phillips
“RESOLVED THAT AJ Phillips, who retires by rotation in accordance with the MOI of the company, and being eligible, offers himself for 

re-election, be and is hereby re-elected as a director of the company.”

(A brief curriculum vitae in respect of AJ Phillips is set out on page 10 of the Integrated Report of which this notice forms part.)

Percentage of voting rights required to pass this resolution: 50% plus one vote.

Ordinary resolution number 3 – Re-election of director – NB Langa-Royds
“RESOLVED THAT NB Langa-Royds, who retires by rotation in accordance with the MOI of the company, and being eligible, offers herself 

for re-election, be and is hereby re-elected as a director of the company.”

(A brief curriculum vitae in respect of NB Langa-Royds is set out on page 10 of the Integrated Report of which this notice forms part.)

Percentage of voting rights required to pass this resolution: 50% plus one vote.

The Remuneration and Nomination Committee has reviewed the composition of the Board and has recommended the re-election of 

the directors listed in ordinary resolutions numbers 2 and 3. It is the view of the directors that re-election of the candidates referred to 

above would enable the company to: 

•  responsibly maintain a mixture of business skills and experience relevant to the company and balance the requirements of 

transformation, continuity and succession planning; and

•  comply with corporate governance requirements in respect of matters such as the balance of executive, non-executive and 

independent directors on the Board.

Ordinary resolution number 4 – Appointment of auditors
“RESOLVED THAT Deloitte & Touche be and are hereby re-appointed as independent auditors of the Group and, that Mark Holme is 

appointed as the individual registered auditor who will undertake the audit of the Group for the ensuing year, and that the Board be 

and is hereby authorised to fix the remuneration of the auditors.”

Percentage of voting rights required to pass this resolution: 50% plus one vote.
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Ordinary resolution number 5 – Re-election of the Audit and Risk Committee
“RESOLVED THAT TDA Ross, who fulfils the requirements of Section 94(4) of the Companies Act, be and is hereby elected as a member 

of the Audit and Risk Committee of the company, to hold office until the conclusion of the Annual General Meeting of the company 

to be held in 2014.”

(A brief curriculum vitae for TDA Ross is set out on page 10 of the Integrated Report of which this notice forms part.)”

Percentage of voting rights required to pass this resolution: 50% plus one vote.

Ordinary resolution number 6 – Re-election of the Audit and Risk Committee
“RESOLVED THAT NP Dongwana, who fulfils the requirements of Section 94(4) of the Companies Act, be and is hereby elected as a 

member of the Audit and Risk Committee of the company, to hold office until the conclusion of the Annual General Meeting of the 

company to be held in 2014.”

(A brief curriculum vitae for NP Dongwana is set out on page 10 of the Integrated Report of which this notice forms part.)

Percentage of voting rights required to pass this resolution: 50% plus one vote.

Ordinary resolution number 7 – Re-election of the Audit and Risk Committee
“RESOLVED THAT AM Thompson, who fulfils the requirements of Section 94(4) of the Companies Act, be and is hereby elected as a 

member of the Audit and Risk Committee of the company, to hold office until the conclusion of the Annual General Meeting of the 

company to be held in 2014.”

(A brief curriculum vitae for AM Thompson is set out on page 10 of the Integrated Report of which this notice forms part.)

Percentage of voting rights required to pass this resolution: 50% plus one vote.

Ordinary resolution number 8 – Endorsement of Mpact’s remuneration policy
”RESOLVED THAT the company’s remuneration policy, as set out in the Remuneration Report, be and is hereby endorsed by way of a 

non-binding advisory note.”

In terms of Chapter 2 of King III dealing with boards and directors, it is recommended that companies table their remuneration 

policy every year to shareholders for a non-binding advisory vote at the Annual General Meeting. This vote enables shareholders to 

express their views on the remuneration policies adopted and on their implementation.

The company’s Remuneration Report is contained on pages 37 to 44 of the Integrated Report of which this notice forms part.

Ordinary resolution number 8 is of an advisory nature only and failure to pass this resolution will therefore not have any legal 

consequences relating to existing arrangements. However, the Board will take the outcome of the vote into consideration when 

considering the company’s remuneration policy.

Percentage of voting rights required to pass this resolution: 50% plus one vote.

SPECIAL RESOLUTIONS

Special resolution number 1 – General authority to acquire/(repurchase) shares
“RESOLVED THAT the company hereby approves as a general authority contemplated in paragraph 5.72 of the JSE Listings 

Requirements, the acquisition by the company or any of its subsidiaries from time to time, of the company’s own securities, upon such 

terms and conditions and in such amounts as the directors may from time to time decide, but subject to the company’s memorandum 

of incorporation, the provisions of the Companies Act and the JSE Listings Requirements (each as presently constituted and as amended 

from time to time) , provided that:

•  Any repurchase of securities must be effected through the order book operated by the JSE trading system and done without any 

prior understanding or arrangement between the company and the counterparty (reported trades are prohibited);

• Authorisation for the repurchase is given by the company’s MOI;

• At any point in time, the company may only appoint one agent to effect any repurchase(s) on the company’s behalf;

•  This general authority be valid until the company’s next Annual General Meeting, or 15 (fifteen) months from the date of passing 

of this special resolution, whichever is earlier;

•  An announcement will be published as soon as the company, or any of its subsidiaries, has acquired securities of a relevant class 

constituting, on a cumulative basis, 3% of the number of securities of that relevant class in issue prior to the acquisition pursuant 

to which the aforesaid 3% threshold is reached, and for each 3% in aggregate acquired thereafter, containing full details of such 

acquisitions, such announcement to be published as soon as possible and not later than 08:30 on the 2nd (second) business 

NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING (continued)
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day following the day on which the relevant threshold is reached or exceeded, and the announcement shall comply with the 

requirements of the JSE Listings Requirements in this regard;

•  Acquisitions by the company or any of its subsidiaries of securities in aggregate in any one financial year may not exceed 20% of the 

company’s issued share capital as at the beginning of the financial year (although it should be noted that the directors will limit any 

purchase to a maximum of 5% of the issued share capital);

•  In determining the price at which securities issued by the company are acquired by it or any of its subsidiaries in terms of this general 

authority, the maximum premium at which such securities may be acquired will be 10% of the weighted average of the market value 

at which such securities are traded on the JSE as determined over the 5 (five) business days immediately preceding the date of 

repurchase of such securities by the company or any of its subsidiaries;

•  The JSE should be consulted for a ruling if the securities have not traded in such five-business day period;

•  The company or any of its subsidiaries may not repurchase any securities during a prohibited period as defined by the JSE Listings 

Requirements, unless they have in place a repurchase programme where the dates and quantities of securities to be traded 

during the relevant period are fixed (not subject to any variation) and full details of the programme have been disclosed in an 

announcement over SENS prior to the commencement of the prohibited period;

•  Any such repurchase is subject to Exchange Control Regulations and approval at that time;

•  The company may not enter the market to proceed with the repurchase of its ordinary shares until the company’s Sponsor has 

confirmed in writing to the JSE that it has discharged its responsibility in terms of Schedule 25 of the JSE Listings Requirements;

•  The directors have authorised the repurchase, that the company and its subsidiaries pass the solvency and liquidity test and that 

from the time the test is done there are no material changes to the financial position of the company’s Group; and

•  In the case of a derivative (as contemplated in the JSE Listings Requirements) the price of the derivative shall be subject to the 

limitations set out in paragraph 5.84(a) of the JSE Listings Requirements.”

The percentage of voting rights required to be voted in favour for special resolution number 1 to be adopted is at least 75% (seventy-

five percent) of the voting rights exercised on the resolution.

Reason for and effect
The reason for the passing of the above special resolution is to grant the company a general authority in terms of the Companies Act 

for the acquisition by the company or any of its subsidiaries of securities issued by the company, which authority shall be valid until 

the earlier of the next Annual General Meeting, or the variation or revocation of such general authority by special resolution by any 

subsequent general meeting of the company; provided that the general authority shall not extend beyond 15 (fifteen) months from 

the date of this general meeting. The passing of this special resolution will have the effect of authorising the company or any of its 

subsidiaries to acquire securities issued by the company.

The following information, which is required by the JSE Listings Requirements with regard to the resolution granting a general authority 

to the company to repurchase its securities, appears on the pages of the Integrated Report to which this Notice of Annual General 

Meeting is annexed and forms part, is indicated below:

Directors and executive management pages 10 to 13

Major shareholders page 74

Directors’ interests in securities page 44

Share capital note 10 to the Annual Financial Statements (page 68)

Material changes page 53

Litigation statement page 52

Directors’ responsibility statement
The directors, whose names are given on page 10 of the Integrated Report of which this notice forms part, collectively and individually, 

accept full responsibility for the accuracy of the information pertaining to the above special resolution number 1 and certify that, to 

the best of their knowledge and belief, there are no facts that have been omitted which would make any statement false or misleading 

and that all reasonable enquiries to ascertain such facts have been made and that the above special resolution contains all relevant 

information required by the JSE Listings Requirements.

Statement by the directors
The directors of the company have no present intention of making any repurchases but believe that the company should retain the 

flexibility to take action if future repurchases were considered desirable and in the best interests of shareholders. The directors of the 

company are of the opinion that, after considering the effect of such acquisition of securities, if implemented and on the assumption 

that the company acquires the maximum of 5% of the current issued share capital of the company at the last practical date prior to 

the date of the notice of Annual General Meeting of the company convened for 11 June 2013 or during a period of 12 months after 

the date of the notice of Annual General Meeting of the company:
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• the company and its subsidiaries will be able, in the ordinary course of business, to pay its debts;

•  the consolidated assets of the company and its subsidiaries, fairly valued, will be in excess of the consolidated liabilities of the 

company and its subsidiaries;

• the company and its subsidiaries will have adequate capital and reserves for ordinary business purposes; and

•  the working capital of the company and its subsidiaries will be adequate for ordinary business purposes. The company will ensure 

that its Sponsor will provide the necessary letter on the adequacy of the working capital in terms of the JSE Listings Requirements, 

prior to the commencement of any purchase of the company’s securities on the open market.

Furthermore, the Board confirms that it has authorised the repurchase, and confirms that the company and its subsidiaries have passed 

the solvency and liquidity test and that from the time the test was conducted there have been no material changes to the financial 

position of the company’s Group.

The directors of the company hereby state that:

(a)  the intention of the directors of the company is to utilise the authority if, at some future date, the cash resources of the company 

are in excess of its requirements. In this regard the directors will take account of, inter alia, an appropriate capitalisation structure 

for the company and the long-term cash needs of the company and will ensure that any such utilisation is in the interests of the 

shareholders; and

(b)  the method by which the company intends to re-purchase its securities and the date on which such re-purchase will take place, has 

not yet been determined.

Special resolution number 2 – Approval of non-executive directors’ fees
“RESOLVED THAT the non-executive directors’ fees payable for the periods, set out below, are hereby approved:”

1 July 2012 to 1 July 2013 to
Description 30 June 2013 30 June 2014

Chairman of the Board* R700,000 p.a. R742,000 p.a.

Directors’ base fee R107,000 p.a. R113,420 p.a.

Directors’ meeting attendance fee – four meetings per annum R85,000 p.a. R90,100 p.a.

Committees meeting fees:
Chairman of the Audit and Risk Committee R170,000 p.a. R180,200 p.a.

Member of the Audit and Risk Committee R85,000 p.a. R90,100 p.a.

Chairman of the Social and Ethics Committee R128,000p.a. R135,680 p.a.

Member of the Social and Ethics Committee R64,000 p.a. R67,840 p.a.

Chairman of the Remuneration Committee – R67,840 p.a.

Member of the Remuneration and Nomination Committee R64,000 p.a. R67,840 p.a.

* Fee includes participation in Board sub-committee meetings

 The above fees calculated up to four meetings per annum

Percentage of voting rights required to pass this resolution: 75%.

Reason for and effect
Special resolution number 2 is required in terms of Section 66 of the Companies Act to authorise the company to pay remuneration 

to non-executive directors of the company in respect of their services as directors. Executive directors are not remunerated for their 

services as directors but are remunerated as employees of the company.

Furthermore, in terms of the Companies Act, remuneration payable to non-executive directors should be approved by shareholders in 

advance or within the previous two years.

Special resolution number 3 – Approval of financial assistance
“RESOLVED THAT to the extent required by the Companies Act, the Board may, subject to compliance with the requirements of the 

company’s MOI, the Companies Act and the JSE Listings Requirements, each as presently constituted and as amended from time to 

time, authorise the company to provide direct or indirect financial assistance by way of loan, guarantee, the provision of security or 

otherwise, to any of its present or future subsidiaries and/or any other company or corporation that is or becomes related or inter-

related to the company or any of its subsidiaries (and/or to any member of such subsidiary or related on interrelated company or 

corporation) for any purpose or in connection with any matter, including, but not limited to the subscription for any option, or any 

securities, issued or to be issued by the company or a related or inter-related company, or for the purchase of any securities of the 

company or a related or inter-related company.”

Percentage of voting rights required to pass this resolution: 75%.
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Reason for and effect of special resolution number 3
Furthermore, Section 44 of the Companies Act may also apply to the financial assistance so provided by a company to related or inter-

related companies, in the event that the financial assistance is provided for the purpose of, or in connection with, the subscription for 

any option, or any securities, issued or to be issued by the company or a related or inter-related company, or for the purchase of any 

securities of the company or a related or inter-related company.

Both Sections 44 and 45 of the Companies Act provide, inter alia, that the particular financial assistance must be provided only pursuant 

to a special resolution of the shareholders, adopted within the previous 2 (two) years, which approved such assistance either for the 

specific recipient, or generally for a category of potential recipients, and the specific recipient falls within that category and the Board 

must be satisfied that:

• immediately after providing the financial assistance, the company would satisfy the solvency and liquidity test; and

• the terms under which the financial assistance is proposed to be given are fair and reasonable to the company.

In accordance with requests received from shareholders, Section 45 of the Companies Act is not proposed. Furthermore, it may be 

necessary or desirous for the company to provide financial assistance to related or inter-related companies and corporations to acquire 

or subscribe for options or securities or purchase securities of the company or another company related or inter-related to it. Under the 

Companies Act, the company will however require the special resolution referred to above to be adopted. In the circumstances and in 

order to, inter alia, ensure that the company’s subsidiaries and other related and inter-related companies and corporations have access 

to financing and/or financial backing from the company (as opposed to banks), it is necessary to obtain the approval of shareholders, as 

set out in special resolution number 3.

Sections 44 and 45 contain exemptions in respect of employee share schemes that satisfy the requirements of Section 97 of the 

Companies Act. To the extent that any of the company’s share or other employee incentive schemes do not satisfy such requirements, 

financial assistance (as contemplated in Sections 44 and 45) to be provided under such schemes will, inter alia, also require approval by 

special resolution.

Any matters raised by shareholders, with or without advance notice to the company
To deal, at the Annual General Meeting, with any matters raised by shareholders, with or without advance notice to the company.

Voting and proxies
A shareholder of the company entitled to attend and vote at the Annual General Meeting is entitled to appoint one or more proxies 

(who need not be a shareholder of the company) to attend, vote and speak in his/her stead. On a show of hands, every shareholder of 

the company present in person or represented by proxy shall have one vote only. On a poll, every shareholder of the company present 

in person or represented by proxy shall have one vote for every share held in the company by such shareholder.

Dematerialised shareholders who have elected own-name registration in the sub-register through a CSDP and who are unable to attend 

but wish to vote at the Annual General Meeting, should complete and return the attached form of proxy and lodge it with the transfer 

secretaries of the company.

Shareholders who have dematerialised their shares through a CSDP or broker rather than through own name registration and who wish 

to attend the Annual General Meeting must instruct their CSDP or broker to issue them with the necessary authority to attend.

If such shareholders are unable to attend, but wish to vote at the Annual General Meeting, they should timeously provide their CSDP 

or broker with their voting instructions in terms of the custody agreement entered into between that shareholder and his/her CSDP 

or broker.

Forms of proxy may also be obtained on request from the company’s registered office. The completed forms of proxy must be 

deposited at, posted or faxed to the transfer secretaries at the address below, to be received at least 48 hours prior to the meeting.

Any member who completes and lodges a form of proxy will nevertheless be entitled to attend and vote in person at the Annual 

General Meeting should the member subsequently decide to do so.

Summary of the rights of a shareholder to be represented by proxy
For purposes of this summary, the term “shareholder” shall have the meaning ascribed thereto in Section 57(1) of the Companies Act.

Shareholders’ rights regarding proxies in terms of Section 58 of the Companies Act include, inter alia, to at any time appoint any 

individual, including an individual who is not a shareholder of that company, as a proxy to participate in, and speak and vote at, 

a shareholders’ meeting on behalf of the shareholder.
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A proxy appointment:

• Must be in writing, dated and signed by the shareholder; and

• Remains valid for:

 – one year after the date on which it was signed; or

 –  any longer or shorter period expressly set out in the appointment unless it is revoked in a manner contemplated in  

Subsection (4)(c); or expires earlier as contemplated in Subsection (8)(d) of the Companies Act.

Except to the extent that the memorandum of incorporation of the company provides otherwise:

•  a shareholder of the company may appoint two or more persons concurrent as proxies, and may appoint more than one proxy to 

exercise voting rights attached to the different securities held by the shareholder;

•  a proxy may delegate the proxy’s authority to act on behalf of the shareholder to another person, subject to any restriction set out in 

the instrument appointing the proxy; and

•  a copy of the instrument appointing a proxy must be delivered to the company, or to any other person on behalf of the company, 

before the proxy exercises any rights of the shareholder at a shareholders’ meeting.

Irrespective of the form of instrument used to appoint a proxy:

•  the appointment is suspended at any time and to the extent that the shareholder chooses to act directly and in person in the 

exercise of any rights as a shareholder;

• the appointment is revocable unless the proxy appointment expressly states otherwise; and

• if the appointment is revocable, a shareholder may revoke the proxy appointment by:

 – cancelling it in writing, or making a later inconsistent appointment of a proxy; and

 – delivering a copy of the revocation instrument to the proxy and to the company.

The revocation of a proxy appointment constitutes a complete and final cancellation of the proxy’s authority to act on behalf of the 

shareholder as of the later of the date:

• stated in the revocation instrument, if any; or

•  upon which the revocation instrument is delivered to the proxy and the relevant company as required in Section 58(4)(c)(ii) of the 

Companies Act.

Should the instrument appointing a proxy or proxies have been delivered to the relevant company, as long as that appointment remains 

in effect, any notice that is required by the Companies Act or the relevant company’s memorandum of incorporation to be delivered by 

such company to the shareholder must be delivered by such company to:

• the shareholder; or

•  the proxy or proxies if the shareholder has in writing directed the relevant company to do so and has paid any reasonable fee 

charged by the company for doing so.

A proxy is entitled to exercise, or abstain from exercising, any voting right of the relevant shareholder without direction, except to the 

extent that the memorandum of incorporation of the relevant company or the instrument appointing the proxy provide otherwise.

If a company issues an invitation to shareholders to appoint one or more persons named by such company as a proxy, or supplies a form 

of instrument for appointing a proxy:

•  such invitation must be sent to every shareholder who is entitled to receive notice of the meeting at which the proxy is intended to 

be exercised;

• the company must not require that the proxy appointment be made irrevocable; and

•  the proxy appointment remains valid only until the end of the relevant meeting at which it was intended to be used, unless revoked 

as contemplated in Section 58(5) of the Companies Act

The practical applications of the aforementioned rights are discussed in the notes to the attached form of proxy.

By order of the Board:

Noriah Sepuru
Company Secretary

28 March 2013
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FORM OF PROXY

Mpact Limited
(Incorporated in the Republic of South Africa)
Registration number 2004/025229/06
Share code: MPT
ISIN: ZAE000156501
(“Mpact” or “the company” or “the Group”)

To be completed by registered certificated shareholders and dematerialised shareholders with own name registration only.

This form of proxy relates to the Annual General Meeting of the company to be held at The Venue, 17 The High Street, Melrose Arch, 
Johannesburg, on Tuesday, 11 June 2013 at 13:00 (“meeting”) (see note 1) and is for use by registered shareholders whose shares are 
registered in their own names by the record date, Friday, 31 May 2013 (see note 2).

Terms used in this form of proxy have the meanings given to them in the Notice of Annual General Meeting to which this form of proxy 
is attached.

Please print clearly when completing this form and see the instructions and notes at the end of this form for an explanation of the use 
of this form and the rights of the shareholder and the proxy.

I/We (full name in BLOCK LETTERS)

of (address)

Telephone (work) (      ) (home) (      )

being a shareholder(s) of the company and being the registered owner/s of ordinary shares in the company (note 3):

hereby appoint of

failing him/her, of

or failing him/her, 

the chairman of the meeting (see note 4),

to attend and participate in the meeting and to speak and to vote or abstain from voting for me/us and on my/our behalf in respect 
of all matters arising (including any poll and all resolutions put to the meeting) at the meeting, even if the meeting is postponed, and 
at any resumption thereof after any adjournment (see note 5).

My/Our proxy shall vote as follows:

Please indicate with an “X” in the appropriate spaces how you wish your votes to be cast. If you do not do so, the proxy may vote or 
abstain at his/her discretion (see note 6).

For Against Abstain

Ordinary resolution number 1 – Adoption of the Annual Financial Statements

Ordinary resolution number 2 – Re-election of AJ Phillips as a director

Ordinary resolution number 3 – Re-election of NB Langa-Royds as a director

Ordinary resolution number 4 – Appointment of auditors

Ordinary resolution number 5 –  Re-election of TDA Ross as a member of the Audit and Risk 
Committee

Ordinary resolution number 6 –  Re-election of  NP Dongwana as a member of the Audit and Risk 
Committee

Ordinary resolution number 7 –  Re-election of AM Thompson as a member of the Audit and Risk 
Committee

Ordinary resolution number 8  – Endorsement of Mpact’s remuneration policy

Special resolution number 1 – General authority to acquire/(repurchase) shares

Special resolution number 2 – Approval of non-executive directors’ fees

Special resolution number 3 – Approval of financial assistance

(Indicate instruction to proxy by way of a cross in the space provided above.)

Unless otherwise instructed, my/our proxy may vote as he/she thinks fit.

Signed this day of  2013

Signature

Please read the instructions and notes on the reverse side hereof.
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1.  This form will not be effective at the meeting unless received at 
the company’s transfer office, Link Market Services South Africa 
Proprietary Limited, by no later than 13:00 on Friday, 7 June 2013. If a 
shareholder does not wish to deliver this form to that address, it may 
also be posted, at the risk of the shareholder, to Link Market Services 
South Africa Proprietary Limited, PO Box 4844, Johannesburg, 2000.

2.  This form is for use by registered shareholders who wish to appoint 
another person (a proxy) to represent them at the meeting. If duly 
authorised, companies and other corporate bodies who are registered 
shareholders may appoint a proxy using this form, or may appoint a 
representative in accordance with 12 below.

  Other shareholders should not use this form. All beneficial 
shareholders who have dematerialised their shares through a CSDP or 
broker must provide the CSDP or broker with their voting instructions. 
Alternatively, if they wish to attend the meeting in person, they 
should request the CSDP or broker to provide them with a letter 
of representation in terms of the custody agreement entered into 
between the beneficial shareholders and the CSDP or broker.

3.  This proxy shall apply to all ordinary shares registered in the name of 
the shareholder who signs this form at the record date unless a lesser 
number of shares is inserted.

4.  A shareholder may appoint one person of his/her own choice as his/
her proxy by inserting the name of such proxy in the space provided. 
Any such proxy need not be a shareholder of the company. If the 
name of the proxy is not inserted, the chairman of the meeting will 
be appointed as proxy. If more than one name is inserted, then the 
person whose name appears first on the form and who is present at 
the meeting will be entitled to act as proxy to the exclusion of any 
persons whose names follow. The proxy appointed in this form may 
delegate the authority given to him/her in this form by delivering to 
the company, in the manner required by these instructions, a further 
form which has been completed in a manner consistent with the 
authority given to the proxy in this form.

5.  Unless revoked, the appointment of a proxy in terms of this form 
remains valid until the end of the meeting, even if the meeting or 
part thereof is postponed or adjourned.

6.  If:

 6.1  a shareholder does not indicate on this instrument that the 
proxy is to vote in favour of or against or to abstain from voting 
or any resolution; or

 6.2  the shareholder gives contradictory instructions in relation to 
any matter; or

 6.3  any additional resolution/s which are properly put before the 
meeting; or

 6.4  any resolution listed in the proxy form is modified or amended,

  then the proxy shall be entitled to vote or abstain from voting, as 
he/she thinks fit, in relation to that resolution or matter. If however, 
the shareholder has provided further written instructions which 
accompany this form and which indicate how the proxy should vote 
or abstain from voting in any of the circumstances referred to in 6.1 
to 6.4, then the proxy shall comply with those instructions.

7.  If this proxy is signed by a person (signatory) on behalf of the 
shareholder, whether in terms of a power of attorney or otherwise, 
then this form will not be effective unless:

 7.1  it is accompanied by a certified copy of the authority given by 
the shareholder to the signatory; or

 7.2  the company has already received a certified copy of that 
authority.

8.  The chairman of the meeting may, in the chairman’s discretion, 
accept or reject any form or other written appointment of a proxy 
which is received by the chairman prior to the time when the meeting 
deals with a resolution or matter to which the appointment of the 
proxy relates, even if that appointment of a proxy has not been 
completed and/or received in accordance with these instructions. 
However, the chairman shall not accept any such appointment of 
a proxy unless the chairman is satisfied that it reflects the intention 
of the shareholder appointing the proxy.

9.  Any alternations made in this form must be initialled by the authorised 
signatory/ies.

10.  This form is revoked if the shareholder who granted the proxy:

 10.1  gives written notice of such revocation to the company, so that 
it is received by the company by not later than 13:00 on Friday, 
7 June 2013; or

 10.2  subsequently appoints another proxy for the meeting; or

 10.3  attends the meeting in person.

11.  If duly authorised, companies and other corporate bodies who 
are shareholders of the company having shares registered in 
their own names may, instead of completing this form, appoint a 
representative to represent them and exercise all of their rights at 
the meeting by giving written notice of the appointment of that 
representative. That notice will not be effective at the meeting unless 
it is accompanied by a duly certified copy of the resolution/s or other 
authorities in terms of which that representative is appointed and 
is received at the company’s transfer office, Link Market Services 
South Africa Proprietary Limited, by no later than 13:00 on Friday, 
7 June 2013. If a shareholder does not wish to deliver that notice to 
that address, it may also be posted, at the risk of the shareholder to 
Link Market Services South Africa Proprietary Limited, PO Box 4844, 
Johannesburg, 2000.

12.  The completion and lodging of this form of proxy does not preclude 
the relevant shareholder from attending the Annual General Meeting 
and speaking and voting in person to the exclusion of any proxy 
appointed by the shareholder.

13.  The chairman of the meeting may accept or reject any form of proxy 
which is completed and/or received, other than in accordance with 
these instructions, provided that the chairman shall not accept 
a proxy unless the chairman is satisfied as to the manner in which 
a shareholder wishes to vote.

Transfer secretaries’ office
Link Market Services South Africa Proprietary Limited
13th Floor, Rennie House
19 Ameshoff Street
Braamfontein, 2001
(PO Box 4844, Johannesburg, 2000)

INSTRUCTIONS AND NOTES TO THE FORM OF PROXY
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Registration number 2004/025229/06 

ISIN ZAE000156501

Share code MPT

Registered office 4th Floor, 3 Melrose Arch Boulevard, Melrose Arch, Johannesburg

Postal address Postnet Suite #179, Private Bag X1, Melrose Arch, Johannesburg, 2196

Telephone number +27 (0)11 994-5500

Facsimile +27 (0)11 994-5300

Website www.mpact.co.za

Company Secretary Noriah Sepuru

Telephone +27 (0)11 994-5551

E-mail NSepuru@mpact.co.za

Sponsor Rand Merchant Bank, a division of FirstRand Bank Limited

(Registration number 1929/001225/06)

1 Merchant Place

Rivonia Road

Sandton, 2196

(PO Box 786273, Sandton, 2196)

Auditors Deloitte & Touche

Deloitte Place, The Woodlands

Woodlands Drive, Woodmead

Sandton, 2196

(Private Bag X6, Gallo Manor, 2052)

Transfer Secretaries Link Market Services South Africa Proprietary Limited

(Registration number 2000/007239/07)

13th Floor, Rennie House

19 Ameshoff Street

Braamfontein, 2001

(PO Box 4844, Johannesburg, 2000)

Investor Relations Keyter Rech Investor Solutions CC

(Registration number 2008/156985/23)

Fountain Grove, 5, 2nd Street, Hyde Park, 2196

(PO Box 653078, Benmore, 2010)

Commercial Banker The Standard Bank of South Africa Limited

(Registration number 1962/000738/06)

3 Simmonds Street

Johannesburg, 2001

(PO Box 61344, Marshalltown, 2107)

CORPORATE INFORMATION
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GLOSSARY OF TERMS

The terms listed below have been used throughout this Integrated Report:

“Basic EPS”  Earnings for the year attributable to equity holders of Mpact divided by the weighted 
average number of ordinary shares in issue during the year

“B-BBEE” Broad-Based Black Economic Empowerment

“BEE” Black Economic Empowerment

“CEO” Chief Executive Officer

“CFO” Chief Financial Officer

“CIO” Chief Information Officer

“CIPC” Companies and Intellectual Property Commission

“Closing earnings yield” HEPS as a percentage of market value per share at 31 December

“Closing PE ratio” Market value per share at 31 December divided by HEPS

“Companies Act” Companies Act no 71 of 2008, as amended

“Consolidated gearing” Net debt excluding cash and cash equivalents as a ratio to total equity

“CSDP” Central Securities Depositary Participants

“CSI” Corporate Social Investment

“CSR” Corporate Social Responsibility

“DEA” Department of Environmental Affairs

“Dividend cover” Underlying EPS divided by dividend per share

“Earnings yield” HEPS as a percentage of market value per share

“EBIT” Earnings before interest and taxation

“ED” Enterprise Development

“EE” Employment Equity

“EPS” Earnings per share

“Exco” The Executive Committee

“FMCG” Fast Moving Consumer Goods

“GDP” Gross Domestic Product

“GRI” Global Reporting Initiative

“HEPS” Headline earnings divided by the weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue 
during the year

“IFRS” International Financial Reporting Standards

“IT”/“ICT” Information Technology/Information Communication and Technology

“JSE” JSE Limited

“King III” King Report on Corporate Governance for South Africa 2009

“KPI” Key Performance Indicators

“Listings Requirements” Listings Requirements of the JSE

“MOI” Memorandum of Incorporation

“Mpact” or “the Group” Mpact Limited and its subsidiaries

“net asset value per share” The net asset value of the company divided by the number of shares in issue, 
after deducting treasury shares, at the end of the year
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“OHS” Occupational Health and Safety

“Operating profit margin” EBIT as a percentage of revenue

“PE” Price earnings, market value per share divided by HEPS

“PET” Polyethylene terephthalate

“ROCE” Return on Capital Employed

“SADC” Southern African Development Community

“SENS” Stock Exchange News Service

“Shanduka” Shanduka Packaging Proprietary Limited

“SHE” Safety, Health and Environment

“SMEs” Small and Medium Enterprises

“the Board” The Board of directors of Mpact

“the Company” Mpact Limited

“the current year” The financial year ended 31 December 2012

“the next year” The financial year ending 31 December 2013

“the previous year” The financial year ended 31 December 2011

“underlying earnings” Net profit after tax and before special items attributable to equity holders of the company

“underlying EBIT” Earnings before interest and taxes and before special items

“ underlying operating profit margin” Operating profit including subsidiaries and joint ventures before special items 
as a percentage of revenue



92
MPACT INTEGRATED REPORT 2012

NOTES
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